
           

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA Tuesday, January 24, 2023
Planning Commission Hearings 6:00 p.m.

Joseph Covey, Commissioner                             Tom Donini, Commissioner
Bill Madden, Commissioner Blake Perez, Commissioner Melanie Schlotterbeck, Commissioner 

This agenda contains a brief general description of each item the Commission will consider. The Planning
Division has on file copies of written documentation relating to each item of business on this Agenda
available for public inspection. Contact the Planning Division at (714) 990-7674 or view the Agenda and
related materials on the City’s website at www.cityofbrea.net.

Procedures for Addressing the Commission 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e), members of the Planning Commission may participate in
this meeting via teleconference. Members of the public may observe the meeting via teleconference and
may offer comments in real-time, as follows: 

To provide comments in person, the Council Chambers will be open to members of the public.
Written comments may be sent to the Planning Division at planner@cityofbrea.net no later than 4:00
p.m. on Tuesday, January 24, 2023. Any comments received via email will be summarized aloud
into the record at the meeting.
To provide comments by teleconference (Zoom), members of the public must contact City Staff at
(714) 990-7674 or planner@cityofbrea.net no later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 24, 2023, to
obtain the Zoom Meeting ID number and password. Teleconference participants will be muted until
recognized at the appropriate time by the Commission.

Special Accommodations
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this
meeting, please contact the Planning Division at (714) 990-7674. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting
will enable City staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. (28 CFR 35.102.35.104
ADA Title II)

Important Notice
Your attendance at this public meeting may result in the recording and broadcast of your image and/or
voice.

ALL PLANNING COMMISSION DECISIONS MAY BE APPEALED TO THE CITY COUNCIL WITHIN
TEN (10)
CALENDAR DAYS OF THE MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT (714) 990-7756 FOR
FURTHER INFORMATION ABOUT FILING AN APPEAL OR OBTAINING AN APPEAL APPLICATION.
           

PLANNING COMMISSION
PUBLIC HEARINGS

6:00 p.m. - Council Chambers, Plaza Level

mailto:planning@cityofbrea.net
mailto:planning@cityofbrea.net


1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - COMMISSION
 

2. INVOCATION
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

4. REORGANIZATION OF PLANNING COMMISSION
 

5. MATTERS FROM THE AUDIENCE

 
CONSENT CALENDAR The Planning Commission approves all Consent Calendar matters with one
motion unless Commission or Staff requests further discussion of a particular item. Items of concern
regarding Consent Calendar matters should be presented during “Matters from the Audience."
 

6. Approval of Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of December 13, 2022.
 

7. Receive and File the Quarterly Traffic Monitoring Report for Tentative Parcel Map No. 2016-178
located at the Northwest Corner of Birch Street and State College Boulevard.
 

8. Administrative Remedies 2022
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS This portion of the meeting is for matters that legally require an opportunity for
public input.  Audience participation is encouraged and is limited to 3 minutes per speaker.
 

9. Gaslight Square Redevelopment Project – Introduction. Environmental Impact Report No.
2022-02, General Plan Amendment No. 2022-02, Zone Change No. 2022-02, Plan Review No.
2022-02, and Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-03
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS - This agenda category is for Commission consideration of a wide variety
of topics. Public comments regarding items in this section should be presented during "Matters from
the Audience."
 

10. PLANNING DIVISION UPDATES
 

11. COMMITTEE REPORTS
 

12. INFORMATIONAL / PROJECT UPDATES
 

13. ADJOURNMENT



Agenda Item 6.        
City of Brea

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Planning Commission

DATE: 01/24/2023

SUBJECT: Approval of Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of December 13, 2022.
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
Joanne Hwang, AICP, City Planner

Attachments
A. Draft Minutes - December 13, 2022 



D R A F T
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES

December 13, 2022
 

               

PLANNING COMMISSION
PUBLIC HEARINGS

7:00 p.m. - Council Chambers, Plaza Level

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - COMMISSION

Chair Brattain called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.
 
Present: Commissioner Brattain; Commissioner Madden; Commissioner Phu;

Commissioner Schlotterbeck; Commissioner Chandel 

2. INVOCATION

 Pastor Dave Tebay of Calvary Community Church provided the Invocation. 
 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Vice Chair Madden led the Pedge of Allegiance.
 

4. MATTERS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Ms. Hosozawa stated there were 9 letters in support of Item 10 and one in
opposition. 
 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 

5. Approval of Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of October 25, 2022.

Staff provided clarification to Chair Brattain's concern related to how his comments
were summarized for Conditional Use Permit 2022-19.
 

  

 
  Motion was made by Commissioner Schlotterbeck, seconded by Commissioner

Madden to approve the Planning Commission Meeting minutes of October 25,
2022. 

  AYES: Commissioner Brattain, Commissioner Madden, Commissioner Phu,
Commissioner Schlotterbeck, Commissioner Chandel 



Passed 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

6. Adoption of 2023 Planning Commission Calendar 
 

  

 
  Motion was made by Commissioner Schlotterbeck, seconded by Commissioner

Madden to approve the 2023 Planning Commission Calendar  
  AYES: Commissioner Brattain, Commissioner Madden, Commissioner Phu,

Commissioner Schlotterbeck, Commissioner Chandel 
Passed 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

7. Continued from October 25, 2022: Environmental Impact Report No. 2020-01 and
approval of General Plan Amendment No. 2020-01, Zone Change No. 2020-01,
Development Agreement No. 2020-01 Tentative Parcel Map No. 2022-113, Precise
Development Plan No. 2020-02, and Conditional Use Permit Nos. 2020-06, 2022-16,
2022-17, and 2022-18 (Brea Mall Mixed Use Project)

Contract Planner, Kim Zuppiger, provided a presentation of the project. The Planning
Commission asked a number of questions related to the following: 

LED & wayfinding signs

  

Traffic-related items (i.e. speedbumps, fees, improvements)

  

School impact fees

  

Caltrans comments

  

Bicycle lanes and facilities 

  

EV charging stations

  

Affordable housing

  

ADA compliance

  



  

Parking

  

Green spaces

Jocelyn Gubler, a representative for Simon Group also provided a presentation and
answered questions.
Chair Brattain opened the Public Hearing and the following people spoke in support of
the project: 

Ashley Cole

  

Crystal Adler

  

Lacy Schoen

In addition, Amelia Bowley Fuentes of the law firm, Lozeau Drury, representing 
Supporters Alliance for Environmental Responsibility (SAFER), expressed concerns
regarding the adequacy of the EIR and requested the EIR be revised to address
indoor air quality and cumulative air quality impacts. 

Chair Brattian closed the Public Hearing and adjourned the meeting at 9:07 pm for a
short break.

Chair Brattain called the meeting back to order at 9:19 pm.

The Commission, after a lengthy discussion, made the following additional
recommendations to the City Council and revisions to the draft conditions of approval:

Recommendations:   

Consider installing 3 to 5 additional EV charging stations within the project area,
at a location(s) that provides ADA access and preferably located within central
areas of the project area.  

1.

  

Examine funding opportunities to install pedestrian lighting and
wayfinding signs to the mall at the Tracks at Brea.

2.

  

Consider requiring more affordable housing units within the project
through the Development Agreement, in excess of the Code required 10
percent.

3.

  



Consider requiring higher MERV-rated air filters for residential units.4.

  

Consider requiring compliance with all necessary State law requirements
related to usage of hazardous materials within interior of the residential
units in order to reduce potential indoor air quality issue

5.

  

Consider potential programming for the interior street/drive aisle located
within the retail buildings.

6.

  

Consider requiring a system/program that monitors parking availability
within parking structures.

7.

  

Encourage participation in the privately funded City-wide micro-transit
system if and when it becomes available

8.

  

Encourage set-aside parking spaces within the parking area located
within the retail buildings for short-term parking (i.e. 15-minute parking).

9.

  

Review state law requirements regarding Electric and Gas utilities and
Solar and incorporate the most updated requirements into the project as
deemed appropriate.

10.

  

Encourage the incorporation of Solar wherever possible.11.

  

Encourage widening the internal roads to accommodate separate bicycle
lanes(i.e. Class II) to the maximum extent possible, considering any
physical encumbrances.

12.

  

Encourage the internal roads and drive aisles to provide sufficient turning
radius for larger vehicles to the extent feasible.

13.

Conditions of Approval:     

 Any patios/balconies with glass rails or fencing shall include glasses with
stripes and/or etching that meets the American Bird Conservancy scale that
represent a Threat Factor of 10 or less.

1.

   



Install at least one free book exchange spot within the residential
building.  

2.

   

Incorporate materials and/or landscaping to soften the appearance of the
structural supports located at the ground level of the exterior of the
residential structure, to the satisfaction of the City Planner.  

3.

  

Within the green space, incorporate a designed edge (e.g. landscaping,
low fence/wall, etc.) between the green space and the adjacent drive
aisle. Also, incorporate other location-appropriate design features that
can support user activities and general seating.

4.

  

The Project site shall be maintained so as not to create any nuisance.5.

  

Incorporate additional bicycle repair stations within the residential
building.  

6.

 
  Motion was made by Commissioner Schlotterbeck, seconded by Commissioner

Chandel approval reco Environmental Impact Report No. 2020-01 and approval of
General Plan Amendment No. 2020-01, Zone Change No. 2020-01, Development
Agreement No. 2020-01 Tentative Parcel Map No. 2022-113, Precise
Development Plan No. 2020-02, and Conditional Use Permit Nos. 2020-06,
2022-16, 2022-17, and 2022-18 (Brea Mall Mixed Use Project) 

  AYES: Commissioner Brattain, Commissioner Madden, Commissioner Phu,
Commissioner Schlotterbeck, Commissioner Chandel 

Passed 
 

8. Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-20: to allow the off-sale of beer and wine with a
determination of public convenience or necessity (PCN) for a new hotel (Residence
Inn by Marriott) located at 180 South State College Boulevard.

Kathy Kuo, Planning Technician, provided a presentation of the project.

The Commission asked a clarifying question related to availabiity of alcohol to the
general public.

Chair Brattain opened the Public Hearing and hearing no testimony, closed the Public
Hearing.

  

 
  Motion was made by Commissioner Chandel, seconded by Commissioner



  Motion was made by Commissioner Chandel, seconded by Commissioner
Schlotterbeck to approve Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-20: to allow the
off-sale of beer and wine with a determination of public convenience or necessity
(PCN) for a new hotel (Residence Inn by Marriott) located at 180 South State
College Boulevard. 

  AYES: Commissioner Brattain, Commissioner Madden, Commissioner Phu,
Commissioner Schlotterbeck, Commissioner Chandel 

Passed 
 

9. Conditional Use Permit Nos. 2021-15 and 2022-21: to allow a health and fitness
studio with a modification of off-street parking requirements at 650 North Berry Street,
Unit A.

Senior Planner, Jessica Newton, provided a presentation.

The Commission had a few questions regarding parking.

Chair Brattain opened the Public Hearing and hearing no testimony, closed the Public
Hearing.

  

 
  Motion was made by Commissioner Schlotterbeck, seconded by Commissioner

Madden to approve Conditional Use Permit Nos. 2021-15 and 2022-21: to allow a
health and fitness studio with a modification of off-street parking requirements at
650 North Berry Street, Unit A. 

  AYES: Commissioner Brattain, Commissioner Madden, Commissioner Phu,
Commissioner Schlotterbeck, Commissioner Chandel 

Passed 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
 

10. Continued from October 25, 2022: Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-19: to allow the
retail sale of firearms and ammunition within an existing commercial building located
at 524 E. Imperial Highway.

City Planner Hwang gave a recap of the October 25, 2022, Public Hearing where the
Commission considered Conditional Use Permit, heard public testimony, had a
discussion, and directed staff to come back with a resolution of denial. Staff's
recommendation is for the Commission to adopt the resolution of denial.

  

 
  Motion was made by Commissioner Schlotterbeck, seconded by Commissioner

Madden to deny the approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-19: to allow the
retail sale of firearms and ammunition within an existing commercial building
located at 524 E. Imperial Highway 

  AYES: Commissioner Madden, Commissioner Phu, Commissioner
Schlotterbeck, Commissioner Chandel 

NOES: Commissioner Brattain 



Passed 
 

11. PLANNING DIVISION UPDATES

None.
 

  

 

12. COMMITTEE REPORTS
 
Commissioner Schlotterbeck announced she has finished her Housing Policy
Leadership Academy.

 

13. INFORMATIONAL / PROJECT UPDATES

None.
 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Brattain adjourned the meeting at 10:43 pm.
 

Respectfully submitted, The foregoing minutes are hereby
approved this 24th day of January 2023.

_________________________________     
Joanne Hwang, AICP
City Planner

________________________________     
_________________, Chair



Agenda Item 7.        
City of Brea

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Planning Commission

DATE: 01/24/2023

SUBJECT: Receive and File the Quarterly Traffic Monitoring Report for Tentative Parcel Map No.
2016-178 located at the Northwest Corner of Birch Street and State College Boulevard.
 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission receive and file the Quarterly Traffic Monitoring
Report identified as a Condition of Approval for Tentative Parcel Map No. 2016-178.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
Pursuant to the adopted Resolution No. PC 2017-05 and Resolution No. PC 2017-07 for Parcel Map
No. 2016-178 and Precise Development No. 16-04 respectively, located at the northwest corner of
Birch Street and State College Boulevard, the Project was issued Conditions of Approval on June 27,
2017. As part of Condition of Approval “o” for Tentative Parcel Map No. 2016-178, the applicant was
required to monitor and report on the traffic signal synchronization operation with adaptive traffic
control systems for the Project on a quarterly basis for pre-construction, during the course of the
construction, and occupancy of the project up to 100% occupancy and for a period of two (2) years
after 100% occupancy.

The Project Developer has retained a traffic engineering consultant to perform the monitoring, and a
Quarterly Traffic Monitoring Report has been prepared for reporting to the Planning Commission.
Please see the attached Quarterly Traffic Monitoring Report that has been prepared on behalf of the
Project applicant.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
Joanne Hwang, AICP, City Planner 
Prepared by: Ryan Chapman, P.E., Assistant City Engineer 
Concurrence: Michael Ho, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

Attachments
A. Quarterly Monitoring Report 



 

Iteris, Inc.| 1 

 

  
TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

 

To: 
 

Ryan Chapman, PE 
David Roseman, PE 

From: 
 

Jason Xu, PE, PTOE, PMP 
Richard Luo, EIT 

 City of Brea  Iteris, Inc. 

 1 Civic Center Circle  1700 Carnegie Avenue, Suite 100 

 Brea, CA 92821  Santa Ana, CA 92705 

    

Date: January 7, 2023 

 

RE: 2022 Q4 Monitoring Report for Brea Place SynchroGreen Adaptive Signal Operation  
  
As part of the Brea Place Project, Adaptive Signal Control Technologies (ASCT) system has been deployed along the 
corridors of State College Boulevard from Brea Mall South to Lambert Road and Birch Street from State College 
Boulevard to Poplar Avenue. Based on the Conditions of Approval, Iteris will continue to assist the City and Avalon 
Bay in monitoring adaptive system operation until the building’s occupancy rate stabilizes (95% or above) and for a 
period of two (2) years after 100% occupancy. On June 24, 2022, Avalon Bay received the final Certificate of 
Occupancy for the Brea Place Project. 
 
This technical memorandum serves as part of series of quarterly reports submitted to facilitate monitoring and 
reporting the system performance along the two corridors. Performance measures discussed in this report have 
been monitored to track the performance status from October to December of 2022. This memorandum provides a 
comparison of signal performance between the current study period and the “after” study conditions to track 
improvements or identify potential for timing parameter finetuning along the corridors.  

Based on the continual monitoring studies, the ASCT system performs per the system design and deploys optimal 
traffic signal coordination strategies according to the project specifications. Dynamic coordination cycles have been 
recommended and deployed by the ASCT system during the pandemic in the past two years to address the traffic 
fluctuation. The green times assigned to each signal phase have also been optimized to accommodate the real-time 
traffic pattern.   

1. PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 
State College Boulevard is a major north-south arterial running parallel to State Route 57 between Brea Boulevard 
and the southern city limit. There are seven (7) signalized intersections on this mile-long segment with a posted 
speed of 40 mph. Birch Street is a major east-west arterial running parallel to Imperial Highway and is bounded by 
Brea Boulevard to the west and Valencia Avenue to the east. This project includes five (5) signalized intersections 
along this half-mile stretch of Birch Street with a posted speed of 35 mph. SynchroGreen ASCT system has been 
deployed at the following signalized intersections:  

1. State College Boulevard at Brea Mall South 
2. State College Boulevard at Brea Mall Center 
3. State College Boulevard at Brea Mall North 
4. State College Boulevard at Birch Street 
5. State College Boulevard at Brea Place 

ATTACHMENT A



Iteris, Inc.| 2 

6. State College Boulevard at Avocado Street 
7. State College Boulevard at Lambert Road 
8. Birch Street at Brea Mall 
9. Birch Street at Civic Center 
10. Birch Street at Randolph Avenue 
11. Birch Street at Poplar Avenue 

 

2. METHODOLOGY  

The project’s continual monitoring is conducted using the travel time data generated from a Bluetooth system on a 
quarterly basis with supplementary floating car surveys for each of 12 months.  

In order to evaluate the ASCT system operational performance, Bluetooth roadside units (RSU) were installed at 
each of project intersections to collect real‐time traffic data. The system detects anonymous Bluetooth/Wi-Fi signal 
broadcast from mobile devices to determine travel times and speeds on a continuous basis. This project utilizes the 
travel time pair/route report in 5-minute intervals with the option of individual speeds and number of matches. The 
valid pair/route data are then processed to produce travel time reports for each direction of the study corridors. The 
pair/route data include the following information:  

• Average Travel Time – Time taken to travel between paired locations. The average of travel times for a 
specific set of matches or trips (seconds) 

• Historical Average Travel Time – Historical average travel time for the entire period since the inception of 
the system (seconds) 

• Average Travel Speed – Calculated average speed based on the time taken to travel between paired 
locations (mph) 

 
The monitoring phases also use the Bluetooth data to compare against the “after” study report that was approved 
by the City in 2021 as the baseline condition.  

3. CONTINUAL MONITORING  

3.1 BlueTOAD Data Analysis 

To measure the effects of the SynchroGreen ASCT system, travel time and speed data were extracted from the 
BlueTOAD system for October, November, and December of 2022 on typical weekdays (Tuesday, Wednesday, and 
Thursday). Tables 1 and 2 on the next page summarize the results of the travel time and average speed analysis. The 
measures of effectiveness (MOE) are also compared with the “after” study that was collected in September 2020 
following the implementation and finetuning of the SynchroGreen system. The detailed reports are included in 
Attachment A.  

As shown in Table 1, the overall performance of Birch Street improved from “after” study conditions. Compared to 
Q3 2022, the average corridor travel time and speed had very minor deterioration, but overall performance has 
remained consistent between Q3 and Q4. 

It should be noted that the entire Birch corridor was synchronized by a separate project prior to the deployment of 
the SynchroGreen adaptive system. The signals outside of the study segment are coordinated at fixed cycles that 
may differ from the cycle lengths that the adaptive system optimized and implemented for the real-time traffic 
patterns.  

  

ATTACHMENT A



Iteris, Inc.| 3 

Table 1 – MOE Comparison for Birch Street 

Directio
n 

Performance 
Measure 

After 
Study  

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022 

MOE MOE Diff. 
% 

Diff. 
MOE Diff. 

% 
Diff. 

MOE Diff. 
% 

Diff. 

AM Peak 

EB 
Travel Time (sec) 60 60 0 0% 63 3 5% 61 1 2% 

Speed (mph) 23 24 1 4% 23 0 0% 23 0 0% 

WB 
Travel Time (sec) 67 44 -23 -34% 45 -22 -33% 44 -23 -34% 

Speed (mph) 22 32 10 45% 32 10 45% 32 10 45% 

Corridor 
Average 

Travel Time (sec) 64 52 -12 -19% 54 -10 -16% 53 -11 -17% 

Speed (mph) 23 28 5 22% 27 4 17% 28 5 22% 

PM Peak 

EB 
Travel Time (sec) 66 65 -1 -2% 63 -4 -6% 68 2 3% 

Speed (mph) 22 22 0 0% 23 1 5% 21 -1 -5% 

WB 
Travel Time (sec) 75 54 -21 -28% 56 -19 -25% 54 -21 -28% 

Speed (mph) 19 26 7 37% 25 6 32% 26 7 37% 

Corridor 
Average 

Travel Time (sec) 71 60 -11 -15% 59 -12 -17% 61 -10 -14% 

Speed (mph) 21 24 3 14% 24 3 14% 24 3 14% 

Note:  XX – MOE improvement with decreased travel time or increased average speed 
XX – MOE deterioration with increased travel time or decreased average speed 
XX – No MOE change 
 

 

As shown in Table 2 on the next page, average travel times and corridor delays have been maintained or improved 
along State College Boulevard going southbound for both peak periods. In the northbound direction, the travel time 
and delay of the AM peak are consistent with two prior quarters (Q2 and Q3 of 2022) without significant variance of 
performance. The travel time and delay of State College northbound is typically higher than the “after” study due to 
the facts that traffic has been rebounding to pre-pandemic level and the intersection of State College Boulevard and 
Lambert Road is running under a special SynchroGreen Zone with pre-defined coordination cycles that allows this 
signal to synchronize with SR-57 ramp signals on Lambert instead of responding to the adaptive control demands. 
However, system analysis identified higher average travel times and delays in the northbound of State Collge 
compared to Q3 2022. Multiple rounds of troubleshooting and finetuning have been performed to address the 
following issues that could cause increase of travel time:  

• Construction of signal modification at the SR-57 ramps is on-going and will impact the signal operation at 
State College Boulevard and Lambert Road where the signal operation priority is currently set to the east-
west direction along Lambert to accommodate heavy bidirectional traffic. A field review confirmed that 
during the PM peak the southbound left turns at State College and Lambert most likely will either stop at 
the SR-57 SB ramp and backs up into State College, blocking northbound traffic. The field review also 
noticed that the synchronization between State College and ramp signals were off. Iteris coordinated with 
Caltrans and confirmed that both ramp signal have been put on Free mode due to the construction. 
Caltrans eventually re-implemented coordination plan at both SR-57 ramp signals using a longer cycle 
length of 130 seconds in December. Following that, Iteris adjusted coordination cycle lengths and timings 
at State College and Lambert to match the ramp signals. The coordination progression has been 

ATTACHMENT A



Iteris, Inc.| 4 

reinstalled along Lambert between Stage College and SR-57 SB ramp. The eastbound traffic no longer 
blocks the intersection of Lambert and Stage College. However, due to the inconsistent cycle lengths, 
Stage College northbound traffic most likely will stop at Lambert which introduces extra delay to MOE 
report.  

 

• Detection failures happened at two intersections on Stage College Boulevard. The approaches with 
detection failure are typically set to Max Recall which may unnecessarily take more green time than needed. 
The detection monitoring and troubleshooting have been conducted at Stage College and Birch and State 
College and lambert.    

 

Table 2 – MOE Comparison for State College Boulevard 
 

Directio
n 

Performance 
Measure 

After 
Study  

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022 

MOE MOE Diff. 
% 

Diff. 
MOE Diff. 

% 
Diff. 

MOE Diff. 
% 

Diff. 

AM Peak 

NB 
Travel Time (sec) 129 141 12 9% 140 11 9% 137 8 6% 

Speed (mph) 26 25 -1 -4% 25 -1 -4% 26 0 0% 

SB 
Travel Time (sec) 142 136 -6 -4% 141 -1 -1% 131 -12 -8% 

Speed (mph) 24 26 2 8% 25 1 4% 27 3 13% 

Corridor 
Average 

Travel Time (sec) 136 138 2 1% 141 5 4% 134 -2 -1% 

Speed (mph) 25 26 1 4% 25 0 0% 27 2 8% 

PM Peak 

NB  
Travel Time (sec) 154 205 51 33% 193 39 25% 198 44 29% 

Speed (mph) 22 18 -4 -18% 19 -3 -14% 18 -4 -18% 

SB 
Travel Time (sec) 176 163 -13 -7% 158 -18 -10% 157 -19 -11% 

Speed (mph) 19 22 3 16% 23 4 21% 23 4 21% 

Corridor 
Average 

Travel Time (sec) 165 184 19 12% 175 10 6% 177 12 7% 

Speed (mph) 21 20 -1 -5% 21 0 0% 21 0 0% 

 Note:  XX – MOE improvement with decreased travel time or increased average speed 
XX – MOE deterioration with increased travel time or decreased average speed 
XX – No MOE change 
 

To further illustrate the travel time patterns along study corridors, average travel time was plotted using the 
BlueTOAD data for each month and for Q4 2022 in Figures 1 through 4. Overall, travel times along Birch Street have 
remained relatively consistent with the third quarter except for the PM peak of Birch Street eastbound in December 
that has spikes of travel time. This was mainly due to the construction and Christmas events. Stage College 
northbound also had a spike of travel time during the PM peak in October due to the factors discussed above.   

  

ATTACHMENT A



Iteris, Inc.| 5 

 

Figure 1 – Average Travel Time for Birch Street EB 

 

 

Figure 2 – Average Travel Time for Birch Street WB 

 

 

  

ATTACHMENT A



Iteris, Inc.| 6 

Figure 3 – Average Travel Time for State College Boulevard NB 

 

 

Figure  4 – Average Travel Time for State College Boulevard SB 

 

In addition to Bluetooth data analysis, a travel time study was conducted in Q4 using the Floating Car Methodology 
and GPS-based TruTraffic 10 software. The travel time and average speed are summarized in Table 3 below and 
compared with the study collected back in May 2020. A minimum of five (5) travel time runs were collected on 
Thursday, December 1, 2022, for each peak and each direction. Due to the construction at Birch Street and Poplar 
Avenue and the Tree Lighting Ceremony around City Hall, the second round of field runs was conducted on Tuesday, 
December 6 to collect additional AM runs for Birch Street and PM runs for both corridors.  Supplemental runs were 
also collected on January 4, 2023, during the PM period following the timing modification along Lambert Road.  
 

ATTACHMENT A



Iteris, Inc.| 7 

Overall, the travel time and average speed on Birch Street have improved or remained relatively consistent with the 
after study for both peak periods. To be consistent the previous floating car study,  the MOE comparison focused on 
the segment State College and Randolph.  
 
Similarly, State College has also maintained or improved MOE for both AM and PM peaks. During the December 
runs, one of the northbound runs stopped twice at Lambert due to southbound left turning vehicles blocking the 
intersection. The southbound left has since been changed to lagging with 130-second cycle to match the timing 
revisions at Caltrans ramp signals, so it does not block northbound vehicles.  
 

Table 3 – MOE Comparison of Floating Car Survey 

Corridor 
Peak 

Periods 
Direction 

Travel Time (sec) Speed (mph) 

May 
2020 

Dec 
2022 

Improv %Improv 
May 
2020 

Dec 
2022 

Improv %Improv 

B
ir

ch
 S

tr
e

et
 AM  

EB 94 68 -26 -28% 17.0 23.3 6.3 37% 

WB 38 45 7 18% 37.2 34.5 -2.7 -7% 

Average 66 57 -9.5 -14% 27 29 1.9 7% 

PM 

EB 43 38 -5 -12% 33.4 36.7 3.3 10% 

WB 38 38 0 0% 36.9 36.7 -0.2 -1% 

Average 41 38 -3 -7% 35 37 1.7 5% 

St
at

e 
C

o
lle

ge
 B

o
u

le
va

rd
 

AM  

NB 164 128 -36 -22% 22.2 28.7 6.5 29% 

SB 113 125 12 11% 32.3 28.5 -3.8 -12% 

Average 139 127 -12.5 -9% 27 28.6 1.6 6% 

PM 

NB 192 180 -12 -6% 19.4 21.2 1.8 9% 

SB 184 149 -35 -19% 19.5 23.6 4.1 21% 

Average 188 165 -23.5 -13% 19 22 3.4 18% 

Note:  XX – MOE improvement with decreased travel time or increased average speed 
XX – MOE deterioration with increased travel time or decreased average speed 
XX – No MOE change 

 

  

ATTACHMENT A



Iteris, Inc.| 8 

3.2 SynchroGreen Monitoring 

The SynchroGreen adaptive control module responds to traffic fluctuation and deploys timing optimization 
strategies for the following peak periods:  

• Weekday - 6:30 AM to 8:00 PM 

• Weekend - 7:00 AM to 7:00 PM (State College Boulevard and Lambert Road operates in “Free” mode during 
the weekend) 
 

The SynchroGreen reports have been routinely reviewed during continual monitoring phase, including Controller 
Error Report, System Master Error Report, Split Termination Report, Green Time Utilization/Cycle Report, and Alarm 
Dashboard. To present a high-level summary of signal operation, the typical weekday coordination cycle lengths 
were extracted from SynchroGreen reports and presented in Figures 5 through 7 for each month of this study period. 
They illustrate cycle lengths that the adaptive control system optimized and deployed at project signals (excluding 
State College and Lambert). Compared to the daily average cycles reported in previous reports, the weekday cycle 
length charts provide a more detailed and visual illustration of the variability of implemented cycles throughout a 
weekday.  

Overall, the cycle lengths implemented by Signal Adaptive Control are more flexible and lower than the traditional 
time-of-day coordination plans.  A major drop in cycle length was typically observed around 10:00 AM and 2:45 PM 
when the system transitions from one base plan to another. The system then quickly returns to normal coordination 
operation with a short transition period. On the October data for Monday, the cycle length hovers at 110 seconds 
during the PM period; most likely, the intersection was running the non-adaptive base plan during this time. 

Figure  5 – Weekday Cycle Lengths for October 2022 

 

  

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM 7:00 PM

C
yc

le
 L

en
gt

h
s 

(s
ec

)

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday

ATTACHMENT A



Iteris, Inc.| 9 

Figure  6 – Weekday Cycle Lengths for November 2022  

 

Figure  7 – Weekday Cycle Lengths for December 2022 

 

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM 7:00 PM

C
yc

le
 L

en
gt

h
s 

(s
ec

)

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM 7:00 PM

C
yc

le
 L

en
gt

h
s 

(s
ec

)

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday

ATTACHMENT A



Iteris, Inc.| 10 

3.3 Other Finetuning and Observations 
 
To illustrate the trend of traffic changes during this monitoring period, daily inbound/outbound traffic were 
extracted from ATMS.now System Reports for the intersection of State College Boulevard and Birch Street for five 
consecutive weekdays. Figure 8 below shows the inbound traffic at this location and a comparison with the previous 
study period (Q3 2022). Overall, volumes have remained relatively consistent between Q3 and Q4, with an average 
variance of less than 5%.  

Figure 8  –Traffic Comparison at State College Boulevard and Birch Street 

  

 

The following monitoring activities have also been conducted by Iteris as part of monitoring efforts:  
 

• Detection and operation monitoring and troubleshooting at State College and Birch.  
 

• Timing modification and finetuning at State College and Lambert. Iteris developed and implemented new 
AM and PM plans (130 seconds) based on prevailing traffic patterns and timing changes at SR-57 ramp 
signals. The southbound left turn is now lagging during the PM peak and will receive Green at SR-57 SB 
ramp after a slowdown or brief stop; eastbound through platoons will then arrive at Green internal at the 
SB ramp following southbound left turn platoons. This has been field verified and there is no further change 
at this moment.  
 

 

4. NEXT STEPS 
 
Overall, all 11 signalized intersections have been operating at optimal and acceptable levels of services under the 
adaptive signal control. Iteris will continue to monitor the progression and travel time along the two corridors and 
adjust system settings as necessary to optimize the target cycle lengths and to enhance the traffic progression.  

 

 

ATTACHMENT A



Iteris, Inc.| 11 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A - BLUETOAD TRAVEL TIME REPORTS

ATTACHMENT A



BlueTOAD Historical Report

Birch EB, Averages

Pair/Route cabrea‐350854: (Y22‐Birch EB (Randolph to State College))

Comparison Index #1 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐10‐11 to 2022‐10‐13

Comparison Index #2 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐11‐08 to 2022‐11‐10

Comparison Index #3 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐12‐06 to 2022‐12‐08

Speed (mph) Travel Time (s) Speed (mph) Travel Time (s) Speed (mph) Travel Time (s)

0:00 28.4 49 27.5 51 26.4 53

0:15 28.7 49 27.6 51 26.7 53

0:30 28.7 49 27.6 51 27.4 51

0:45 29.1 48 27.7 51 27.5 51

1:00 29.3 48 27.8 51 27.6 51

1:15 29.2 48 27.9 50 27.6 51

1:30 29.2 48 28 50 27.2 52

1:45 29.4 48 28 50 27.1 52

2:00 29.3 48 28 50 27 52

2:15 29.4 48 28.2 50 26.7 53

2:30 29.7 47 28.1 50 26.7 53

2:45 29.7 47 28.1 50 26.4 53

3:00 30 47 28.1 50 26.3 53

3:15 30.2 46 28 50 26.5 53

3:30 30.2 46 28 50 26.7 53

3:45 29.8 47 28.2 50 26.6 53

4:00 30 47 28.2 50 26.6 53

4:15 30 47 28.2 50 26.6 53

4:30 29.9 47 28.4 49 27.3 51

4:45 29.6 47 28.5 49 27.9 50

5:00 29.2 48 28.4 49 29 48

5:15 29.3 48 28.7 49 29.8 47

5:30 29.3 48 29 48 29.9 47

5:45 29.1 48 29.4 48 31 45

6:00 28.9 49 28.7 49 30.2 46

6:15 28.2 50 28.6 49 30.5 46

6:30 27.3 51 27.8 51 29.3 48

6:45 26.6 53 27 52 27.9 50

7:00 26.4 53 26.8 52 25.2 56

7:15 25.9 54 24.8 57 24.8 57

7:30 25.2 56 20.9 67 22.6 62

7:45 23.2 61 21.6 65 22.7 62

8:00 22 64 21.7 65 23.4 60

8:15 20 70 21.2 66 23 61

8:30 22.9 61 22.2 63 22 64

8:45 24 59 21.5 65 21.8 64

9:00 22.8 62 22.5 62 21 67

9:15 22.1 64 23.3 60 22.3 63

9:30 21.1 67 23 61 23 61

9:45 21.6 65 24 59 21.7 65

10:00 21.2 66 24.5 57 20.2 70

10:15 22.4 63 25 56 24 59

10:30 25.8 54 25.6 55 25.6 55

10:45 25.5 55 24.2 58 24 59

11:00 22.3 63 22 64 23.6 59

11:15 22.5 62 23.4 60 25.2 56

11:30 23.5 60 25.1 56 23.4 60

Time

October 11 ‐ October 13

Tues, Wed, Thurs

November 8 ‐ November 10

Tues, Wed, Thurs

December 6 ‐ December 8

Tues, Wed, Thurs

ATTACHMENT A



11:45 21.6 65 23.4 60 23 61

12:00 19.7 71 22.2 63 22.6 62

12:15 21.2 66 24 59 22.3 63

12:30 21 67 22.6 62 22.9 61

12:45 21.5 65 22.5 62 23.3 60

13:00 23.6 59 23.2 61 22.8 62

13:15 20.9 67 22.3 63 24.3 58

13:30 19.7 71 21.3 66 23 61

13:45 19.8 71 22.2 63 22.1 64

14:00 18 78 23 61 23.6 59

14:15 19.5 72 22.6 62 23.8 59

14:30 20.4 69 22.9 61 23.7 59

14:45 18.9 74 23 61 23.1 61

15:00 18.7 75 21.9 64 19.6 72

15:15 24 59 21.7 65 16.6 85

15:30 25.9 54 22.7 62 19.8 71

15:45 23.3 60 19.3 73 20.3 69

16:00 22.6 62 21.5 65 23.6 59

16:15 23.4 60 21 67 20.3 69

16:30 21.8 64 23.9 59 19.7 71

16:45 21.8 64 23.9 59 22.6 62

17:00 19.5 72 23.6 59 23.4 60

17:15 21 67 21.9 64 18.6 75

17:30 21.3 66 20.9 67 19.2 73

17:45 23.1 61 24.2 58 20.8 68

18:00 25.2 56 23.1 61 23.8 59

18:15 21.2 66 21.5 65 22 64

18:30 22.7 62 23.1 61 20.1 70

18:45 22.9 61 22.5 62 21.8 64

19:00 21 67 22.7 62 22 64

19:15 22.5 62 22.5 62 23.2 61

19:30 23 61 24.1 58 21.7 65

19:45 21.4 66 24.8 57 22.2 63

20:00 22.6 62 24.7 57 22 64

20:15 24.4 58 22.6 62 20.6 68

20:30 24.1 58 21.1 67 20.9 67

20:45 23.9 59 24 59 19.6 72

21:00 22.4 63 24.5 57 19.7 71

21:15 22.3 63 23.8 59 21.4 66

21:30 22.6 62 24.3 58 21.9 64

21:45 22.3 63 25.3 55 23.1 61

22:00 22.6 62 25 56 23 61

22:15 24.1 58 25.1 56 23.4 60

22:30 24.2 58 25.1 56 23.7 59

22:45 24.7 57 25.4 55 24.5 57

23:00 25.4 55 26.3 53 26.2 54

23:15 25.9 54 26.5 53 26.1 54

23:30 27.3 51 26.9 52 26.1 54

23:45 28.2 50 27.2 52 26.3 53

ATTACHMENT A



BlueTOAD Historical Report

Birch WB, Averages

Pair/Route cabrea‐350860: (Y22‐Birch WB (State College to Randolph))

Comparison Index #1 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐10‐11 to 2022‐10‐13

Comparison Index #2 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐11‐08 to 2022‐11‐10

Comparison Index #3 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐12‐06 to 2022‐12‐08

Speed (mph) Travel Time (s) Speed (mph) Travel Time (s) Speed (mph) Travel Time (s)

0:00 28.6 49 28.4 49 28.1 50

0:15 28.7 49 28.7 49 28.1 50

0:30 28.7 49 28.8 49 29.2 48

0:45 28.9 49 28.9 49 29.4 48

1:00 29.1 48 28.9 49 29.4 48

1:15 29.2 48 29.1 48 29.4 48

1:30 29.1 48 29.1 48 29.4 48

1:45 30 47 29.2 48 29.4 48

2:00 30.1 47 29.6 47 29.2 48

2:15 29.8 47 29.3 48 29.4 48

2:30 29.8 47 29.4 48 29.4 48

2:45 30.3 46 29.3 48 29.2 48

3:00 30.7 46 29.4 48 29.5 48

3:15 30.9 45 29.4 48 29.6 47

3:30 31 45 29.6 47 29.4 48

3:45 31.1 45 29.9 47 29.5 48

4:00 31.1 45 29.7 47 28.9 49

4:15 31 45 29.7 47 28.6 49

4:30 31 45 29.6 47 28.6 49

4:45 31.2 45 29.8 47 28.8 49

5:00 30.9 45 30.8 46 28.8 49

5:15 31.3 45 30.3 46 29.6 47

5:30 31.7 44 30.9 45 29.2 48

5:45 31.2 45 31.6 44 29.3 48

6:00 31.3 45 31.6 44 29.6 47

6:15 31.3 45 31.1 45 29.5 48

6:30 31 45 31 45 29.9 47

6:45 30.9 45 32.7 43 30.6 46

7:00 31.7 44 33.5 42 31.3 45

7:15 33.7 42 33.6 42 34.5 41

7:30 32.8 43 32.6 43 33.9 41

7:45 32.2 44 31.7 44 32.2 44

8:00 32.1 44 30.5 46 31.9 44

8:15 30.5 46 29.8 47 31.4 45

8:30 30.3 46 29.8 47 30.1 47

8:45 30.4 46 30.1 47 31.6 44

9:00 29.5 48 30 47 30.4 46

9:15 30.8 46 31.4 45 30.7 46

9:30 30.4 46 29.5 48 29.4 48

9:45 30.5 46 28.2 50 27.6 51

10:00 28.4 49 27.2 52 25.5 55

10:15 24.9 56 25.9 54 24.5 57

10:30 24.7 57 23.8 59 23.8 59

10:45 23.9 59 22.9 61 23.7 59

11:00 24.9 56 22.4 63 21.7 65

11:15 22.6 62 23 61 22.1 64

11:30 21.8 64 23.9 59 24.1 58

Time

October 11 ‐ October 13

Tues, Wed, Thurs

November 8 ‐ November 10

Tues, Wed, Thurs

December 6 ‐ December 8

Tues, Wed, Thurs

ATTACHMENT A



11:45 22.1 64 22.7 62 20.8 68

12:00 23.2 61 23 61 20.6 68

12:15 22.9 61 22.1 64 22.7 62

12:30 22.7 62 20.5 68 22.4 63

12:45 22.4 63 22 64 23.4 60

13:00 21.1 67 22.8 62 21.3 66

13:15 22.2 63 21.6 65 22.2 63

13:30 23.7 59 23.1 61 21.2 66

13:45 24 59 23 61 22.1 64

14:00 23.4 60 22.4 63 21.6 65

14:15 23.3 60 25.4 55 22.8 62

14:30 23.9 59 22.9 61 22.8 62

14:45 24.3 58 22.4 63 25.1 56

15:00 25.4 55 24.3 58 26.3 53

15:15 26.1 54 26.3 53 26 54

15:30 27.6 51 28.1 50 27.1 52

15:45 26.6 53 26.8 52 26.5 53

16:00 25.5 55 26.1 54 26.3 53

16:15 25.2 56 25 56 26.9 52

16:30 27.5 51 26.6 53 27.6 51

16:45 27.3 51 24.9 56 27 52

17:00 27.5 51 22.9 61 27.5 51

17:15 27.1 52 24.8 57 23.7 59

17:30 26.6 53 26.5 53 25.5 55

17:45 25.8 54 26.2 54 24.8 57

18:00 24.7 57 26.5 53 26.4 53

18:15 26.8 52 25.6 55 26.1 54

18:30 26.9 52 25.6 55 24.3 58

18:45 26.9 52 25.3 55 25.1 56

19:00 26.9 52 26.6 53 25.6 55

19:15 26.2 54 26.6 53 25.1 56

19:30 25.3 55 27.4 51 26 54

19:45 25.2 56 27.7 51 26 54

20:00 24.7 57 27.2 52 24.4 58

20:15 21.7 65 23.8 59 21.7 65

20:30 21.7 65 22.8 62 21.9 64

20:45 23.8 59 22.7 62 21.4 66

21:00 23.6 59 21.6 65 22 64

21:15 23.7 59 22 64 23.4 60

21:30 24.2 58 23.7 59 24.2 58

21:45 24.7 57 24.5 57 23.2 61

22:00 26.3 53 25.8 54 23.8 59

22:15 25.9 54 26.7 53 24.9 56

22:30 26.5 53 26.9 52 26.3 53

22:45 27.3 51 27.5 51 26.9 52

23:00 27.8 51 28 50 26.9 52

23:15 28 50 28.4 49 27.1 52

23:30 28.3 50 28.5 49 27.2 52

23:45 28.5 49 28.7 49 27.5 51

ATTACHMENT A



BlueTOAD Historical Report

State College NB, Averages

Pair/Route cabrea‐337942: (Y22‐State College NB (Brea Mall S to Lambert))

Comparison Index #1 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐10‐11 to 2022‐10‐13

Comparison Index #2 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐11‐08 to 2022‐11‐10

Comparison Index #3 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐12‐06 to 2022‐12‐08

Speed (mph) Travel Time (s) Speed (mph) Travel Time (s) Speed (mph) Travel Time (s)

0:00 28.7 123 27.8 127 27.9 126

0:15 28.8 122 27.7 127 28 126

0:30 28.9 122 28 126 28.2 125

0:45 28.9 122 28.3 125 28.6 123

1:00 29 122 28.2 125 28.5 124

1:15 28.9 122 28 126 28.7 123

1:30 29 122 27.8 127 28.6 123

1:45 29 122 27.8 127 28.7 123

2:00 29 122 27.5 128 28.7 123

2:15 29 122 27.7 127 28.6 123

2:30 29.1 121 27.7 127 28.6 123

2:45 29.1 121 27.8 127 28.6 123

3:00 29 122 27.9 126 28.7 123

3:15 29.1 121 27.8 127 28.7 123

3:30 29.1 121 27.8 127 28.8 122

3:45 29.1 121 27.9 126 29 122

4:00 29.2 121 27.7 127 29.3 120

4:15 29 122 27.7 127 29.3 120

4:30 29.2 121 27.7 127 29.3 120

4:45 28.9 122 27.5 128 29.2 121

5:00 29.1 121 27.5 128 29.2 121

5:15 28.8 122 27.5 128 29 122

5:30 28.8 122 27.5 128 29.1 121

5:45 28.8 122 27.8 127 29 122

6:00 28.8 122 27.5 128 28.8 122

6:15 28.4 124 26.8 132 28.5 124

6:30 27.7 127 26.3 134 28.1 126

6:45 27.6 128 26.2 135 27.5 128

7:00 26.9 131 26.5 133 27.1 130

7:15 25.4 139 26.3 134 26.2 135

7:30 25.2 140 26.1 135 26.1 135

7:45 24.3 145 25.9 136 26.6 133

8:00 23.6 149 24.2 146 25.8 137

8:15 25.1 141 25.1 141 25.6 138

8:30 25.7 137 24.3 145 25.5 138

8:45 25 141 23.4 151 24.3 145

9:00 24.9 142 22.7 155 25.1 141

9:15 24.5 144 22.4 157 26.6 133

9:30 24.3 145 23.3 151 25.6 138

9:45 24.9 142 24.4 145 24 147

10:00 24.8 142 24.1 146 22.9 154

10:15 23.6 149 24.1 146 22.5 157

10:30 23.1 153 23.3 151 22.1 160

10:45 22.3 158 22.4 157 22.7 155

11:00 22.9 154 21.4 165 23 153

11:15 23.6 149 21 168 21.7 163

11:30 22.6 156 21.3 166 21.2 166

Time

October 11 ‐ October 13

Tues, Wed, Thurs

November 8 ‐ November 10

Tues, Wed, Thurs

December 6 ‐ December 8

Tues, Wed, Thurs

ATTACHMENT A



11:45 21.9 161 21.7 163 20.3 174

12:00 20.9 169 21.6 163 20.2 175

12:15 21.7 163 20.9 169 20.6 171

12:30 22.7 155 21.3 166 21.7 163

12:45 22.5 157 20.9 169 21.7 163

13:00 21.4 165 20.2 175 22.3 158

13:15 21.3 166 20.4 173 22.2 159

13:30 21.5 164 20.9 169 22.1 160

13:45 20.5 172 22.4 157 22.6 156

14:00 20.3 174 21.1 167 21.7 163

14:15 21.1 167 20.7 170 21.3 166

14:30 22.1 160 18.7 189 21.7 163

14:45 20.2 175 18.3 193 22.1 160

15:00 21.5 164 20.8 170 20.8 170

15:15 21.2 166 20.6 171 19 186

15:30 18 196 20.3 174 20.4 173

15:45 21 168 19.3 183 20.8 170

16:00 21.4 165 20.2 175 20.5 172

16:15 20.4 173 16.7 211 17.8 198

16:30 20.7 170 17.7 199 18.5 191

16:45 18.8 188 19.7 179 20.1 176

17:00 18.6 190 21.1 167 17.4 203

17:15 18.1 195 16.9 209 14.9 237

17:30 15.5 228 18.1 195 16.9 209

17:45 13.1 269 18.9 187 20.4 173

18:00 14.5 243 20.1 176 20 176

18:15 17.5 202 19.7 179 20 176

18:30 19.4 182 21.5 164 22.9 154

18:45 21 168 22.9 154 23.9 148

19:00 22.4 157 22 160 24 147

19:15 22.6 156 23.6 149 24 147

19:30 24.4 145 24.1 146 24.2 146

19:45 24.8 142 23.1 153 23.5 150

20:00 25.3 139 24.4 145 22.6 156

20:15 25.4 139 24.2 146 24.1 146

20:30 25.6 138 24.4 145 25.2 140

20:45 25.1 141 24.8 142 25.4 139

21:00 25.7 137 25.3 139 25.6 138

21:15 25.8 137 26.3 134 26.6 133

21:30 26.1 135 26 136 27.5 128

21:45 26.7 132 25.9 136 28.1 126

22:00 27 131 26.2 135 28.3 125

22:15 27.1 130 26 136 28.5 124

22:30 27.4 129 26 136 28.4 124

22:45 27.7 127 26.4 134 28.1 126

23:00 28.1 126 26.3 134 28.1 126

23:15 28.5 124 26.5 133 28.5 124

23:30 28.7 123 26.6 133 28.5 124

23:45 28.7 123 26.7 132 28.5 124

ATTACHMENT A



BlueTOAD Historical Report

State College SB, Averages

Pair/Route cabrea‐337940: (Y22‐State College SB (Lambert to Brea Mall S))

Comparison Index #1 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐10‐11 to 2022‐10‐13

Comparison Index #2 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐11‐08 to 2022‐11‐10

Comparison Index #3 Historical Avg of Tue/Wed/Thu: From 2022‐12‐06 to 2022‐12‐08

Speed (mph) Travel Time (s) Speed (mph) Travel Time (s) Speed (mph) Travel Time (s)

0:00 30 118 28 126 31.1 113

0:15 30.1 117 28.4 124 30.4 116

0:30 30.3 116 28.3 125 30.5 116

0:45 30.6 115 28.3 125 31.2 113

1:00 30.7 115 28.2 125 31.4 112

1:15 30.9 114 28.2 125 31.4 112

1:30 30.9 114 27.6 128 31 114

1:45 30.8 115 27.7 127 30.2 117

2:00 30.9 114 27.8 127 29.1 121

2:15 30.8 115 27.8 127 29.9 118

2:30 30.9 114 27.8 127 30.1 117

2:45 30.9 114 27.8 127 30.2 117

3:00 30.8 115 27.9 126 30.4 116

3:15 31 114 28 126 30.3 116

3:30 31 114 27.9 126 30.4 116

3:45 31 114 28.1 126 30.4 116

4:00 31.1 113 28.3 125 30.4 116

4:15 31.3 113 28.4 124 30.6 115

4:30 31.1 113 28.4 124 30.3 116

4:45 31.2 113 28.7 123 30.5 116

5:00 31.2 113 29 122 30.1 117

5:15 31.4 112 29.3 120 29.7 119

5:30 31.1 113 29.9 118 29.8 118

5:45 31.1 113 30.4 116 29.6 119

6:00 30.7 115 30.4 116 28.7 123

6:15 30 118 30.8 115 28.3 125

6:30 30.2 117 30.8 115 27.3 129

6:45 30.2 117 30.2 117 28.5 124

7:00 29.1 121 29.7 119 29.5 120

7:15 27.7 127 25.7 137 30.7 115

7:30 27.9 126 25.9 136 27.9 126

7:45 26.6 133 26.4 134 25 141

8:00 23.1 153 22.9 154 24.5 144

8:15 24 147 23.5 150 26.3 134

8:30 26.3 134 24 147 26.6 133

8:45 24.5 144 23.9 148 27.4 129

9:00 25 141 25.7 137 26.6 133

9:15 25.3 139 25.9 136 27.7 127

9:30 26.8 132 25.7 137 28.1 126

9:45 26 136 26.4 134 26.4 134

10:00 25.9 136 27.2 130 24.6 143

10:15 25.3 139 25.1 141 23.5 150

10:30 24.6 143 24.9 142 23.3 151

10:45 23.8 148 24.3 145 24.1 146

11:00 22.9 154 23.2 152 22.6 156

11:15 23.5 150 23.2 152 22.9 154

11:30 22.6 156 22.4 157 23.5 150

October 11 ‐ October 13

Tues, Wed, Thurs

November 8 ‐ November 10

Tues, Wed, Thurs

December 6 ‐ December 8

Tues, Wed, ThursTime

ATTACHMENT A



11:45 22.2 159 23.7 149 23 153

12:00 22.4 157 24.7 143 21.9 161

12:15 22.6 156 22.6 156 22.7 155

12:30 21.9 161 21.5 164 23.4 151

12:45 22.9 154 22.7 155 23.6 149

13:00 24.3 145 22.2 159 22.3 158

13:15 23.1 153 21.3 166 22.9 154

13:30 22.8 155 22 160 23.1 153

13:45 23.8 148 23.6 149 22.8 155

14:00 23.4 151 24.1 146 22 160

14:15 24.2 146 23.9 148 21.9 161

14:30 22.6 156 23.5 150 21.9 161

14:45 21.4 165 22.7 155 22.2 159

15:00 23 153 22.3 158 21.6 163

15:15 19.7 179 21.6 163 21.3 166

15:30 20.9 169 21.3 166 24 147

15:45 21.7 163 23.3 151 22 160

16:00 23.2 152 22.4 157 21.8 162

16:15 25.3 139 22.6 156 23.4 151

16:30 22.7 155 21.2 166 23.8 148

16:45 21.3 166 22.6 156 22 160

17:00 21.6 163 22.5 157 20.9 169

17:15 20.3 174 22.2 159 23.6 149

17:30 19.3 183 22.7 155 21.9 161

17:45 21.9 161 23.8 148 23.9 148

18:00 23.1 153 23.4 151 24.4 145

18:15 21.9 161 22.9 154 23.7 149

18:30 21.8 162 25 141 25.4 139

18:45 23.7 149 24.7 143 26.1 135

19:00 25 141 26.1 135 26.1 135

19:15 25.4 139 26.6 133 25.8 137

19:30 26.8 132 25.6 138 26.8 132

19:45 26.7 132 25 141 26.9 131

20:00 27.4 129 26.5 133 27.6 128

20:15 27.4 129 24.8 142 25.6 138

20:30 26.1 135 25.8 137 24.9 142

20:45 25.9 136 25.7 137 25 141

21:00 26.3 134 26.5 133 25.4 139

21:15 26.5 133 27.4 129 25.1 141

21:30 27 131 27.4 129 25 141

21:45 27.3 129 27 131 25.3 139

22:00 27.5 128 27.7 127 25.5 138

22:15 27.2 130 27.4 129 26.3 134

22:30 27.5 128 27.2 130 27.3 129

22:45 28.1 126 27.4 129 27.8 127

23:00 28.3 125 27.2 130 28.3 125

23:15 28.7 123 26.9 131 28.4 124

23:30 29.1 121 27 131 28.3 125

23:45 29.4 120 27.4 129 28.3 125

ATTACHMENT A



 

 

Innovating Through Informatics™ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1700 Carnegie Avenue, Suite 100 
Santa Ana, CA 92705 
 
iteris.com 
 
© 2020 Iteris, Inc.  All rights reserved. 
 

ATTACHMENT A



Agenda Item 8.        
City of Brea

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Planning Commission

DATE: 01/24/2023

SUBJECT: Administrative Remedies 2022

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
Joanne Hwang, AICP, City Planner
Prepared by: Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez

Attachments
Memorandum 
A. Chapter 20.408 – Administrative Procedures 



 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Chair and Planning Commission 
FROM:   Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner    
DATE:   January 24, 2023 
SUBJECT:  Summary of Administrative Remedy from 2022 
 
 
This memo is intended to provide a summary of Administrative Remedies processed by the 
Planning Division during the year 2022. 
 
The Administrative Remedy is established to expedite and relieve the Planning Commission 
and/or City Council of minor modifications from the requirements of the Brea City Code (BCC), 
within the limits established in Section 20.408.020 (Attachment 1). The Community Development 
Director (Director), may consider, approve, or deny modifications administratively, without a public 
hearing. The Planning Division provides an annual memo to the Planning Commission 
summarizing all Administrative Remedies approved by the Director pursuant to Section 
20.408.020 of the BCC. 
 
Administrative Remedy Summary 
 
During the year 2022, the Director did not approve any Administrative Remedy as the Planning 
Division did not receive any applications.  
 
 
MEMO ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Chapter 20.408 – Administrative Procedures  
 

END  
 



DIVISION III — ADMINISTRATION AND PROCEDURES

CHAPTER 20.400:  ADMINISTRATION AND PROCEDURES — GENERAL

Section

 20.400.010   Administration

 20.400.020   Building permit issuance

 20.400.030   Types of procedures

 20.400.040   Applications

 20.400.050   Initiation by city

 20.400.060   Interchangeability

 20.400.070   Fees

 20.400.080   Environmental review

 20.400.090   Investigation

§ 20.400.010  ADMINISTRATION.

In accordance with the provisions of the State Planning and Zoning Law, Cal. Gov't Code Division 1 of Title 7, the City
Planning Commission shall administer regulations of this title and amendments thereto; hear and act upon all matters
involving variances and conditional use permits; revoke conditional use permits; hear and act upon suspensions or
modifications of planned right-of-ways; and perform such other duties as are requested or delegated by the City Council.

§ 20.400.020  BUILDING PERMIT ISSUANCE.

A. General provisions.

1. It shall be unlawful for any property owner, or authorized agent thereof, to commence any work pertaining to the
erection, construction, reconstruction, moving, conversion or alteration of any building, or any addition to any building, until a
building permit has first been secured from the Division of Building and Safety for said work.

2. Each application for a building permit shall be made on a printed form to be obtained at the Division of Building and
Safety and shall be accompanied by accurate information and dimensions of all yards and open spaces, and such other
information as may be necessary for the enforcement of these regulations.  Where complete and accurate information is not
readily available from existing records, the Division of Building and Safety may require the applicant to furnish a survey of
the lot or parcel prepared by a licensed surveyor.  The original of such application shall be kept in the office of the Division of
Building and Safety.

3. No building permit shall be issued for the erection or use of any structure or part thereof, or for the use of any land,
which is not in accordance with the provisions of this title and in conformity with the approved site plan, conditional use
permit or other entitlement, where required by this title.  Any permit issued contrary to the provisions of this title or not in
conformity with an approved site plan, conditional use permit or other entitlement for use shall be void and of no effect.

4. No building permit shall be issued where the structure(s) to be erected will have the effect of depriving other persons
of the use of their property or will have the effect of invalidating the general plan.

5. No building permit shall be issued for a residential building or structure on a lot which does not have a minimum
frontage of thirty (30) feet and access to a dedicated street or way acceptable to the Planning Commission.

B. Flood hazard areas.  The Director hereby is authorized, and shall have the duty, to refuse to issue a building permit or
permits to any applicant whose lot or parcel is subject to the requirements of Division II of Title 18 of this code, except upon
compliance with the requirements of said Division II of Title 18.

C. Certificate of occupancy.  No building shall be occupied or used unless a certificate of occupancy and a license for
such use, where required, is first obtained from the department or person vested with the duty or authority to issue same. 
Such certificate shall be issued only after any construction, enlargement, or alteration has been completed in conformity with
the provisions of any regulating ordinance, with any approved site plan and required conditions, and when the proposed use
conforms to this title and required conditions.

§ 20.400.030  TYPES OF PROCEDURES.

The procedures to be utilized in administration of and modification to this title include the following:

A. Legislative procedures.

1. Text amendment.  An ordinance or amendment changing the wording of this title.

ATTACHMENT A



      2.   Change of zone.  An ordinance or amendment changing a zone boundary as shown on the Zoning Map.

   B.   Administrative procedures.

      1.   Administrative interpretation.  A means of resolving uncertainties or ambiguities in the meaning of any provision of
this title.  An interpretation is uniformly applicable to all subsequent situations in which the same set of circumstances is
present.  In addition, the interpretation procedure may be used to make minor adjustments of zone boundaries to conform to
lot lines or to resolve uncertainty as to the precise location of a zone boundary.

      2.   Administrative remedy.  A simplified procedure for considering minor deviations from zoning regulations, within
established parameters, designed to expedite requests therefor without requiring Planning Commission review.

      3.   Conditional use permit.  A discretionary action concerning a specified land use and, pursuant to criteria set forth in
this title, to determine whether such use may be permitted at a given location and to determine the conditions or limitations
on development in each case.

      4.   Plan review.  The review and conditional approval of development plans for specified categories of development or
when required as a condition of approval under some other procedure, in order to ensure the intent of this title is met with
regard to site arrangement, functional effectiveness, landscape design, architectural quality, and other pertinent attributes.

      5.   Certificate of compatibility. A procedure to consider the compatibility of residential structures, accessory dwelling
units, and mobile and/or manufactured housing to coordinate planning, architecture, aesthetics, and economic cohesiveness
within residentially zoned areas of the city.

   C.   Quasi-judicial procedures.

      1.   Variance.  A determination under criteria established in state law and this title, allowing deviation from the strict
application of regulations of this title, in cases where the effect of the strict application of the regulations would deprive a
particular property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under identical zoning classification.

      2.   Revocation.  Procedure for revoking any specific development approval when violation of zoning requirements,
conditions or other laws are found to have occurred.

(Am. Ord. 1220, passed 3-16-21)

§ 20.400.040  APPLICATIONS.

   A.   Form and information required.  All applications to initiate a procedure governed by this title shall be made pursuant to
the Uniform Application Procedure established by the Director and the nature of the information to be submitted therewith
shall be as prescribed by the Director for each type of application.

   B.   Applicant.  Application to initiate any procedure set forth in this title shall be made by the owner(s) or duly authorized
agent(s) thereof, of the property or by an applicant which is, or will be, the plaintiff in an action in eminent domain to acquire
the property.  Proof of ownership or other requisite status hereunder shall be supplied concurrently with the application
submittal.  Applications shall be duly executed and verified under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of California.

   C.   Acceptance.

      1.   The Director shall be responsible for the acceptance of all such applications.  No application shall be accepted until:

         a.   All required information is submitted, including any environmental review documentation, when required (See: §
20.400.080);

         b.   At least one (1) year has passed since final action on any previously denied application for substantially the same
matter, except as otherwise provided by this title; and

         c.   The required application fee has been paid.

      2.   As soon as possible, but in no case later than thirty (30) days after receipt of an application, the Director shall
determine, in writing, if such application is complete, and immediately transmit such determination to the applicant.  If an
application is determined not to be complete, the Director's determination shall specify the deficiencies and the manner in
which the application can be made complete.

(See: Cal. Gov't Code §§ 65943 and 65944.)

      3.   Upon determination that an application is complete and meets the requirements for acceptance, or expiration of the
thirty (30) day period if no determination regarding completeness is made, the application shall be deemed accepted.

(See: Cal. Gov't Code § 65943.)

§ 20.400.050  INITIATION BY CITY.

   When prescribed by provisions of this title for specific procedures, proceedings may be initiated by minute order or
resolution of the City Council or Planning Commission, or by written order of the Director, or other public official so
authorized.

§ 20.400.060  INTERCHANGEABILITY.



   An application or other initiation of proceedings under any procedure set forth in this title may be considered as an
initiation of proceedings under any other procedure set forth in this title; provided that, for each action taken, the procedural
steps required for that action have been accomplished and the applicable fees paid.

§ 20.400.070  FEES.

   A.   A schedule of fees shall be adopted (and revised from time to time as deemed necessary) by resolution of the City
Council.

   B.   When a proceeding is initiated by application, or otherwise as authorized in this title, a fee shall be paid to the city by
the applicant or appellant in the amount set forth in the currently adopted schedule of fees.

   C.   No fee shall be required when a proceeding is initiated or appealed by action of an officer or official body of the city.

   D.   No fee shall be refunded except upon order of the City Council for good cause shown.

§ 20.400.080  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.

   A.   For purposes of applying procedural time limits under this title, a procedure will not be considered to have been
initiated until one (1) of the following has occurred pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act:

      1.   Notice of completion of a draft environmental impact report has been filed;

      2.   Notice of a negative declaration has been made; or

      3.   The Director determines that the proposed zoning matter is exempt from, or does not constitute a project under, the
California Environmental Quality Act.

   B.   If, after having determined otherwise, it is determined that either a negative declaration or an environmental impact
report is required, or that a supplement to a draft environmental impact report is required, the running of time limits
applicable to the zoning procedure shall be suspended until the applicable environmental review step has been
accomplished.

   C.   Any hearing on an environmental impact report shall be held before or concurrently with the last hearing to be held on
a zoning matter to which it relates.

   D.   Certification of final environmental impact report or adoption of a negative declaration, when required, shall be made
prior to a final decision on a zoning matter.

§ 20.400.090  INVESTIGATION.

   Except as otherwise directed by the City Manager, for each matter initiated under a procedure established by this title, the
Director shall cause an investigation to be made and a report prepared providing factual information and recommendations
as appropriate for action in accordance with the provisions of this title.

(See: Cal. Gov't Code § 65804(d).)

CHAPTER 20.404:  LEGISLATIVE PROCEDURES

Section

   20.404.010   Zoning ordinance text amendment

   20.404.020   Change of zone

§ 20.404.010  ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT.

   A.   Purpose.  Any amendment to the text of this title which imposes any regulation not theretofore imposed, removes or
modifies any regulation theretofore imposed or adds any use to any zone not theretofore listed shall be made according to
the following procedure.

   B.   Procedure.

      1.   Initiation.  Proceedings may be initiated by motion of the Planning Commission or by motion of the City Council. 
Proceedings initiated by the City Council shall be submitted to the Planning Commission.

      2.   Notice of commission hearing.  Notice of the time and place of the Planning Commission hearing shall be given as
required by law. (See:  Chapter 20.416)

      3.   Commission hearing.  The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing upon the amendment and thereupon,
within forty (40) days after the conclusion of said hearing, shall make a determination and report thereof to the City Council.

      4.   Council action.  The City Council, after receipt of the report and recommendation from the Planning Commission,
shall give notice and hold  public hearings on the proposed change(s).  Upon completion of the public hearing(s) the City



Council may either approve, modify or reject the recommended action.  If modified, the City Council shall refer the matter
back to the Planning Commission for a report.  Said report shall be filed with the City Council within forty (40) days after the
referral.

§ 20.404.020  CHANGE OF ZONE.

   An amendment to the Zoning Map changing a property from one zone to another shall be made in accordance with the
provisions of this chapter.

   A.   Criteria for granting a change of zone.  The Planning Commission, in recommending and the City Council in approving
a proposed change of zone, shall consider the following:

      1.   That the proposed zone change is in conformity with the General Plan as amended.  Where conflicts exist between
the zone change and the General Plan, and it is determined that the proposed change of zone is in the interest of the city,
the General Plan may be amended concurrently with the zone change.

      2.   That the subject property is suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zone, in terms of access, size of parcel,
relationship to similar or related uses and other considerations deemed relevant by the Planning Commission and City
Council.

      3.   That the proposed change of zone is not detrimental to the use of land in any adjacent zone.

   B.   Procedure.

      1.   Initiation.  Such change may be initiated by the City Council, Planning Commission, owner, or duly authorized agent
thereof, of any land or by an applicant who is, or will be, the plaintiff in an action in eminent domain to acquire the property. 
An application for change of zone shall be filed in accordance with § 20.400.040.

      2.   Filing fee.  The applicant shall be required to pay appropriate fees as determined by City Council resolution to cover
costs and expenses involved in processing an application for change of zone.

      3.   Filing prior to hearing.  Any and all applications to be filed under and pursuant to the provisions of this section must
be filed with the Planning Commission not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the date set for the hearing of said application.

      4.   Notice of hearing.  Forthwith upon the filing of a completed application for a change of zone, the Secretary to the
Planning Commission shall set a public hearing before the Planning Commission on the subject of the Planning
Commission's prospective recommendation to the City Council on the proposed change of zone.  Notice shall be given as
required by law. (See: Chapter 20.416)

      5.   Commission hearing.  The Planning Commission shall conduct a public hearing upon the matters referred to in such
an application.  Within forty (40) days after conclusion of said hearing, the Planning Commission shall make a determination
and report thereon to the City Council.

      6.   Commission findings and decisions.  If, from the facts presented to the Planning Commission in the application, at
the public hearing, or by investigation, the Planning Commission, by a majority vote of a quorum then present, finds that
public necessity, convenience, general welfare, or good zoning practice, require the proposed change of zone involved or
any portion thereof, the Planning Commission shall recommend such proposed change to the City Council; otherwise the
application shall be disapproved.  The Planning Commission shall make its findings and recommendation in writing within
forty (40) days from the date of completion of the hearing and shall forthwith transmit a copy thereof to the applicant.  If the
Planning Commission recommends approval of the proposed change or any portion thereof, it shall transmit the application
together with its report and recommendation relative thereto, to the City Council for its action.  If the Planning Commission
fails to make a determination within the time limit herein specified, it shall lose jurisdiction and applicant may appeal to the
City Council as hereinafter provided.

      7.   Council action.  Upon receipt of the application together with the Planning Commission's report and
recommendations relative thereto, the City Council shall hold a public hearing noticed as required by law.  After City Council
has conducted said hearing, it shall either:

         a.   Confirm the recommendations of the Planning Commission and effect such change by ordinance; or

         b.   If the City Council does not agree with all or any part of the Planning Commission's recommendations, City Council
shall refer the matter back to the Planning Commission for a report of the parts in question.  Upon receiving the report of the
Planning Commission, or after forty (40) days after the date of the referral, the City Council may, by ordinance, effect any
change even though the Planning Commission does not concur.

      8.   Denial and appeal.  If, after the original hearing, the Planning Commission denies the application or does not make a
determination within the time limit specified, the applicant may, within ten (10) days from the date on which the notification of
denial was mailed to said applicant or upon termination of the time limit, appeal to the City Council by written notice of
appeal filed with the City Clerk.

      9.   Alternate action.  Where there is an application for a zone change and the Planning Commission and/or City Council
find that the public interest would best be protected by, as an alternate, granting a conditional use permit to allow a more
limited but appropriate group of uses than permitted in the requested zone, such permit may be recommended by the
Planning Commission and granted by the City Council, provided there is a finding that the site is appropriate for one or more,
but not all of the uses listed in the zone applied for, and where the Planning Commission or City Council determine that a



time limit or other conditions are essential to protect the public health, safety, general welfare and the policies set forth in the
general plan.

CHAPTER 20.408:  ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

Section

   20.408.010   Administrative interpretation

   20.408.020   Administrative remedy

   20.408.030   Conditional use permit

   20.408.040   Plan review

   20.408.050   Certificate of compatibility

§ 20.408.010 ADMINISTRATIVE INTERPRETATION.

   A.   The purpose of this section is to provide a means for resolving uncertainty or ambiguity as to the meaning or intent of
any provision of this title, including:

      1.   Further definition and enumeration of the uses permitted in the various zones;

      2.   Determination of parking space requirements for uses not specifically listed in the vehicular provisions of this title;

      3.   Determination of the precise location of zone boundaries, or minor adjustment thereof to conform to lot lines.

   B.   Except in the case of zone boundary determinations, each interpretation made under this section is generally
applicable to all future situations of the same type and with similar circumstances, and is not limited or directed to specific
properties or circumstances thereon.

   C.   Initiation.  The preparation of an interpretation may be initiated by order of the City Council or the Planning
Commission, by the Director, or by application pursuant to § 20.400.040.  An interpretation shall not be initiated when a
zoning ordinance text amendment or change of zone involving the same issue has been initiated and is still under
consideration.

   D.   Basis for Interpretation.  An interpretation shall be based upon an examination of the intent of this title considering all
the relevant provisions thereof, and shall be consistent with such intent.  Careful consideration shall be given to the
similarities and differences among the uses permitted, development standards, and other regulations applicable to the
various zones.

   E.   Preparation.  Within forty (40) days after the initiation of an interpretation request, the Director shall prepare a written
interpretation and transmit it to the City Council and Planning Commission.

   F.   Notice.  Upon transmittal of an interpretation to the City Council and Planning Commission, public notice that such
interpretation has been prepared shall be given in the same manner as for a zoning ordinance text amendment (See: §
20.416.020), or in the case of a zone boundary determination, notice shall be made in the same manner as for a change of
zone (See: § 20.416.010).  The notice shall explain that the interpretation may become effective without a hearing unless a
written request for a hearing is received.

   G.   Commission hearing and action.

      1.   If a written request for a hearing is received from any interested party within ten (10) days after notice is made, the
Planning Commission shall conduct such hearing.  If no such request is made, the Commission may consider the matter
without hearing, and the matter may be placed on the Commission agenda as a consent calendar item.

      2.   The Planning Commission may adopt, modify, or disapprove an interpretation as submitted by the Director, or may
refer the matter back to the Director for further study.  The Planning Commission shall act within forty (40) days after
transmittal of an interpretation from the Director, except that a referral back to the Director is considered as an initiation of an
other interpretation.

      3.   Planning Commission action on an interpretation is final unless appealed pursuant to Chapter 20.424.  Failure to act
shall be deemed an approval thereof.

   H.   If the Planning Commission action on an interpretation is appealed, the City Council shall hear and decide the matter
with notice given in the same manner as the initial notice under paragraph F. of this section.

§ 20.408.020  ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDY.

   A.   Purpose.  Administrative remedy is hereby established to expedite and relieve the Commission and Council of minor
modifications from the requirements of this title, within the limits established by this section.

   B.   Authority of the development services director.



      1.   Minor modification.  In the public interest, the Director, without a public hearing, may consider and approve,
conditionally approve, or deny modifications from the provisions of this title, limited to the following circumstances:

         a.   Where dimensional problems of an existing parcel require reduction of lot area or dimensions by not more than five
percent (5%) of that required by the zone provided that such reductions are requested on not more than one (1) lot within
any one (1) subdivision or tract.

         b.   Where dimensional problems of an existing parcel require reduction of yards and/or distance between buildings by
not more than ten percent (10%) of the requirements of the zone provided that such reductions are not requested for more
than one (1) lot within any one (1) subdivision or tract.

         c.   Reduction of number of required parking spaces by not more than ten percent (10%) and/or modification of parking
(dimension) standards by not more than five percent (5%).

         d.   Modification of wall and fence heights, not to exceed twelve (12) inches.

         e.   Modification of projections/encroachment into required yard areas by not more than twelve (12) inches, provided
that such does not violate fire, housing or building codes.

         f.   Modification of maximum permitted lot coverage not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the maximum lot area coverage
permitted in the zone.

         g.   Modification of maximum height regulation by not more than ten percent (10%) of the requirements of the zone.

         h.   Modification of the size, height, and area of signs by not more than five percent (5%).

      2.   Such additional matters as may be delegated to the Director by the Council, provided that the limits and scope of the
Director's authority shall be set forth by the delegating body.

   C.   Procedure.  The following procedure shall apply to administrative remedy applications:

      1.   Application for administrative remedy shall be made pursuant to § 20.400.040.

      2.   The Director, within thirty (30) days after filing of the application, shall either:

         a.   Approve the application;

         b.   Approve the application with conditions; or

         c.   Disapprove the application.

   The Director shall set forth the findings upon which the decision is based.

      3.   A copy of the proceedings and findings of the Development Services Director shall be submitted, in writing, to the
Commission as a matter of record.

      4.   The decision of the Director shall be final and shall become effective ten (10) days after issuance of the decision by
the Director, subject to appeal pursuant to Chapter 20.424.

§ 20.408.030  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

   A.   Intent and purpose.  The conditional use permit is intended for those land uses which require special consideration in a
particular zone or in the city as a whole.  The following factors shall be considered in determining the appropriateness of a
location with respect to adjacent uses:  The extent of traffic generation, noise, vibration, smoke or other problems incidental
to the operation; special locational and space requirements; the effect that such uses may have on property values, health,
safety and welfare; and any other characteristic which may affect the compatibility of the use with the neighborhood or the
community.  In granting the permit, certain safeguards to protect the health, safety, and general welfare may be required as
conditions of approval.  Uses existing on the effective date of this title which are listed as permitted subject to conditional
use permit may continue without securing such a permit; however, any extension or expansion of such use shall comply with
provisions of this section.

   B.   Uses permitted subject to conditional use permit.

      1.   Uses listed in each zone requiring a conditional use permit may be permitted in said zone subject to the provisions of
this section.

      2.   The following uses may be permitted in any zone except where expressly prohibited, when such uses are deemed
by the Planning Commission to be essential or desirable for the public welfare and convenience and in conformity with the
General Plan and its objectives.

   Borrow pit

   Cellular telephone poles or facilities

   Cemetery, columbarium, crematory, mausoleum

   Golf course



   Heliport

   Hospitals, sanitariums

   Planned Unit Development in residential zones, subject to the provisions of Chapter 20.16

   Public utility structures and installations not listed in any zone

   Radio and television transmitters

   Temporary establishments or enterprises involving: circus, open air theater (excluding drive-in theater), tent revival and
race track

      3.   Other special or unusual uses for which no provision is made in this title or which provide for an unusual combination
of uses not otherwise provided for nor otherwise prohibited in this title.

   C.   Initiation andhearing.

      1.   Application.  Application for a conditional use permit shall be made pursuant to § 20.400.040.  The application shall
include a site plan and elevations of the proposed development.  Appropriate fees shall be paid as determined by City
Council resolution.

      2.   Staff investigation.  The Planning Division shall make an investigation of the facts bearing on the case to provide the
information necessary for the action consistent with the intent of this title and the General Plan, and shall report the findings
to the Commission.

      3.   Notice of hearing.  Notice of public hearing shall be made pursuant to Chapter 20.416.

   D.   Commission findings and conditions.  The Commission, in approving a conditional use permit, shall find as follows:

      1.   That the use(s) applied for at the location set forth in the application is properly one(s) for which a Conditional Use
Permit is authorized by this title.

      2.   That said use(s) with any conditions to be imposed is necessary or desirable for the development of the community,
in harmony with the various elements or objectives of the General Plan, and not detrimental to existing uses or to uses
specifically permitted in the zone in which the proposed use(s) is to be located.

      3.   That the site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the proposed development and all of the yards,
setbacks, walls or fences, landscaping, and other features required to bring about conformity with other elements in the
neighborhood.

      4.   That the proposed site relates to streets and highways which are properly designed and improved to carry the type
and quantity of traffic generated or to be generated by the proposed development.

      5.   That with the conditions stated in the permit, the uses will not adversely affect the public health, safety, or general
welfare.  Such conditions may include, but are not limited to:

         a.   Special setbacks, yards, open spaces and buffers;

         b.   Fences and walls;

         c.   Lighting;

         d.   Surfacing of off-street parking and loading areas;

         e.   Requiring street dedications and street improvements, including service roads and alleys when necessary and
practical;

         f.   Regulations of points of vehicular ingress and egress;

         g.   Regulation of signs;

         h.   Regulation of time for certain activities;

         i.   Requiring landscaping and maintenance thereof;

         j.   Requiring maintenance of grounds;

         k.   Regulation of noise, vibration, odors, dust;

         l.   Time period within which the proposed use shall be developed;

         m.   A bond for removal of such use within a specified period of time; and

         n.   Such other conditions as are necessary to protect existing or potential users in the area.

   E.   Commission action. 

      1.   The Planning Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove the application and shall announce
and record its decision within twenty-one (21) days following the conclusion of the public hearing.  The decision shall set



forth the findings by formal resolution of the Commission and shall be filed with the City Council.  A copy of the resolution
shall be mailed to the applicant.

      2.   The decision of the Planning Commission shall be final and shall become effective ten (10) days after the adoption of
the resolution by the Commission, subject to appeal pursuant to Chapter 20.424.

   F.   Time limit.

      1.   Each permit hereafter granted shall automatically expire and be of no further force or effect if not exercised within
two (2) years of its effective date, unless the permit specifies a longer period; provided that the Planning Commission,
subject to appeal to the Council in the same manner and time as with the permit itself, may extend any such permit for
successive periods not to exceed six (6) months each, upon showing of good cause therefor, if written application for such
extension is filed prior to the expiration thereof.

      2.   “Exercise” of a permit shall mean substantial construction work pursuant to a building permit, and shall not include
preparation of plans, engineering work or grading.  In case of any dispute thereon, applicant or its successor in interest may
request in writing that the Planning Commission conduct a hearing of which the requesting party shall be given ten (10) days
advance written notice by first class mail directed to the address of the requesting party given in such written request for
hearing.  The decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the Council pursuant to Chapter 20.424.

      3.   Each permit issued hereunder shall have appended thereto a copy of this paragraph F. and Chapter 20.412, and
shall contain substantially the following provision:  “Any permit is subject to expiration and revocation as provided in Chapter
20.412, and said provisions are specifically made a part hereof without negating the applicability of any other provision of
this title or of any other ordinance.”

      4.   Upon expiration of the period of time set forth in paragraph F.2. above, if, in the opinion of the Secretary to the
Commission, any permit has been revoked or has expired, written notice thereof may be directed to the holder of the permit
according to city records at its last address of record.  The same shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid.  Unless a
hearing is requested by any interested person as provided for in paragraph F.2. above, with such request being received by
the city within thirty (30) days of date of mailing of said letter, nonexercise of said permit shall be conclusively presumed. 
Any notices to be given under this paragraph F. shall be deemed given upon deposit in the United States mail, whether
actually received or not.

   G.   Revisions to site plan approved as part of conditional use permit.

      1.   Minor revision to a site plan approved as part of a conditional use permit may be made after review and approval by
the Director pursuant to the Plan Review Procedure, § 20.408.040.  Minor revisions are hereby defined as revisions which in
no way change the requirements set forth by the Commission or Council or violate the intent of any of the standards or
conditions of the permit or of the zone.

      2.   Revisions other than minor revisions, as defined above, shall be made pursuant to the conditional use permit
procedure set forth in this section.

      3.   All copies of the approved revised site plan shall be dated and signed by the Director and made a part of the record
of the subject conditional use permit.  One (1) copy of said approved revised site plan shall be mailed to the applicant.

   H.   Reapplication.  No person shall reapply for a similar conditional use permit on the same land, building, or structure
within a period of one (1) year from the date of the final decision on such previous application unless such decision is a
denial without prejudice.

(Am. Ord. 1066, passed 4-20-04)

§ 20.408.040  PLAN REVIEW PROCEDURE.

   A.   Purpose.  The purpose of the plan review procedure is to enable responsible city departments to review development
proposals for conformity with applicable provisions of this code and all requirements of law.

   B.   Procedure.

      1.   Application for plan review shall be submitted in accordance with § 20.400.040, together with the requisite fee
therefor.

         a.   Application for plan review shall include submission of the following, where appropriate:

            (1)   Subdivision Map

            (2)   Landscape Plan

            (3)   Floor Plan

            (4)   Grading Plan

            (5)   Site Utilization Map

            (6)   Detailed Site Plan

            (7)   Building Elevations



            (8)   Phasing Plan

         b.   The items as listed above are considered a minimum.  Applicants may be required to submit additional information
as necessary to complete the review process.

      2.   The plans shall be reviewed by the Director for conformity with provisions of this title. The plans may be approved
and signed by the Director which stipulate that the development as shown (with any changes noted by the Director)
conforms with the development regulations of the zone.

      3.   For any project not requiring Planning Commission review, the Director shall provide the applicant a written decision
approving, denying or conditionally approving a proposed project within thirty (30) days following submission of a complete
application pursuant to Chapter 20.400.  The Director's decision shall contain the appropriate findings and reasons for
decision.  The Director shall maintain a copy of the decision on file in the Development Services Department.  The Director's
decision shall be final and shall become effective ten (10) days following the date of decision subject to appeal pursuant to
Chapter 20.424.

      4.   All development projects subject to Planning Commission review and approval, shall be placed on the Planning
Commission agenda for consideration.  The Planning Commission shall consider and act upon each discretionary
application according to the provisions of this title.  The Planning Commission's decision shall be noted on the plans and
recorded in the Planning Commission minutes.

      5.   No building permit shall be issued until all required plans have been approved in accordance with this section and no
certificate of occupancy shall be issued unless the development complies with the approved plan review application and all
conditions attached thereto.

      6.   The decision of the Planning Commission shall be final and shall become effective ten (10) days after the adoption of
a resolution of approval or denial by the Planning Commission, subject to the filing of a timely appeal pursuant to Chapter
20.424.

   C.   Contents of plans required.  All plans required to be submitted to the Development Services Department shall indicate
clearly, and with full dimensions, the information required by the application. The applicant shall provide any additional
information as required by the Director to establish that the project satisfies the following aesthetic requirements:

      1.   Landscaping - Refer to the following sections:

      Residential

      R-H      § 20.204.040.K.

      Commercial

      C-P      § 20.224.040.E.4.

      C-N      § 20.228.040.E.4.

      C-C      § 20.232.030.D.2. and

            § 20.232.030.E.4.

      C-G      § 20.236.040.M.1. through M.4.

      C-M      § 20.240.060.D.4.

      C-RC      § 20.244.040.E.4.

      Industrial

      M-P      § 20.248.040.E.

      M-1      § 20.252.040.D.4. through D.6. and § 20.252.040.E.5.

      M-2      § 20.256.040.

      2.   Architectural standards.

         a.   Screening of mechanical equipment and storage areas:

      Residential

      R-H      § 20.204.040.G.2.d.

      R-1      § 20.208.040.E.1.b., E.2.c. and E.3.b.

      R-1(5000)   § 20.212.040.E.2.a. and E.3.b.

      R-2      § 20.216.040.E.2.a. and E.3.b.

      R-3      § 20.220.040.D.2.g. and D.3.e.

      Commercial



      C-P      § 20.224.050.A.

      C-N      § 20.228.050.A.

      C-C      § 20.232.040.A.

      C-G      § 20.236.040.K.1. through K.4., L., and M.3.b. and c.

      C-M      § 20.240.060.J.1. through J.4., K. and L.3.

      Industrial

      M-P      § 20.248.040.K. and L.3.

      M-1      § 20.252.040.K.1. through K.5. and M.1. through M.5.

      M-2      § 20.256.040.

         b.   Lighting requirements:

      Residential

      R1-H      § 20.200.040.J.

      R-H      § 20.204.040.L.

      R-1      § 20.208.040.N.

      Commercial

      C-G      § 20.236.040.Q.

      M-1      § 20.252.040.J.3.a., b. and c.

      M-2      § 20.256.040

         c.   Required building materials:

      Commercial

      C-P      § 20.224.040.E.1.b. and c.

      C-N      § 20.228.040.E.1.b. and c.

      C-C      § 20.232.030.E.1.b. and c.

      C-G      § 20.236.040.E.1.b.

      C-M      § 20.240.060.D.1.b. and c.

      Industrial

      M-1      § 20.252.040.E.1.b. and J.2.a.

         d.   Sign requirements:

      Location and height of signs   § 20.28.190.

      Sign maintenance   § 20.28.210.

      Sign illumination   § 20.28.230.

      Parking of advertising vehicles   § 20.28.260.

      3.   Neighborhood preservation.

      Residential

      R-H         § 20.204.040.G.2.d.

      R-1         § 20.208.040.E.1.b.

      R-1(5000)      § 20.212.040.E.1.b.

      R-2         § 20.216.040.E.1.b.

      R-3         § 20.220.040.D.1.b.

      Commercial

      C-P         § 20.224.040.E.5.

      C-N         § 20.228.040.E.5.



      C-C         § 20.232.030.E.5.

      C-G         § 20.236.040.M.6.a. and P.1. and 2.

      C-M         § 20.240.060.D.4.

      Industrial

      M-P         § 20.248.040.D.1., 2. and E.

      M-1         § 20.252.040.D.1. and E.6.a. through e.

      M-2         § 20.256.040.

      4.   Art in public places program requirements.

         a.   Except as otherwise provided in this title, all development projects are subject to the requirements contained in the
most recently adopted or amended version of the Art in Public Places Manual.

         b.   All developers of commercial projects, industrial projects, including attached and detached additions to existing
commercial and industrial buildings, and residential projects of five (5) dwelling units or more with a total building valuation
are required to select, purchase and install permanent outdoor sculpture accessible by the general public.  The required
minimum art allocation shall be as established in the Art in Public Places Manual. For any custom home development, the art
requirement will be based on an estimate of the homes' market value, based on lot size and existing market.  If development
of a project is to proceed in phases, the phasing plan shall include information reflecting compliance with the Art in Public
Places requirements and shall be subject to review and approval, all as specified in the Art in Public Places Manual. 
Additional requirements of the city's Art in Public Places Program are set forth in the Art in Public Places Manual. 

         c.   All property owners are responsible for maintaining the art work in clean, undamaged condition for the lifetime of
the art work.  The obligation to maintain the art work shall be evidenced by written instrument recorded with the County
Recorder setting forth such obligation.  A copy of the instrument shall be submitted to the city immediately following
recordation.

(Am. Ord. 1050, passed 6-19-01)

§ 20.408.050  CERTIFICATE OF COMPATIBILITY.

   A.   Intent and purpose. The certificate of compatibility is applicable to all areas that permit single family dwellings and
accessory dwelling units within the city. The certificate of compatibility considers the compatibility of residential structures,
accessory dwelling units, and mobile or manufactured homes to coordinate land planning, architecture, aesthetics, and
economic cohesiveness within residentially zoned properties in the city. A certificate of compatibility shall be obtained prior
to submittal of an application for a building permit for any single-family dwelling and accessory dwelling units that require
such a permit.

   B.   Director's authority. In issuing a certificate of compatibility, the Director shall have the authority, subject to the
provisions of this section, to require conditions of development in addition to those required by this title where it is
determined that such conditions are necessary to further the objectives of the general plan and are in harmony with the
intent, purpose, and spirit of this title and/or where such additional requirements are deemed essential to protect the public
safety and general welfare of the community. The Director shall defer all applications for a certificate of compatibility for an
accessory dwelling unit to the Planning Commission.

   C.   Planning Commission authority. In issuing a certificate of compatibility, the Planning Commission shall have the
authority, subject to the provisions of this section, to require conditions of development in addition to those required by this
title where it is determined that such conditions are necessary to further the objectives of the general plan and are in
harmony with the intent, purpose, and spirit of this title and/or where such additional requirements are deemed essential to
protect the public safety and general welfare of the community.

   D.   Procedure.

      1.   Application for a certificate of compatibility shall be made pursuant to § 20.400.040, together with the requisite fee
therefor, and shall be accompanied by the following materials:

         a.   A detailed plot plan showing:

            (1)   Dimensions and orientation of the parcel (to scale).

            (2)   Location of buildings, structures and mobile homes, both existing and proposed.

            (3)   Location of eave overhang and architectural features.

         b.   A dimensioned floor plan of existing and proposed structures.

         c.   All building and mobile home elevations.

         d.   Indication of the types and colors of all exterior construction materials.

         e.   Location of all walls and fences, their height and materials of construction.



         f.   Any other architectural and engineering data as may be required to permit necessary findings that the provisions of
this title are complied with.

      2.   Staff investigation. The Planning Division shall make an investigation of the facts bearing on the case to provide the
information necessary for the action consistent with the intent of this title and the General Plan, and shall report the findings
to the Director.

      3.   Notice of hearings. Notice of public hearing shall be given pursuant to § 20.416.020.E.1. and shall otherwise comply
with Chapter 20.416 as to form and content.

   E.   Findings. The Director, or the Planning Commission, in approving a certificate of compatibility, shall find as follows:

      1.   That the proposed structure, mobile or manufactured home is properly designed and complies with the requirements
of the zone in which it is proposed.

      2.   That the proposed structure, mobile or manufactured home, with any conditions to be imposed, is in harmony with
the various elements or objectives of the general plan and is not economically or aesthetically detrimental to existing or
previously approved uses, structures or mobile homes within the surrounding area.

      3.   That the proposed structure, mobile or manufactured home is aesthetically compatible with the other uses,
structures, and mobile homes in the surrounding area.

   F.   Director's action and appeal procedures.

      1.   The Director may approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove an application for a certificate of compatibility and
shall announce and record the decision within twenty-one (21) days following the conclusion of the public hearing. The
decision shall set forth the findings, in writing, and shall be filed with the Planning Division. A copy of the decision shall be
mailed to the applicant.

      2.   The decision of the Director shall be final and shall become effective ten (10) days after issuance of the decision by
the Director, subject to appeal pursuant to Chapter 20.424.

   G.   Planning Commission's action and appeal procedures.

      1.   The Planning Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove the application and shall announce
and record the decision within twenty-one (21) days following the conclusion of the public hearing. The decision shall set
forth the findings, in writing, and shall be filed with the Planning Division. A copy of the decision shall be mailed to the
applicant.

      2.   The decision of the Planning Commission shall be final and shall become effective ten (10) days after issuance of
the decision by the Planning Commission, subject to appeal pursuant to Chapter 20.424.

(Am. Ord. 1220, passed 3-16-21)

CHAPTER 20.412:  QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEDURES

Section

   20.412.010   Variance

   20.412.020   Revocation of permit, approval or variance

§ 20.412.010  VARIANCE.

   A.   Intent and purpose. 

      1.   A variance from the terms of this title shall be granted only when, because of special circumstances applicable to the
property, including size, shape, topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of the requirements of this title
deprives such property of privileges enjoyed by other property in the vicinity and under identical zoning classifications.

      2.   Any variance granted shall be subject to such conditions as will assure that the adjustment thereby authorized shall
not constitute a grant of special privileges inconsistent with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in
which such property is situated.

   B.   Commission hearing procedure.

      1.   Application.  Application for a variance shall be filed pursuant to § 20.400.040 together with the appropriate fee as
determined by City Council resolution.

      2.   Staff investigation.  The Planning Division shall make an investigation of the facts bearing on the case to provide the
information necessary for the action consistent with the intent of this Chapter and the general plan, and shall report the
findings to the Commission.

      3.   Notice of hearings.  Notice of public hearing shall contain the time and place of the hearing and the location and



proposed use or uses of the subject property.  Notice shall be made pursuant to Chapter 20.416.

   C.   Commission action.

      1.   The Planning Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove the application and shall announce
and record its decision within twenty-one (21) days following the conclusion of the public hearing.  The decision shall set
forth the findings by formal resolution of the Commission and shall be filed with the City Council.  A copy of the resolution
shall be mailed to the applicant.

      2.   The decision of the Planning Commission shall be final and shall become effective ten (10) days after the adoption of
the resolution by the Commission, subject to the filing of a timely appeal pursuant to Chapter 20.424.

§ 20.412.020  REVOCATION OF PERMIT, APPROVAL OR VARIANCE.

   A.   Any permit, approval or variance granted pursuant to this title, or granted under any of the prior zoning ordinances in
the city and is still in effect, including any which may have been granted automatically for a nonconforming prior use, shall be
revoked upon a finding that one (1) or more of the following conditions exist:

      1.   That the use is detrimental to the public health or safety or is a nuisance;

      2.   That the permit, approval or variance was obtained by fraud;

      3.   That the use for which the permit, approval or variance was granted has ceased, or has been suspended for one (1)
year or more;

      4.   That the applicant has not complied with one or more of the conditions of approval or the permit, approval or
variance.

   B.   Any such finding shall be by the Planning Commission after public hearing of which the initial applicant (or any
successor of record whose address has been furnished) shall be given ten (10) days advance written notice by first class
mail directed to applicant's address of record (or such successor's address so furnished), as per the files of the Planning
Commission.  Said finding of the Commission and its determination pursuant thereto shall be subject to appeal pursuant to
Chapter 20.424.  Action of the Planning Commission, or the Council, shall be by resolution, shall contain specific findings
and specific action relative to revocation.

   C.   Notwithstanding the provisions set forth above, the Commission, or the Council, as the case may be, with respect to
any ground of revocation coming with paragraphs A.3. or A.4., above, may grant a period of time within which the use may
be reactivated, or within which noncompliance with conditions may be remedied.  In such event, the resolution shall be
considered interlocutory, and the hearing shall be continued automatically, without further notice, to the first regular meeting
of the body adopting the resolution following such extended date or dates set for full compliance.  Thereupon by further
resolution, the body theretofore otherwise finally acting shall take final action with respect thereto.  No further appeal from
any action of the Planning Commission shall be permitted, and such action of the Planning Commission or Council shall be
final and conclusive.

CHAPTER 20.416:  HEARINGS

Section

   20.416.010   Setting of hearings

   20.416.020   Notice of hearings

   20.416.030   Conduct of hearings

§ 20.416.010  SETTING OF HEARINGS.

   A.   Planning Commission hearings.

      1.   Except for matters considered by or appealed from the Director, when a public hearing is required on a zoning
matter, the first such hearing shall be held by the Planning Commission.

      2.   Except as otherwise provided herein, when a public hearing is to be held by the Planning Commission, the Director
shall set the time and place for such hearing.  The time of such hearing shall be at least ten (10) days and not more than
forty (40) days after the acceptance of an application or the receipt of written notice or other instruction from the Planning
Commission or City Council initiating the matter.

   B.   Council hearings.

      1.   When a public hearing is required on a zoning matter following any decision or recommendation by the Planning
Commission, such hearing shall be held by the City Council.

      2.   Upon acceptance of an appeal, or receipt of a written report from the Planning Commission required to be heard by
the City Council, the City Clerk shall set the time and place for such hearing.  The time of such hearing shall be at least ten



(10) days and not more than forty (40) days after the end of the period for filing an appeal or after receipt of the report.

§ 20.416.020  NOTICE OF HEARINGS.

   A.   Time.  Notice of each public hearing shall be given at least ten (10) calendar days before the date set for such
hearing.  (See: Cal. Gov't Code §§ 65090 and 65091.)

   B.   Content.  Each notice of public hearing shall include the following information:  (See: Cal. Gov't Code § 65094.)

      1.   Time and place of the hearing;

      2.   Who will conduct the hearing;

      3.   A general explanation of the matter to be considered, including the type and magnitude of any proposed changes in
development or development regulations;

      4.   Identification of the property and the area affected;

      5.   Where further information can be obtained;

      6.   A statement of the right to appear and be heard.

   C.   Publication of notice.  When newspaper publication of a notice of public hearing is required, such notice shall be
published at least once in a newspaper of general circulation which is published and circulated in the city, or in the area
affected if the matter is a prezoning of a proposed annexation to the city.  (See:  Cal. Gov't Code §§ 65090 and 65091.)

   D.   Posting of notice.  Posting of notices of public hearing in the vicinity of property affected may be directed by the City
Council or the Planning Commission, but shall not be required when notice is given by other means pursuant to this chapter
and state law.

   E.   Notice to owners of property within five  hundred (500) feet.

      1.   Where a public hearing is required by this code, written notification of such hearing shall be provided to owners of
property located within five hundred (500) feet of the subject property, and such notice shall be made by delivery by city
employees or by first class mail to all persons, including businesses, corporations, or other public and private entities, shown
on the last equalized assessment roll as owning real property which is located within five hundred (500) feet of the subject
property.  (See: Cal. Gov't Code §§ 65091(a)(3).)

      2.   If the matter to be considered is a legislative matter as identified in § 20.404.010, and the number of owners to whom
notice would be sent pursuant to paragraph E.1 of this section is greater than one thousand (1,000), notice may be given, in
lieu of the method described in paragraph E.1. of this section, by placing a display advertisement of at least one-eighth (€)
page in a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected.

   F.   Notice to owners of adjacent property. When notice of a public hearing is required to be given to owners of adjacent
property, such notice shall be made by delivery by city employees or by first class mail to all persons, including businesses,
corporations, or other public and private entities, shown on the last equalized assessment roll as owning real property which
is adjacent to the property or zone boundary directly involved in the matter under consideration.

   G.   Notice to persons requesting notice.  For all public hearings or zoning matters, in addition to other notices, notice shall
be given by first class mail to any person who has filed a written request therefor with the Commission.  Such a request shall
be effective for the balance of the calendar year in which the request is submitted.  A reasonable fee for this service may be
established by the City Council for the purpose of recovering the cost thereof.  (See:  Cal. Gov't Code § 65092.)

   H.   Responsibility for giving notice.  The officers responsible for giving required notices of public hearings shall be as
follows:

      1.   Notices of Director meetings and hearings shall be given by the Director.

      2.   Notices of Planning Commission hearings shall be given by the Commission secretary.

      3.   Notices of City Council hearings shall be given by the City Clerk.

(Am. Ord. 1073, passed 8-3-04)

§ 20.416.030  CONDUCT OF HEARINGS.

   A.   Rules.

      1.   The City Council, Planning Commission, and Director shall adopt and publish rules for the conduct of their respective
hearings or meetings on zoning matters.  (See:  Cal. Gov't Code § 65804(a).)

      2.   When a city staff report exists concerning a zoning matter, such report shall, if possible, be made available to the
public prior to any subsequent public hearing on the matter and shall be presented and made a part of the public record at
the beginning of any such hearing.  (See: Cal. Gov't Code § 65804(c), (d).)

   B.   Continuance.  Any hearing on a zoning matter may be continued from time to time and place to place, provided the
time and place to which continued is announced prior to adjournment of the meeting from which continued.  (See: Cal. Gov't



Code § 65095.)

   C.   Record of hearing.  When a zoning matter is contested and a prior written request is made to the body conducting a
hearing on the matter, a record of the hearing shall be made, and copies made available to any interested party at cost.  A
deposit may be required with such request.  (See: Cal. Gov't Code § 65804(b).)

CHAPTER 20.420:  DECISIONS

Section

   20.420.010   Findings

   20.420.020   Form of decision

   20.420.030   Vote required

   20.420.040   Time limits

   20.420.050   Notice of decision

§ 20.420.010  FINDINGS.

   A.   For each discretionary decision under a procedure prescribed by this title, whether made by the City Council, Planning
Commission or Director, written findings shall be adopted pertinent to the applicable criteria of state law and this title based
upon the investigation, hearings, and record of the case.

   B.   When decisions under more than one (1) type of zoning procedure are being made concurrently with respect to the
same subject property or subject matter, the findings and decision for each such procedure shall be separately identified.

§ 20.420.020  FORM OF DECISION.

   Except as otherwise required:

   A.   Decisions of the City Council and Planning Commission shall be made by resolution;

   B.   Decisions of the Director shall be in writing and signed by that official or an authorized deputy.

§ 20.420.030  VOTE REQUIRED.

   Except as otherwise required by law, actions on zoning matters by the City Council or Planning Commission shall require
the concurring vote of a majority of the members present, with a quorum present.

§ 20.420.040  TIME LIMITS.

   A.   On a zoning matter to be decided by the Director, such decision shall be made within forty (40) days after acceptance
of the application or other initiation of the matter.  An extension of this time limit may be made only with the consent of the
applicant or body initiating the matter.

   B.   On a zoning matter initiated by application, the Planning Commission shall make its recommendation or decision
within forty (40) days after opening its first hearing on the matter or, if no hearing is held, within forty (40) days after
acceptance of the application.  The Planning Commission may extend the time limit prescribed for its action only with the
consent of the applicant and only to the extent such extension is not in conflict with other laws.

   C.   On a zoning matter initiated by the Planning Commission, the Commission shall act within one hundred eighty (180)
days of such initiation, or such other period as may be requested by the City Council.

   D.   On a zoning matter initiated by the City Council and referred to the Planning Commission, and on any matter referred
back to the Commission by the City Council after previous consideration by the Commission, the Commission shall act
within forty (40) days after referral, or such longer period as may be set by the City Council.  (See: Cal. Gov't Code §§
65853 and 65857.)

   E.   For any zoning matter initiated by the City Council, the Council shall act within one hundred eighty (180) days of such
initiation unless extended by the Council for good cause.  For any other zoning matter presented to the City Council, the
Council shall act within forty (40) days after opening its first hearing on the matter; or, if no hearing is held on the matter,
within forty (40) days after the Council receives the matter; or, if referred back to the Planning Commission, within forty (40)
days after receipt of the Commission's report or within forty (40) days after expiration of the Commission's time limit for such
report.  The Council may extend the period for its action for good cause shown.

§ 20.420.050  NOTICE OF DECISION.

   A.   For each decision on a zoning matter, within five (5) days after such decision is made, notice of the decision shall be
sent by first class mail or delivered by a city employee to the applicant or other person initially requesting consideration of
the matter and to any other person who has filed a written request for such notice with the officer responsible for giving such



notice.

   B.   Responsibility for giving notice of decisions shall be as follows:

      1.   The Director shall given notice of his or her decisions.

      2.   The Planning Commission secretary shall give notice of Planning Commission decisions.

      3.   The City Clerk shall give notice of City Council decisions.

   C.   Upon the final approval of a zone change, conditional use permit, or variance, the responsible officer as identified
above shall, within thirty (30) days, and on behalf of the City Council, notify the County Assessor of the action.  (See: Cal.
Gov't Code § 65863.5)

CHAPTER 20.424:  APPEALS

Section

   20.424.010   Appellate authority

   20.424.020   Appellants

   20.424.030   Time for filing of appeal

   20.424.040   Effect of timely appeal

   20.424.050   Form of appeal

   20.424.060   Filing of appeal

   20.424.070   Transmittal of record upon appeal

   20.424.080   Consideration of appeal

   20.424.090   Appellate decision

   20.424.100   Irregularities in proceedings

§ 20.424.010  APPELLATE AUTHORITY.

   A.   Except as otherwise specified, all decisions of the Director made under provisions of this title are appealable to the
Planning Commission.

   B.   Except as otherwise specified, all decisions of the Planning Commission under provisions of this title are appealable to
the City Council.

§ 20.424.020  APPELLANTS.

   Any interested party is eligible to file an appeal on any zoning matter which is subject to appeal.

(See: Cal. Gov't Code § 65856)

§ 20.424.030  TIME FOR FILING OF APPEAL.

   An appeal must be filed within ten (10) days after the date of action by the Planning Commission or within ten (10) days
after the date of decision by the Director.

§ 20.424.040  EFFECT OF TIMELY APPEAL.

   The filing of a timely appeal shall suspend the decision of the Director or the Planning Commission, as the case may be,
until the final determination thereof or dismissal of the appeal by the appellant.

§ 20.424.050  FORM OF APPEAL.

   All appeals shall be in writing and, except for an appeal initiated by a City Council member, shall include:

   A.   Identification of the matter being appealed, including case number, property location, deciding officer or body, and
decision date;

   B.   The specific aspect of the decision being appealed; and

   C.   The fee for an appeal, as established by resolution of the City Council.

§ 20.424.060  FILING OF APPEAL.

   A.   All appeals on zoning matters shall be filed with the City Clerk together with any required appeal fee as set forth in the



current schedule of fees adopted pursuant to § 20.400.070. The City Clerk shall cause the date and time of receipt of each
appeal to be endorsed thereon.

   B.   If the information included with an appeal is found by the City Clerk to be deficient, the City Clerk shall notify the
appellant by U.S. certified mail as to the particulars of the deficiencies.  If such deficiencies are not corrected within ten (10)
days of such notice, the appeal shall be deemed withdrawn.

§ 20.424.070  TRANSMITTAL OF RECORD UPON APPEAL.

   Upon acceptance of an appeal, the City Clerk shall notify the Director, and the Director shall transmit to the appellate body
a summary of factual data and a record of the action taken on the matter being appealed.  Such information shall be before
the appellate body prior to its consideration of the appeal.

§ 20.424.080  CONSIDERATION OF APPEAL.

   Each appeal shall be considered de novo.  Insofar as practicable, and unless otherwise provided in this title, the appellate
body shall follow the same procedures and apply the same criteria as prescribed for the original proceeding on a matter. 
When a hearing is required or held, notice shall be given in the same manner as prescribed for hearing in the original
proceeding; or, if no previous hearing was required, in such manner as deemed appropriate by the appellate body.

§ 20.424.090  APPELLATE DECISION.

   An appellate body may affirm, modify, or reverse the decision appealed from.  The appellate decision shall be supported
by written findings and, unless appealed as authorized hereunder, shall be final and conclusive.

§ 20.424.100  IRREGULARITIES IN PROCEEDINGS.

   Any irregularity in any procedure set forth in this title shall not invalidate the proceeding if there is compliance with the
minimum requirements of state law.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, failure to timely file an appeal or to pay the requisite fee
therefor shall render the appeal null and void.



Agenda Item 9.        
City of Brea

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Planning Commission

DATE: 01/24/2023

SUBJECT: Gaslight Square Redevelopment Project – Introduction. Environmental Impact Report No.
2022-02, General Plan Amendment No. 2022-02, Zone Change No. 2022-02, Plan Review
No. 2022-02, and Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-03

 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
Joanne Hwang, AICP, City Planner
Prepared by: Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner

Attachments
Staff Report 
A. Technical Background 
B. Vicinity Map 
C. Planning Commission Resolution No. 88-56 
D. Ordinance No. 1090 
E. Project Plans 
F. Project Application 
G. Public Hearing Notice 
H. Draft Conditions of Approval 
I. Public Comments 



City of Brea 
Planning Commission  
Staff Report        Meeting Date: 01.24.2023 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Chair and Planning Commission  
 
FROM: Joanne Hwang, AICP, City Planner   
 
SUBJECT: Gaslight Square Redevelopment Project – Introduction.  

Environmental Impact Report No. 2022-02, General Plan Amendment 
No. 2022-02, Zone Change No. 2022-02, Plan Review No. 2022-02 and 
Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-03 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
The Applicant, Dwight Manley, requests approval of the Gaslight Square Redevelopment 

Project on an approximately 1.88-acres of land (Project Site) located on the north side of 

Imperial Highway, between Flower and Orange Avenues. The proposed Project would 

encompass the southern half portion of the Gaslight Square (Project Area). The proposed 

Project involves the demolition of four commercial/office buildings totaling approximately 

18,873 square feet and the construction of two new commercial buildings. The proposed 

buildings include a 2,000 square-foot drive-through restaurant building and a 6,000 

square foot commercial building (2,400 square feet for a sit-down restaurant space and 

3,600 square feet of medical or retail space). The Project also proposes new landscaping 

within the Project Area and would stripe new parking stalls. The Project does not identify 

specific tenants or businesses.  

 

The proposed Project requires approval/certification of the following:  

1) Environmental Impact Report (EIR): to analyze the environmental impacts 

resulting from construction and operation of the Project, which is prepared 

pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines;  

2) General Plan Amendment (GPA): to change the General Plan Land Use 

designation of the Project Site, inclusive of the Project Area, from Office/Financial 

Commercial to Mixed Use III; 



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 2 
  

3) Zone Change (ZC): to change the zoning designation of the Project Site, inclusive 

of the Project Area, from C-P (PD) Commercial, Administrative and Professional 

Office Zone (Precise Development) to MU-III (Mixed Use III);  

4) Plan Review (PR): to allow the demolition of 18,873 square feet of commercial 

offices to construct two new commercial buildings totaling approximately 8,000 

square feet; and   

5) Conditional Use Permit (CUP): to allow a 2,000 square foot drive through 

restaurant use. 

 

The above-mentioned entitlements herein are referred to as the “Project.” 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission take the following actions: 

 

1. Open the Public Hearing, receive testimony, and;  

2. Continue the item to the February 14, 2022 regular Planning Commission meeting. 

 

BACKGROUND  
Project Location 

The Project Site, the Gaslight Square Center, is an existing 1.88-acre commercial 

shopping center situated on north side of Imperial Highway, between Flower and Orange 

Avenues. The Project Area encompasses approximately 0.95-acres southern portion of 

the existing commercial center, as shown in Figure 1 below. The center is presently 

developed with six commercial/office buildings totaling approximately 26,288 square-feet. 

The existing and previous land uses include office, retail and medical uses. The site 

currently provides 91 on-site parking spaces and landscape throughout the site. The 

Project Site’s ingress and egress are primarily taken by a driveway on Flower Avenue 

and a driveway on Orange Avenue. There is no direct access taken from Imperial 

Highway. 

 



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 3 
  

FIGURE 1 – AERIAL VIEW OF THE PROJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

The Gaslight Square Center, inclusive of the Project Area, has a current General Plan 

Land Use designation of Office/Financial Commercial and Zoning designation of C-P (PD) 

Commercial, Administrative and Professional Office Zone (Precise Development). The 

surrounding land uses and zoning designation are shown in Tables 1 and 2 below and 

illustrated in Figure 1 above.  

 

TABLE 1 – SURROUNDING LAND USES   
North  City-owned parking lot & Residential  

East  Laurel Elementary Magnet School of Innovation & Career Exploration (Across 

Laurel Ave)  

South  Commercial uses (Across Imperial Highway)  

West  Office Building and City-owned parking structure (Across Orange Ave)  

  

 

N 

E. BIRCH ST. 

C-G 

C-G 

MU-I 

C-G 

MU-I 
MU-I 

MU-I 

R-2 

R-2 

R-3 

R-3 
R-3 

R-1 
R-1 

R-1 
P-F 



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 4 
  

TABLE 2 – SURROUNDING ZONING DESIGNATIONS 
North R-3 (Multiple Family Residential)  

East PF (Public Facilities) (Across Laurel Ave) 

South C-G (PD) General Commercial (Precise Development) (Across Imperial Highway)  

West MU-I (Mixed Use I) (Across Orange Ave)  

 

The Technical Background Summary and the Vicinity Map are provided as Attachment A 

and B, respectively.  
 
Entitlement History 

On November 22, 1998, the Planning Commission approved Resolution (PCR) No. 88-

56 (Attachment C) granting a CUP to allow the construction of four buildings within the 

Gaslight Square Center, and to allow retail and commercial uses to occupy 25% of the 

total building square footage. Resolution No. 88-56 also granted two Variances to allow 

reduced driveway widths along Orange and Flower Avenues.  

 

On March 7, 2006, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1090 (Attachment D) to 

rezone the Project Site from Brea Towne Specific Plan (BTSP) – Commercial, 

Administrative and Professional Office District to the C-P (PD) Commercial, 

Administrative and Professional Office (Precise Development) zone.  

 

On March 2, 2022, the Applicant filed planning applications for the Project which included 

the aforementioned entitlements. Based on initial review of the application material, the 

City determined that an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) would be prepared to identify 

potentially significant effects the Project would have on the environment in accordance 

with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).   

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Applicant proposes to redevelop 0.95 acres of the Gaslight Square Center by 

demolishing four existing commercial/office buildings totaling approximately 18,873 



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 5 
  
square feet, and constructing two new commercial buildings to facilitate a 2,000 square 

foot drive-through restaurant building and a 6,000 square foot commercial building, 

consisting of a 2,400 square-foot restaurant space and a 3,600 square-foot medical or 

retail space. The commercial buildings located on the northern portion of the site at 235 

S. Flower Avenue and 230 S. Orange Avenue (Brea Dentistry & Curtis Orthodontist) 

would remain.  

 

The drive-through and sit-down restaurant spaces would feature outdoor patio areas with 

canopies and enhanced landscaping around the proposed buildings. Other associated 

site improvements include striping of new parking spaces that would result in 92 on-site 

parking spaces for the entire center. Figure 2 below shows the proposed site plan and 

Figures 3 and 4 show the proposed floor plans.  

 
FIGURE 2 – PROPOSED SITE PLAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Drive-through 
restaurant  

Medical or 
Retail  

Sit-down 
restaurant 



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 6 
  

FIGURE 3 – PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN FOR SIT-DOWN RESTAURANT AND 
RETAIL/MEDICAL USE 

 

 
 

FIGURE 4 – PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN FOR DRIVE-THROUGH RESTAURANT  

 
The Project Plans and Project Application are Attachments E and F, respectively. 

 

Business Operations 

The Project does not identify any specific tenants or businesses for the proposed 

buildings. However, the restaurant and retail/medical uses within the western building are 

Sit-down Restaurant Space Retail or Medical Space 

Outdoor 
Patio Area 

 

Drive-through Restaurant  



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 7 
  
presumed to operate during daytime and evening hours, seven days per week, while the 

proposed drive-through restaurant use is presumed to operate 24-hours per day, seven 

days per week. These business hours for the proposed uses represent a conservative 

assumption, which allows the City to evaluate a wide range of operations for potential 

uses since no specific tenant has been identified.  

 

Architecture  

Conceptual architectural elevations for the proposed buildings feature a modern design 

by utilizing materials such as dark grey wood lap siding, treated grey smooth siding, 

mahogany wood series with a barnwood texture, and white colored brick as shown in 

Figure 5 below. Windows would consist of aluminum with clear anodized coating. Portions 

of the buildings would also feature living walls to be mounted on the exterior wall of the 

building. As stated in Condition No. 1, the Project would be conditioned to adhere 

substantially to the approved plans if the Project is approved. 

 

FIGURE 5 –CONCEPTUAL BUILDING ELEVATIONS  
 



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 8 
  

  

 

 
 
Landscaping  

The Project proposes the removal of 12 trees and the retention of eight trees. In 

accordance with the BCC, which mandates one tree for every 25 feet of frontage and one 

tree for every five parking spaces, the Project would maintain a minimum of 35 total trees 

on site. To promote sustainability, drought-tolerant plants and tree materials are proposed 

into the landscape design. The conceptual landscape plans for the Project Area are 

provided in Attachment E.  

 

ANALYSIS 
General Plan Amendment No. 2022-02: General Plan Amendment to Amend the General 
Plan Land Use. 
 
The Project proposes to amend the General Plan Land Use designation of the Gaslight 

Square Center, from Office/Financial Commercial to Mixed Use III. The proposed Mixed-



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 9 
  
Use III General Plan designation would support the development of the Project, as the 

Mixed-Use III designation allows all components of the Project. As stated in the General 

Plan, the Mixed-Use III designation “provides opportunities for the revitalization of 

deteriorated commercial centers allowing the development of neighborhood-serving 

commercial uses and very low-intensity offices paired with housing.”  

 

The Project seeks to revitalize the existing commercial corridor by allowing the 

development of neighborhood-serving commercial which include restaurants, medical 

offices and retail to serve the local community, and therefore, supports several goals and 

policies of the General Plan Community Development Element as follows: 

 
• Policy CD-1.1: Create neighborhoods that effectively integrate single-family 

and multi-family housing with convenience and neighborhood shopping 

centers, park and recreation areas, and other uses appropriate for the 

neighborhoods. 

• Policy CD-1.2: Maintain a land use structure that balances the provision of jobs 

and housing with available infrastructure and public and human services. 

• Policy CD-1.3: Endeavor to create a mixture of employment opportunities for 

all economic levels of citizens. 

• Policy CD-1.6: Accommodate a broad range of business uses that provide 

employment at all income levels and that make a positive contribution to the 

City’s tax base. 

• Policy CD-1.11: Maintain a mixture of business and retail uses within the 

community. 

• Policy CD-2.5: Improve existing small, commercial centers to improve access, 

aesthetics, and business success. 

• Goal CD-20: Encourage site planning within Commercial and Mixed-Use 

districts that functionally and visually integrated on-site facilities and uses, 

including buildings, services, access and parking.  



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 10 
  

• Policy CD-23.1: Encourage a broad range of business uses that provide 

employment at all income levels and that make a positive contribution to the 

City’s tax base.  

• Policy CD-23.2: Provide opportunities for mixed-use, office, manufacturing, and 

retail development that respond to market and community needs in terms of 

size, location, and cost. 

• Policy CD-23.4: Encourage new development along highly visible corridors that 

is pedestrian oriented and includes a mixture of retail, residential, and office 

uses. 

 
The General Plan further states the Mixed-Use III designation applies to specific 

properties within the Brea Towne Plaza Specific Plan, primarily those that front South 

Brea Boulevard and a portion of Imperial Highway. While the Brea Towne Specific Plan 

was repealed in 2005, the Project Site was previously a part of the specific plan which 

intended for future mixed-use development. 

 

Zone Change No. 2022-02: Zone Change to Amend the Zoning Designation 

The Project also requests a change in zoning designation of the Gaslight Square Center, 

inclusive of the Project Site, from C-P (PD) Commercial, Administrative and Professional 

Office Zone (Precise Development) to MU-III (Mixed Use III). This is consistent with the 

above described request for the General Plan Amendment to change the General Plan 

Land Use designation of the site from Office/Financial Commercial to MU-III (Mixed Use 

III).  Pursuant to the intent, purpose and development standards of the MU-III zone, the 

proposed request to change the zoning designation to MU-III is compatible with the 

surrounding uses as follows:  

 
• The MU-III zone is intended to provide opportunities for the revitalization of 

deteriorated commercial corridors and centers located on arterials by allowing 

development of neighborhood-serving commercial uses and vary low-intensity 

offices paired with residential uses. The Project is located on an arterial street, 



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 11 
  

Imperial Highway, and proposes to revitalize the underutilized commercial center 

by proposing new development to allow neighborhood-serving uses to the adjacent 

residential neighborhood.   

• The Project proposes a horizontal, commercial component and would act as a land 

buffer from other commercial and mixed-use land uses along Imperial Highway 

and Orange Avenue.  

• The Project Area design would continue to provide a transition from the arterial 

street frontage to the residential properties located behind the Project Site.  

• The Project is consistent with the development standards of MU-IIII, and therefore 

compatible with the surrounding area.  

 
Plan Review No. 2022-02: Redevelopment and allow the construction of two new 
commercial buildings. 
 
Pursuant to Section 20.258.010(E) of the Brea City Code (BCC), non-residential 

construction up to a maximum of 10,000 square feet of gross floor area in the Mixed-Use 

III (MU-III) Zone are subject to the review of the Community Development Director. 

However, due to the additional entitlement requests, this Plan Review is subject to the 

review and approval of the Planning Commission. As demonstrated in the Table 3 below, 

the Project Site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the proposed 

development as the Project complies with all applicable development standards.  

  

TABLE 3: DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS COMPLIANCE TABLE 
Development Standard Section 20.258.020 of the 

BCC (min./max) 
Proposed 

Building Height  35 feet maximum 22.5 feet 
Building Setbacks: 

Flower Street  
Imperial Highway 

Orange Avenue 
Interior Side 

 
8 feet* 
8 feet* 
8 feet* 
10 feet 

 
54 – 7 ½ feet 

18 - 4 feet 
16 feet 

194-½ feet 
Landscape Setbacks: 

Flower Street  
Imperial Highway 

Orange Avenue 
Interior Side 

 
8 feet  
8 feet  
8 feet 
5 feet 

 
8 feet 
8 feet  

12-2 ½ feet 
No change  



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 12 
  

Development Standard Section 20.258.020 of the 
BCC (min./max) 

Proposed 

Lot Coverage 65% 16.2% 
*Building setback identified as 8 feet based on landscape requirements. 

 
Parking  
As proposed, the Project provides 92 on-site parking spaces. The strict application of the 

BCC Section 20.08.040 requires the Project to provide 123 parking spaces. However, the 

BCC allows credits and reductions of required on-site parking spaces through various 

measures. Specifically, per the BCC Section 20.08.040(B)(2)(a) and 20.08.040(D), the 

Project qualifies for one parking credit for the drive-through queuing and one parking 

reduction for the Project’s proximity to a parking lot owned by the City. The proposed 266 

feet of drive-through car stacking lane qualifies the Project for 12 parking space credit.  In 

addition, the close proximity to the City-owned parking structure to the front entrance of 

the proposed buildings (approximately ranging from 176 feet to 309 feet) qualifies the 

Project for further reduction, as determined by the Community Development Director. As 

such, with the allowed credit and reduction, the Project’s required on-site parking is 

adjusted to 92 spaces. Table 4 below summarizes the final required on-site parking 

spaces for the Project. 

 
TABLE 4– REQUIRED BREA CITY CODE OFF-STREET PARKING SPACES 

Existing/Proposed Uses and Square Footage 
BCC Off-street 

parking 
requirements 

Required 
Parking 

Restaurant  

(N) Drive-through 
2,000 sq. ft. & 615 sq. ft. outdoor 
patio area. 
(N) Sit-down restaurant  
2,400 sq. ft. & 535 sq. ft. for outdoor 
patio area.  

1 space/75 sq. ft. 74 

Medical  

(N) Medical Office or Retail* 
3,600 sq. ft.  
 
(E) Orthodontist Office  
2,556 sq. ft. 
 
(E) Dentist Office  
2,716 square feet. 

5.5 spaces/1,000 
sq. ft. 49 

Subtotal 123 



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 13 
  
Drive-through 
credit 266 feet of car stacking  

1 car for every 23 
lineal feet of striped 
stacking lanes. 

-12 

Allowed reduction 
per BCC Section 
20.08.040(B)(2)(a) 

Located within 176 to 309 feet from a 
City-owned parking structure 

Located within 400 
ft. from a City-
owned parking 
facility 

-19 

  Total Required 92 
  Proposed On-site 92 
  Surplus/Deficit 0 

 
Regardless of the parking reduction, there would be sufficient parking available for the 

users of the Project. To ensure the off-site parking spaces are utilized, a Condition No. 

11 has been added to require the completion of a Parking Management Plan (PMP). The 

PMP is required to outline enforcement of on- and off-site parking, designated parking 

spaces, and drive-through queuing. Therefore, the Project as proposed, would provide 

adequate parking spaces. In addition, public transportation and bicycling are also 

available to the site visitors. The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) 

provides seven bus stations within 0.5 miles of the Project Site (approximately 5-7-minute 

walk), and the Project would install both short- and long-term bicycle racks. 

 
Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-03: Drive-through Restaurant  
Pursuant to the permitted uses in the Mixed Use III (MU-III) Zone listed in the BCC Section 

20.258.010(B), restaurants with drive-thru facilities are permitted subject to Planning 

Commission approval of a Conditional Use Permit. The Project would provide 266 feet of 

stacked parking within the drive-through lane, exceeding the minimum 115 feet per lane 

required by the BCC. While a tenant is not identified at this time, staff has included 

Condition No. 9 to require a queuing assessment for the future tenant to confirm that the 

operations would be adequate.  

 

In addition, the Project is compatible with surrounding uses as the Project is situated 

along Imperial Highway and in close proximity to Brea Downtown. Surrounding 

commercial uses include offices, restaurants, medical offices, gas station and a drive 



City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 14 
  
through-car wash. The use of the drive-through would maintain a mixture of commercial 

uses to serve the local community.  

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
The City as the lead agency with the assistance of T&B Planning, Inc. (T&B Planning) 

prepared the EIR in accordance with the authority and criteria contained in the CEQA 

Guidelines, and the environmental regulations of the City. The EIR is the highest level of 

environmental review under CEQA. The purpose of an EIR is to: 1) Evaluate a Project to 

determine if the Project may have significant effect on the environment; 2) Identify 

mitigation and analyze alternatives; and 3) Disclose the reasoning behind considering a 

Project although significant impacts are unable to be avoided or reduced. These specific 

objective and purpose are required through the EIR process and requires agencies to 

consider the environmental consequences of discretionary actions before approving 

plans, policies, or projects.  

 

EIR Timeline:  

• June 20, 2022: The City issued a Notice of Preparation (NOP) informing the public 

that an EIR is being prepared for the Project and provided information on the 

planned scoping meeting. The public comment period concluded on July 20, 2022.  

• June 28, 2022: The City held a scoping meeting on the Project’s EIR.  

• Upcoming: The Draft EIR is anticipated to be released for public review on or 

around January 24, 2022. Once the release date is confirmed, a separate notice 

(Notice of Availability) will be prepared and distributed in accordance with the 

CEQA Guidelines. The NOA serves as the start of a 45-day comment period for 

the DEIR. The City will also post the DEIR on the City’s Website 

(https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/166/Projects-in-Process), the California State Clearing 

House, and at the City Hall for public review.  

Any comments received on the DEIR prior to the Planning Commission’s deliberation of 

the Project will be forwarded to the Planning Commission. Ultimately, responses to all 

https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/166/Projects-in-Process


City of Brea 
EIR No. 2022-02, GP No. 2022-02, ZC No. 2022-02, PR No. 2022-02, CUP No. 2022-03 
Project: Gaslight Square 
Page No. 15 
  
comments received on the DEIR will be provided as a part of the Final EIR, which will 

be reviewed by the City Council. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENTS 
This Project was noticed in accordance with the City’s public noticing requirements, 

which involved mailed notices sent to property owners within 500-feet of the Project 

Site, and publication in the Brea Star-Progress. The public hearing notice for this Project 

is provided as Attachment G. As of the writing of this report, staff has received one 

public comment provided as Attachment I. 

 

NEXT STEPS 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission open the Public Hearing, receive 

testimony, and continue the item to the February 14, 2023 regular Planning Commission 

for its deliberation.   

 
Prepared by: 
Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez 
Associate Planner  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Technical Background  
B. Vicinity Map  
C. Planning Commission Resolution No. 88-56  
D. Ordinance No. 1090 
E. Project Plans  
F. Project Application  
G. Public Noticing  
H. Draft Conditions of Approval 
I. Public Comments  



TECHNICAL BACKGROUND 

Case No: Environmental Impact Report No. 2022-02 
General Plan Amendment No. 2022-02 
Zone Change No. 2022-02  
Plan Review No. 2022-02  

Property Location: On north side of Imperial Highway, between Flower 
Avenue and Orange Avenue  

Project Site Size: 0.95 acres within the 1.88-acre Brea Gaslight Commercial 
Center  

Building Size: • 2,000 SF Drive-through Restaurant Building
• 6,000 SF Two-tenant Building (2,400 SF restaurant and

3,600 square feet medical or retail)

Applicant: Dwight Manley  
330 W. Birch Street, Suite E201 
Brea, CA 92821  

General Plan Designation: Office/Financial Commercial 

Zoning Designation: C-P (PD) Commercial, Administrative and Professional
Office (Precise Development) zone

Adjacent Zoning 

North: R-3 (Multiple Family Residential)

South: C-G (PD) General Commercial (Precise Development) -
(Across Imperial Hwy)

West: MU-I (Mixed Use I) - (Across Orange Ave) 

East: PF (Public Facilities) 

Site and Neighborhood 
Characteristics: 

The project site consists of 0.98-acre of land located at the 
southern portion of the 1.88 acres of the Brea Gaslight 
Commercial Center. The site is surrounded by a mix of 
uses, including medical offices, residential, commercial and 
public facility uses.  

Public Hearing Notices and 
Outreach: 

Legal Notice was published in the Brea Star-Progress on 
January 12, 2023, and approximately 222 notices were 
sent to all property owners within a 500-foot radius of the 
subject property. 

ATTACHMENT A



SUBJECT PROPERTY AND VICINITY MAP 

DATE:  JANUARY 24, 2023 

CASE NO:  
ACCELA RECORD NO. PLN-2022-00011 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT NO. 2022-02 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2022-02 

ZONE CHANGE NO. 2022-02 
PLAN REVIEW NO. 2022-02 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 2022-03 

N 

ATTACHMENT B



ATTACHMENT C



ATTACHMENT C



ATTACHMENT C



ATTACHMENT C



ATTACHMENT C



ATTACHMENT C



ATTACHMENT C



ATTACHMENT C



ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



D

T

S

D

 1 2

4

7891011

13

12

5

6

3

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

EV PARKING

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

12/13/2022
NOT FOR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

C1.0PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN

SCALE

LEGEND:

CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

SITE DATA

·

·

·

SIGN INFORMATION

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

VICINITY MAP

N
O
 
S
C
A
LESite

NORTH

LIST OF REQUIRED
ENTITLEMENTS

TITLE REPORT EXCEPTIONS

ZONING CONFORMANCE TABLE

“
” 



D

T

S

D

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

12/8/2022
NOT FOR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

EXISTING SITE PLAN

SCALE

LEGEND:

SITE DATA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

NORTH

C1.1

VICINITY MAP

N
O
 
S
C
A
LE

Site

“
” 



D

D

D

T

S S

D

PROPOSED DRIVE-THRU
RESTAURANT

EXISTING SEWER MANHOLE

 1

2

4

7

8

9

10

11

13

12

5

6

3

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

4

5

6

4
9

5
9

10
3

7

6

5

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

3

2

6

8

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

C
LE

AN
AI

R
/

VA
N

PO
O

L/
EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

EV
 P

AR
KI

N
G

SOUTH FLOWER AVENUE

IM
PE

R
IA

L 
H

IG
H

W
AY

SOUTH ORANGE AVENUE

SINGLE FAMILY
R-3 RESIDENTIAL

 SENIOR
APARTMENTS

R-3 RESIDENTIAL

HOUSES
R-3 RESIDENTIAL

R-3 RESIDENTIAL

HOUSES
R-3 RESIDENTIAL

HOUSES
R-3 RESIDENTIAL

R-3 RESIDENTIAL

LAUREL SCHOOL
PF PUBLIC FACILITY

C-P ADMINISTRATIVE AND
PROFESSIONAL OFFICE

483 FULL STALL
PARKING STRUCTURE

MU-1
AT&T BUILDING

MU-1

CHURCH

USA GASOLINE

DENTAL GROUP

GARDEN GREETERS

TAPS FISH HOUSE
AND BREWERY

MU-1

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

12/8/2022
NOT FOR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

C1.2SITE UTILIZATION MAP

NO
RTH

LEGEND:



T

4

5

6

4 9

59103

3

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

9/20/2022
NOT FOR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

C2.0EXISTING PARKING
PLAN

LEGEND:

NORTH

SCALE

EXISTING CONDITIONS

VICINITY MAP

N
O
 
S
C
A
LE

Site



D

D

D

 1 2

4

7891011

13

12

5

6

3

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

4

5

6

4 9

59103

7

6

5

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

3

2

6

8

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

EV PARKING

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

12/8/2022
NOT FOR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

NORTH

SCALE

PROPOSED PARKING NOTES

PROPOSED PARKING
PLAN

PROPOSED CONDITIONS
LEGEND:

C2.1

VICINITY MAP

N
O
 
S
C
A
LE

Site



D

D

S

D

D

T

S

D

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

EV PARKING

AL
LE

Y

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

12/8/2022
NOT FOR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

NORTH

SCALE

PRELIMINARY
GRADING PLAN

C3.0

LEGEND

GRADING AND DRAINAGE
NOTES

ESTIMATED
EARTHWORK
QUANTITIES

TITLE REPORT
EXCEPTIONS

BASIS OF BEARINGS

BENCHMARK



255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE PRELIMINARY

GRADING DETAILS
C3.1

N O  D U M P I N G
D R A I N S     T O

O C E A N

1STENCIL DETAIL

N O  D U M P I N G   D R A I N S   T O  O C E A N



11/8/2022
NOT FOR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE PRELIMINARY

GRADING DETAILS
C3.2

1DRAINAGE SLEEVE DETAIL



CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

EV PARKING

D

D

S

D

D

T

S

D

12/8/2022
NOT FOR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

NORTH

SCALE

C4.0PRELIMINARY
UTILITY PLAN

LEGEND

GENERAL NOTES

TITLE REPORT EXCEPTIONS



D

D

T

S

D

 1 2

4

7891011

13

12

5

6

3

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

4

5

6

4 9

59103

7

6

5

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

3

2

6

8

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

EV PARKING

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

12/8/2022

C5.0TRUCK TURN EXHIBIT

SCALE

NORTH



D

D

T

S

D

 1 2

4

7891011

13

12

5

6

3

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

4

5

6

4 9

59103

7

6

5

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

3

2

6

8

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

EV PARKING

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

12/8/2022
NOT FOR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

TRUCK TURN EXHIBIT

SCALE

NORTH

C5.1



D

D

T

S

D

 1 2

4

7891011

13

12

5

6

3

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

4

5

6

4 9

59103

7

6

5

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

3

2

6

8

14

15

16
17

18

192021

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

EV PARKING

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

12/8/2022
NOT FOR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

CIRCULATION PLAN

SCALE

NORTH

C5.2



TREES QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT HEIGHT/SPREAD CAL. WUCOLS

1 EXISTING PALM / TO BE REMOVED - - - -

3 EXISTING PALM / TO REMAIN - - - -
PROTECT IN PLACE

5 EXISTING TREE / TO REMAIN - - - -
PROTECT IN PLACE

12 KOELREUTERIA PANICULATA / GOLDEN RAIN TREE 36" BOX LOW

15 LAGERSTROEMIA INDICA 'CATAWBA' / CATAWBA CRAPE MYRTLE 24" BOX LOW

SHRUBS QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT. SPACING WUCOLS

1 AGAVE DESMETTIANA 'VARIEGATA' / VARIEGATED SMOOTH AGAVE 15 GAL. 3` O.C. LOW

9 AGAVE WEBERI 'ARIZONA STAR' / ARIZONA STAR WEBER AGAVE 15 GAL. 6` O.C. LOW

191 DIANELLA REVOLUTA 'LITTLE REV' / LITTLE REV FLAX LILY 5 GAL. 2` O.C. LOW

91 LOMANDRA LONGIFOLIA 'BREEZE' TM / BREEZE MAT RUSH 5 GAL. 3` O.C. LOW

158 MUHLENBERGIA CAPILLARIS / PINK MUHLY GRASS 5 GAL. 3` O.C. MODERATE

66 NANDINA DOMESTICA 'LEMON LIME' / LEMON LIME HEAVENLY BAMBOO 5 GAL. 3` O.C. LOW

29 OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE OLLIE' TM / LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE 5 GAL. 4` O.C. LOW

84 PENNISETUM ORIENTALE / ORIENTAL FOUNTAIN GRASS 5 GAL. 2` O.C. LOW

182 RHAPHIOLEPIS UMBELLATA 'MINOR' / DWARF YEDDA HAWTHORN 5 GAL. 4` O.C. LOW

GROUND COVERS QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT. SPACING WUCOLS

374 CAREX DIVULSA / EUROPEAN GREY SEDGE 1 GAL. 2` O.C. LOW

135 SF EXISTING LANDSCAPE / TO REMAIN - PROTECT IN PLACE - - -

103 GREVILLEA LANIGERA 'PROSTRATE' / PROSTRATE WOOLY GREVILLEA 5 GAL. 3` O.C. LOW

PLANT SCHEDULE

D

T

S

D

ORTHODONTIST
OFFICE
2,556 SF

DENTIST
OFFICE
2,716 SF

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

CLEAN
AIR/

VANPOOL/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

C
LEAN
AIR

/
VAN

PO
O

L/EV

EV PARKING

RESTAURANT
2,400 SF MEDICAL

3,600 SF DRIVE-THRU RESTAURANT
2,000 SF

IMPERIAL HIGHWAY

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

O
R

AN
G

E 
AV

E

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

ROW LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

ROW LINE

ROW LINE

ROW LINE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

ROW LINE

MONUMENT SIGN - BY OTHERS

LIMIT OF WORK

SITE LIGHT - BY
OTHERS (TYP.)

TRASH ENCLOSURE
- BY OTHERS

BIKE LOCKERS - BY OTHERS

BIKE RACKS - BY OTHERS

SITE FURNISHINGS - BY OTHERS

EXISTING 6' HEIGHT LANTANA
MONTEVIDENSIS HEDGE TO

REMAIN - PROTECT IN PLACE.

TRASH ENCLOSURE
- BY OTHERS

EXISTING SCULPTURE - TO REMAIN

255 E. IMPERIAL HIGHWAY
BREA, CA 92821

1100 TOWN & COUNTRY RD, SUITE 700
ORANGE, CA 92868
(714) 939-1030

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

NOT FOR C
ONSTRUCTIO

N BREA GASLIGHT
SQUARE

NORTH

SCALE

L1.0PRELIMINARY
LANDSCAPE PLAN

LANDSCAPE NOTE:

THE SELECTION OF PLANT MATERIAL IS BASED ON CLIMATIC, AESTHETIC, AND
MAINTENANCE CONSIDERATIONS. ALL PLANTING AREAS SHALL BE PREPARED WITH
APPROPRIATE SOIL AMENDMENTS, FERTILIZERS AND APPROPRIATE SUPPLEMENTS
BASED UPON A SOILS REPORT FROM AN AGRICULTURAL SUITABILITY SOIL SAMPLE
TAKEN FROM THE SITE. DECOMPOSED GRANITE SHALL FILL IN BETWEEN SHRUBS TO
SHIELD THE SOIL FROM THE SUN, EVAPOTRANSPIRATION, AND RUN-OFF. ALL SHRUB
BEDS SHALL BE MULCHED TO A 3" DEPTH TO HELP CONSERVE WATER, LOWER SOIL
TEMPERATURE, AND REDUCE WEED GROWTH. THE SHRUBS SHALL BE ALLOWED TO
GROW IN THEIR NATURAL FORMS. ALL LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL FOLLOW THE
GUIDELINES SET FORTH BY THE CITY OF BREA MUNICIPAL CODE.

THE PROJECT WILL DISTURB 68.0% OF THE PROPERTY, A TOTAL OF 0.95-ACRES WITHIN A
TOTAL OF 1.44-ACRES, CONSISTING OF 2 PARCELS OWNED BY ONE BERRY, LLC. AS A
RESULT, 12 TREES WILL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED BY 26 PROPOSED STREET AND
PARKING LOT TREES. THE PROJECT PROPOSED TO PROTECT 5 EXISTING TREES AND 3
EXISTING PALMS.

I HAVE COMPLIED WITH THE CRITERIA OF THE ORDINANCE AB-1881 AND APPLIED
THEM FOR THE EFFICIENT USE OF WATER IN THE LANDSCAPE DESIGN PLAN.

________________
MICHAEL P. MADSEN, LLA 5798

IRRIGATION NOTE:

AN AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE INSTALLED TO PROVIDE 100% COVERAGE
FOR ALL PLANTING AREAS SHOWN ON THE PLAN. THE WATER SUPPLY FOR THIS SITE IS
A POTABLE WATER CONNECTION AND A DEDICATED IRRIGATION METER WILL BE
PROVIDED. LOW VOLUME EQUIPMENT SHALL PROVIDE SUFFICIENT WATER FOR PLANT
GROWTH WITH NO WATER LOSS DUE TO WATER CONTROLLERS, AND OTHER
NECESSARY IRRIGATION EQUIPMENT. ALL POINT SOURCE SYSTEM SHALL BE
ADEQUATELY FILTERED AND REGULATED PER THE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED
DESIGN PARAMETERS. ALL IRRIGATION IMPROVEMENTS SHALL FOLLOW THE
GUIDELINES SET FORTH BY THE CITY OF BREA MUNICIPAL CODE.

STREET TREE REQUIREMENTS

PARKING LOT TREES

SITE DATA



RETAIL / MEDICAL

LOBBY

PUBLIC AREA

RESTROOM - 1

RESTROOM - 2

SERVICE AREA

STORAGE

PATIO SEATING
AREA (BY FUTURE
TENANT)

PROPOSED
RAILING BY
FUTURE TENANT

ELECTRICAL /
TELEPHONE ROOM /
ROOF ACCESS

NOTE:
INTERIOR LAYOUT SUBJECT
TO CHANGE BASED ON
FUTURE TENANT DESIGNS

NOTE:
INTERIOR LAYOUT SUBJECT
TO CHANGE BASED ON
FUTURE TENANT DESIGNS

Scale:

Date:

LW
Job No.

Revisions:

Sheet Contents:

85
8.

57
3.

89
98

 f
ax

85
8.

57
3.

89
99

9
5
6
0
 C

an
d
id

a 
ST

.
Sa

n 
D

ie
go

, 
C

A
 9

2
1
2
6
-4

5
6
0

en
gi

ne
er

s 
+ 

ar
ch

ite
ct

s

lw
a@

ly
o
n
sw

ar
re

n
.c

o
m

B
R

E
A

, C
A

G
A

S
L
IG

H
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

FLOOR PLAN

A1.0

FLOOR PLAN 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/09/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
BREA2101

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/14/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS IS A 24x36 SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/14/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 NORTH



PUBLIC AREA

BAR / SERVICE AREA

RESTROOM - 1

RESTROOM - 2

WORKROOM/
RECEIVING

PATIO SEATING AREA
(BY FUTURE TENANTS)

PLANTER AREASIDEWALK AREA

Scale:

Date:

LW
Job No.

Revisions:

Sheet Contents:

85
8.

57
3.

89
98

 f
ax

85
8.

57
3.

89
99

9
5
6
0
 C

an
d
id

a 
ST

.
Sa

n 
D

ie
go

, 
C

A
 9

2
1
2
6
-4

5
6
0

en
gi

ne
er

s 
+ 

ar
ch

ite
ct

s

lw
a@

ly
o
n
sw

ar
re

n
.c

o
m

B
R

E
A

, C
A

G
A

S
L
IG

H
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

FLOOR PLAN

A1.1

FLOOR PLAN 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/09/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
BREA2101

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/14/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS IS A 24x36 SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 NORTH











asanchez
Text Box
NOTE:THE FOLLOWING EXTERIOR WALL CLADDING COMPLIES WITH :   - CERACLAD: ICC-ES-EVALUATION REPORT                                       ESR-1627    - ALLURA: ICC-ES-EVALUATION REPORT                                       ESR-1668 



S

R4

R4

R4

R5

R5

R5

R5

R5

R3

R4

R5

R3

R5

R5

R4

R3H

R3H

R3H

0.7 1.1 1.4 1.5

1.7 1.8 1.6 2.2 2.0

2.4 3.0 2.5 2.8

1.1 2.1 2.5 3.0 3.4

0.6 0.8 1.5 2.7

1.3 1.5 1.1 1.7 2.5

1.9 1.9 1.5 1.0 1.5 1.6 1.8

2.1 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.9 1.3 1.5 1.6 2.0 2.4

3.1 2.5 1.8 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.0 3.4 4.3

3.3 3.0 2.4 1.7 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.2 3.3 4.8

3.0 2.8 2.3 1.8 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.3

2.3 2.8 2.6 2.3 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.6

2.4 2.6 2.1 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.5 1.8 1.4 1.5 1.3

2.2 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.6 3.3 1.8

2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.2 2.4 3.3 4.5

1.0 1.4 1.6 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.3 2.6 3.5 2.4

1.2 1.1 1.1 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.6 2.2

1.7 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.1 2.1 1.6 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 1.9

3.2 2.9 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 1.6 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.6

3.8 4.1 2.4 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.7 3.1

3.3 2.3 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.8 2.4 3.8 4.5

2.3 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.9 2.4

1.4 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.4

1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7

1.3 1.9 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 3.0 3.1 2.6 1.8 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6

1.5 2.8 4.2 3.6 2.5 1.5 1.2 1.3 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.5 2.7 2.8 3.4 4.5 3.7 2.0 1.2 0.8 0.6

3.1 4.0 2.5 1.1 0.8 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.4 2.7 3.3 2.0 1.0 0.7

1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.3 1.2

1.6 1.7 1.6 1.3 1.2 0.8

1.5 1.5 1.3 0.8

1.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.6

0.8

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.7

0.5

0.7

0.9

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.7

0.9

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.8

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.4

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

DESCRIPTIONREVISED DATE

CHECKED BY
DRAWN BY
DATE
PROJECT NO.

SEAL

B
R

E
A

 G
A

S
LI

G
H

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

2
5
5
 E

. 
IM

PE
R
IA

L 
H

IG
H

W
A
Y

B
R
E
A
, 

C
A
 9

2
8
2
1

SITE PHOTOMETRIC

S-LTG

Calculation Summary

Label Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min

Parking Lot Fc 1.93 4.8 0.6 3.22 8.00

Property Line Fc 0.34 0.9 0.0 N.A. N.A.

Luminaire Schedule

Qty Label LLF Description Lum. Lumens

2 R3 0.900 Lithonia RSX1 LED P2 30K R3 8959

8 R5 0.900 Lithonia RSX1 LED P2 30K R5 9197

4 R4 0.900 Lithonia RSX1 LED P2 30K R4 9076

3 R3-HS 0.900 Lithonia RSX1 LED P2 30K R3 HS (House Side Shield) 6287

KEY NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERIAL HIGHWAY  

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOWER AVENUE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE AVENUE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE AVENUE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
DO NOT ENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-09-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
2219500

AutoCAD SHX Text
S&B

AutoCAD SHX Text
phone  913.345.2127   fax  913.345.0617

AutoCAD SHX Text
25618  west 103rd St   olathe, ks 66061

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEA

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USITE PHOTOMETRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLUMINATION AREAS WHERE A MINIMUM OF 1 FOOT CANDLE IS REQUIRED AT THE WALKING SURFACE AND PATH OF TRAVEL TO PUBLIC WAY (CBC SEC.1008.2.3). THESE LIGHTS WILL BE PROVIDED ONCE PLANS ARE PROVIDED AND SUBMITTED FOR PLAN CHECK. 



John Pollock 951-346-2807

john.pollock@kimley-horn.com

PLN-2022-00011

C. MADRIGAL-GONZALEZ

EIR NO. 2022-02, GP NO. 2022-02, ZC NO. 2022-02, 
PR NO. 2022-02, CUP NO. 2022-03

MARCH 3, 2022















 

kimley-horn.com 1100 W. Town and Country Road, Suite 700, Orange, CA 92868 714 939 1030 
 

October 26th, 2022 

City of Brea 
Community Development Department – Planning Division 
1 Civil Center Circle 
Brea, CA 92821 

RE: Brea Gaslight Square Project Description – PLN-2022-00011 

Brea Gaslight Square is located on Imperial Highway, approximately 490 feet east of S. Brea Boulevard 
and just outside the Downtown Brea area that boasts shopping, restaurant, and theaters serving the 
City of Brea and surrounding communities.  Manley Fanticola Holdings, LLC, owns the Brea Gaslight 
Square center, which was previously developed with multi-tenant office and retail spaces.  Manley 
Fanticola seeks to enhance the center by redeveloping a portion of the site.  Proposed improvements 
consist of three of five buildings that are located closest to Imperial Highway.  The site is currently in 
C-P (PD) Commercial, Administrative, and Professional Office Zone (Precise Development) Zone. The 
site is bounded to the south by Imperial Highway, and to the east by S. Flower Street.  Laurel 
Elementary School is located east of S. Flower Street.  The subject property is adjacent to commercial 
and professional office uses to the north, south, and west.  Properties to the south are zoned General 
Commercial.  To the west, the zoning designation is Mixed Use.   

 

 

 



Page 2 

kimley-horn.com 1100 W. Town and Country Road, Suite 700, Orange, CA 92868 714 939 1030 
 

The new construction will involve the demolition of four existing buildings: 

1. Two (2) 2,799 square foot office uses on Orange Avenue 
2. One 3,166 square foot office use adjacent to Imperial Highway 
3. One two story 10,109 square foot office use building at the northwest corner of Imperial 

Highway and Flower Avenue 

The proposed project is consistent with the City of Brea General Plan land use designation of Mixed-
Use III (MU-III). The MU-III designation is intended to provide opportunities for the revitalization of 
deteriorated commercial centers by allowing the development of neighborhood-serving commercial and 
low-intensity offices paired with housing. This shopping center could be considered as the horizontal 
commercial component that supports the neighboring high-density residential to the north, and a 
transition from other General Commercial (C-G) land uses along Imperial Highway to the more intense 
and denser MU-I zone directly to the west within the Brea Downtown. As part of the project entitlements, 
a zone change to MU-III would also be required. The project proposes 2,400 square feet of restaurant 
use, 3,600 square feet of retail and medical use, and a 2,000 square foot restaurant with drive-through. 
The proposed project structures would have enhanced architectural features including simulated wood 
paneling and ceraclad, as well as “living walls” that incorporate landscape and trellises into the wall 
plant. Therefore, the proposed project would be consistent with the intent and purpose of the General 
Plan MU-III designation and MU-III zoning. Table 1: General Plan Consistency Analysis summarizes 
the project’s consistency with applicable General Plan goals and policies. 

Table 1: General Plan Consistency Analysis 
Goals Policies Consistency Analysis 
Chapter 2: Community Development  
Goal CD-1: Provide a balance 
of land uses to meet the present 
and future needs of all 
residents.  

Policy CD-1.1: Create 
neighborhoods that effectively 
integrate single-family and multi-
family housing with convenience 
and neighborhood shopping 
centers, park and recreation areas, 
and other uses appropriate for the 
neighborhoods.  

Consistent. The proposed project 
would include a restaurant, retail, 
medical uses, and a drive-through 
that would support the neighboring 
residential uses. Therefore, the 
project would be consistent with or 
otherwise would not conflict with this 
policy.  

Policy CD-1.2: Maintain a land use 
structure that balances the 
provision of jobs and housing with 
available infrastructure and public 
and human services.  

Consistent. The proposed project 
would include restaurant, retail, 
medical, and drive-through uses that 
would support the neighboring high-
density residential to the north and 
serve as a transition from other C-G 
land uses along Imperial Highway to 
the more intense and denser MU-I 
zone directly to the west within the 



Page 3 

kimley-horn.com 1100 W. Town and Country Road, Suite 700, Orange, CA 92868 714 939 1030 
 

Table 1: General Plan Consistency Analysis 
Goals Policies Consistency Analysis 

Brea Downtown. The project 
proposes 2,400 square feet of 
restaurant use, 3,600 square feet of 
retail and medical use, and a 2,000 
square foot restaurant with drive-
through, all of which would provide 
jobs and useful public and human 
services within walking distance of 
the surrounding residential uses. The 
proposed project is an in-fill 
development, and would connect to 
existing electrical, natural gas, water, 
sewer, and storm drainage facilities 
that are currently serving the site. 
Project implementation would require 
minor infrastructure improvements 
including new points of connection.  
Therefore, the project would be 
consistent with or otherwise would 
not conflict with this policy.  

Policy CD-1.3: Endeavor to create 
a mixture of employment 
opportunities for all economic 
levels of citizens.  

Consistent. The proposed project 
would include restaurant, retail, 
medical, and drive-through uses that 
would provide jobs within walking 
distance of the surrounding 
residential uses. Therefore, the 
project would be consistent with or 
otherwise would not conflict with this 
policy. 

Policy CD-1.6: Accommodate a 
broad range of business uses that 
provide employment at all income 
levels and that make a positive 
contribution to the City’s tax base.  

Consistent. The proposed project 
would include 2,400 square feet of 
restaurant use, 3,600 square feet of 
retail and medical use, and a 2,000 
square foot drive-through use. These 
proposed building uses would 
provide employment opportunities at 
various income levels including, 
restaurant managers, doctors, 
nurses, dentist, medical assistants, 



Page 4 

kimley-horn.com 1100 W. Town and Country Road, Suite 700, Orange, CA 92868 714 939 1030 
 

Table 1: General Plan Consistency Analysis 
Goals Policies Consistency Analysis 

and waiters. These employment 
opportunities range from hourly 
positions to full-time salaried 
positions. Further, the proposed retail 
and restaurant uses would provide 
opportunities for existing local 
workers/residents/visitors to spend 
dollars at future Brea businesses, 
which would contribute to the City’s 
tax base.  
 
Therefore, the proposed project 
would accommodate a broad range 
of business uses that would provide 
employment opportunities at various 
income ranges, as well as provide 
additional opportunities for existing 
and future workers/residents/visitors 
to spend dollars within Brea. 
Therefore, the project would be 
consistent with or otherwise would 
not conflict with this policy. 

Policy CD-1.11: Maintain a mixture 
of business and retail uses within 
the community.  

Consistent. The proposed project 
would include 2,400 square feet of 
restaurant use, 3,600 square feet of 
retail and medical use, and a 2,000 
square foot drive-through use. Thus, 
this project would contribute to the 
maintenance of a mixture of business 
and retail uses within the community. 
Therefore, the project would be 
consistent with or otherwise not 
conflict with this policy.  

Goal CD-2: Preserve and 
enhance the character of 
neighborhoods in northwest 
Brea.  

Policy CD-2.5: Improve existing 
small, commercial centers to 
improve access, aesthetics, and 
business success. 

Consistent.  The project proposes 
the demolition of four existing 
buildings and the construction of a 
2,000 square foot restaurant with a 
drive-through with an outdoor seating 
area, and a 6,000 square foot 



Page 5 

kimley-horn.com 1100 W. Town and Country Road, Suite 700, Orange, CA 92868 714 939 1030 
 

Table 1: General Plan Consistency Analysis 
Goals Policies Consistency Analysis 

commercial building consisting of 
2,400 square feet of restaurant and 
3,600 square feet of medical or retail 
space. The project proposes 
enhanced architectural features 
including simulated wood paneling 
and ceraclad façade, living walls that 
incorporate landscape and trellises 
into the wall plane, and metal 
awnings and aluminum framing of the 
windows and doors. Additionally, new 
drought-tolerant landscaping would 
accent the building and parking lot. 
The proposed project would be 
brought up to current utility and 
stormwater requirements and would 
reconstruct two driveways on Orange 
Avenue and Flower Avenue to 
current City of Brea commercial 
driveway standards. Therefore, the 
project would improve the existing 
commercial center and would be 
consistent with or otherwise would 
not conflict with this policy. 

Chapter 4: Community Resources 
Goal CR-13: Improve air quality.  Consistent. The proposed project 

would include infrastructure and 
amenities that would contribute to 
improved air quality in the area. The 
proposed project would include an 
EV charging station, short term bike 
racks, long term bike lockers, and 
pedestrian walkways for non-
vehicular circulation. Therefore, the 
project would be consistent with or 
otherwise would not conflict with this 
policy. 

 



Page 6 

kimley-horn.com 1100 W. Town and Country Road, Suite 700, Orange, CA 92868 714 939 1030 
 

The MU-III zoning district intends to provide opportunities for the revitalization of deteriorated 
commercial corridors and centers located on arterials by allowing the development of neighborhood-
serving commercial and providing a transition from the arterial street frontage to residential properties 
behind the Mixed-Use III property. Therefore, the proposed restaurant, retail, and medical are permitted 
uses by right in the Mixed-Use III zone. The drive-through restaurant is permitted with a Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP). The proposed zone change would implement the General Plan MU-III land use 
designation that the applicant is requesting. Conformance with the MU-III land use designation is 
described above. 

The subject property, Brea Gaslight Square, is located on Imperial Highway between South Orange 
Avenue and South Flower Avenue, just outside the Downtown Brea area which contains shopping, 
restaurants, and theaters serving the City of Brea and surrounding communities. The proposed project 
seeks to enhance Brea Gaslight Square by redeveloping a portion of the site. Proposed improvements 
consist of three of five buildings that are located closest to Imperial Highway. The project proposes the 
demolition of two (2) 2,799 square foot office uses on Orange Avenue, one (1) 3,166 square foot office 
use adjacent to Imperial Highway, and one (1) two-story 10,109 square foot office use building at the 
northwest corner of Imperial Highway and Flower Avenue. A 6,000 square foot building (2,400 square 
feet of restaurant use and 3,600 square feet of retail/medical use) would be constructed at the northeast 
corner of Imperial Highway and Orange Avenue. Additionally, a 2,000 square foot drive-through use 
would be constructed at the northwest corner of Imperial Highway and Flower Avenue.  

In the proposed condition, a total of 123 parking stalls will be required. Applicant is requesting that 
queuing credit be considered for the project for the amount of stacking being provided for the drive-
through use, estimating a 12-stall credit, bringing the total required parking to 111. An additional 19 
cars are allocated to the site from the off-street parking provided on Orange Avenue, for a total of 104 
stalls being provided to the site. Additionally, per Brea City Code Section 20.08.040(B)(2)(a): Where a 
parking lot owned by the city is located within four hundred (400) feet of the front door or main entry of 
the building the required parking can be reduced. There is an existing public parking garage less than 
400 feet adjacent to the site on Orange Avenue that is anticipated to serve the proposed project. 
Therefore, it is concluded that parking will not be an issue for this project.  

There are two points of access and full movement driveways existing on the site, one from Orange 
Avenue and the other from Flower Avenue. Both driveways would be reconstructed to current City of 
Brea commercial driveway standards and all parcels and uses would have driveway access. Therefore, 
the subject property is suitable for the proposed project in terms of access.  

The proposed project would redevelop an existing developed site and propose commercial retail uses 
that are consistent with nearby existing land uses within the Downtown Brea area. The proposed project 
would be compatible with the permitted uses and would adhere to all zoning requirements for 
development standards. 

The proposed project would demolish four existing buildings and construct two buildings totaling 8,000 
square feet. The proposed project would develop restaurant, retail, and medical uses, none of which 



Page 7 

kimley-horn.com 1100 W. Town and Country Road, Suite 700, Orange, CA 92868 714 939 1030 
 

would be detrimental to the use of land in any adjacent zone. Therefore, the proposed change of zone 
would not be detrimental to the use of land in any adjacent zone. 

In order to process the requested application, the Applicant is requesting the following entitlements: 

1. Plan Review No. 2022-03 – For the new construction of two buildings  

2. General Plan Amendment No. 2022-02 (Office/Financial Commercial (C-P (PD) to Mixed Use 
III (MU-III)) 

3. Zone Change No. 2022-02 (C-P(PD) to MU-III) 

4. Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-03 – To allow the drive through restaurant  

At the time of application, specific tenants have not been identified for Brea Gaslight Square.  It is 
anticipated that individual tenants will be obligated to the terms of approval related to this application 
and individual tenants will be responsible for building permits. 

 





 
 

September 6, 2022 

 

City of Brea 

Planning Division 

One Civic Center Circle  

Brea, California 92821 

 

RE: Letter of Support for Gaslight Square Redevelopment Project 

 

Dear City of Brea, Planning Division: 

 

I am the property owner of Parcel No. 2, Building C, described in Parcel Map No. 88-324 (Orange 

County Assessor’s Parcel No. 319-292-31), that is part of Gaslight Square in the City of Brea.  I am 

aware of the ongoing efforts to secure approval for the redevelopment of certain portions of Gaslight 

Square.   

 

Also, I have been informed that the re-development will require an amendment of the general land 

use plan from Office/Financial Commercial to Mixed Use III, and a zoning change from Commercial, 

Administrative, and Professional Office (C-P) to Mixed Use III (MU-III).  I am in support of the re-

development project and the proposed land use amendment/zoning changes, as long as my business 

will not be negatively affected in terms of customer access and parking availability.  I trust the city of 

Brea to make wise decisions as they look to improve life for the residents and businesses of our fine 

city. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 
 

Richard M. Curtis, DDS, MS 

Curtis Orthodontics 
230 South Orange Avenue 
Brea, California 92821 
714-990-5414 
rcurtis@breasmiles.com 

mailto:rcurtis@breasmiles.com


CITY OF BREA 
PLANNING COMMISSION NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 
NO. 2022-02, ZONE CHANGE NO. 2022-02, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 2022-03, PLAN 
REVIEW NO. 2022-02 AND ENVIRONEMENTAL IMPACT REPORT NO. 2022-02 FOR THE 
GASLIGHT SQUARE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT. 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to State Law, that a public hearing will be held by the Planning 
Commission to determine whether or not the subject request shall be approved under the provisions of 
State Law and the Brea City Code as follows: 

DATE AND TIME Tuesday, January 24, 2023 6:00 p.m. 
OF HEARING: All interested persons may appear and be heard at that time. 

PLACE OF Brea Civic & Cultural Center, Council Chambers 
HEARING: 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, CA 92821 

FURTHER INFORMATION MAY BE OBTAINED BY CALLING THE PLANNING DIVISION AT (714) 
990-7674 OR BY EMAILING planner@cityofbrea.net. ALL PERSONS WISHING TO PARTICIPATE
BY TELECONFERENCE SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY NO LATER THAN 4:00 PM ON THE DATE
OF THE HEARING.

REQUEST: The Applicant, Dwight Manley, is requesting the following entitlements: (1) 
General Plan Amendment No. 2022-02 to change the General Plan Land 
Use designation of the entire Gaslight Square Center property, inclusive of 
the Project site, from Office/Financial Commercial to Mixed Use III; (2) Zone 
Change No. 2022-02 to change the zoning designation of the entire Gaslight 
Square Center property, inclusive of the Project site, from C-P (PD) 
Commercial, Administrative and Professional Office Zone (Precise 
Development) to MU-III (Mixed Use III); (3) Conditional Use Permit No. 
2022-03 to allow a drive-thru restaurant in the MU-III zone; (4) Plan Review 
No. 2022-02 to allow the demolition of four existing commercial buildings 
totaling approximately 18,873 square feet and construct two new 
commercial buildings to facilitate a 2,000 square foot drive-thru restaurant 
and a 6,000 square foot commercial building consisting of 2,400 square foot 
of restaurant and 3,600 square feet of medical or retail space; and (5) 
Environmental Impact Report No. 2022-02 to analyze the environmental 
impacts resulting from construction and operation of the project, pursuant to 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA Guidelines). 

LOCATION: The Gaslight Square Center is an existing 1.88-acre commercial center 
located at 255 E. Imperial Highway, generally situated north of Imperial 
Highway, between Flower Avenue and Orange Avenue. The project site 
currently has a General Plan Land Use designation of Office/Financial 
Commercial and a Zoning designation of C-P (PD) Commercial, 
Administrative and Professional Office Zone (Precise Development). 

ENVIRONMENTAL: The project has been assessed in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines and the environmental 
regulations of the City. As authorized by the State of California Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines, based on preliminary review, the City determined that it 
would prepare an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the proposed 
project. As such, an EIR has been prepared as a “Project EIR”, as defined 
by Section 15161 of the CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, 
Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3). This EIR examines the environmental 
impacts of the project and focuses on the changes in the environment that 
would result from the development project. The EIR examines all phases of 
the project, including planning, construction and operation. The Draft EIR is 
anticipated to be released for public review by January 24, 2022. Once the 
release date is confirmed, a separate notice (Notice of Availability) will be 
prepared and distributed in accordance with the CEQA Guidelines. 

IF YOU CHALLENGE THE PROJECT AND RELATED ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATIONS IN 
COURT, YOU MAY BE LIMITED TO RAISING ONLY THOSE ISSUES YOU OR SOMEONE ELSE 
RAISED AT THE PUBLIC HEARING DESCRIBED IN THIS NOTICE, OR IN WRITTEN 
CORRESPONDENCE, DELIVERED TO THE COMMISSION AT, OR PRIOR TO, THE PUBLIC 
HEARING. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THIS SUBJECT, PLEASE CONTACT THE PLANNING DIVISION 
AT (714) 990-7674. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

_______________________________ 
Joanne Hwang, AICP, City Planner 

ATTACHMENT G



PROJECT SITE MAP  

Gaslight

ATTACHMENT G



Page 1 of 9 

ATTACHMENT A OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 

General Plan Amendment No. 2022-02 
Zone Change No. 2022-02  
Plan Review No. 2022-02  

Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-03  

DRAFT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

NOTE: Draft conditions of approval may be further updated prior to the City Council 
approval of the Project. Such updates may include, but not limited to, revisions in the 
required timing and/or requirements, and addition of new conditions.   

General Plan Amendment No. 2022-02, Zone Change No. 2022-02, Plan Review No. 
2022-02 and Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-03 are hereby approved, subject to the 
conditions as set forth herein:  

Planning Division – Community Development Department 

1. Development and operations shall occur in substantial compliance with the plans
and specifications reviewed and approved by the City Council on XX, 2023, which
include a project description, site plan, floor plans, conceptual architectural
elevations and associated details and conceptual landscape plan, on file with the
Planning Division, the conditions contained herein and all applicable Federal,
State, County and local regulations. The City Planner may approve minor
modifications to the approved Project plans.

2. The Applicant shall prepare and submit a digital copy (suitable for archival storage)
of the final plans and specifications to the Brea Planning Division prior to the
issuance of any building permits for the development.

3. The approved uses shall operate within all applicable Federal, State, County, and
City regulations.

4. Final architectural elevation plans and details shall be provided at time of plan
check for the review and approval of the City Planner prior to the issuance of
building permits. Architecture and design features shall be consistent with the
specifications and details provided in the approved Project plans and shall include
high quality materials and finishes. Requests to modify the approved building
elevations, materials and details to allow new tenants/business branding, logos,
colors and other architectural elevation features may be reviewed and approved
by the City Planner.

5. Final details regarding all window glazing and potentially reflective building
surfaces shall be provided for the review and approval of the City Planner prior to
the issuance of a building permit. Said glazing and surfacing shall be treated or

ATTACHMENT H



 

Page 2 of 9 
 

designed in a manner to reduce glare impacts to adjacent uses, motorists, 
pedestrians and wildlife (e.g. to reduce bird window strikes).  
 

6. Final landscape, hardscape and light fixture/photometric plans and details shall be 
provided for the review and approval of the City Planner prior to the issuance of 
building permits. Said landscaping plan shall include water conserving irrigation 
meeting applicable City of Brea standards. Approved landscaping and irrigation 
shall be installed prior to release of Certificate of Occupancy. Said plans shall 
include: 
 

a. Details shall include the quantify, size, species type and placement of final 
trees for the project. The number of trees, shrubs and groundcover provided 
shall not be less than the amount depicted on the conceptual landscape 
plans and subject to the review and approval by the City Planner prior to the 
issuance of grading permits.  
 

b. Details for decorative paving, hardscape, outdoor furniture and associated 
features. Outdoor amenities shall incorporate seating, tables, planters, dog 
waste stations and similar details as generally depicted within the concept 
plans and specifications provided in the approved Project plans.  
 

7. All new landscaping shall be installed in conformance with the approved plans and 
applicable Brea City Code (BCC) and maintained in perpetuity. Landscaping shall 
be replaced in a timely manner in an event that it is removed, damaged and/or 
dead. 
 

8. Any reduction of on-site and/or off-site parking, change of tenant spaces/uses, 
restriping or circulation modifications shall be reviewed and approved by the City 
Planner prior to any modifications.  
 

9. Prior to the issuance of the building permit for the drive-through restaurant building, 
the Applicant shall submit the drive-through lane queuing assessment for review 
and approval by the City Planner and City Engineer. The queuing assessment shall 
confirm that the operation will be consistent with the traffic study approved as part 
of this entitlement and will not result in obstruction to any access aisle, or parking 
spaces for the other tenants in the commercial center, or the public street. The City 
reserves the right to require a new queuing assessment when a new tenant is 
proposed as deemed necessary by the City Planner.  
 

10. During business operations, if the drive-thru operation negatively affects traffic for 
other tenants, the main drive aisles of the retail center, or the public street, design 
alternatives to remedy the issue, such as modifying the parking lot, or other 
alternatives, shall be presented to the City Engineer and City Planner for review 
and approval. 
 

ATTACHMENT H



 

Page 3 of 9 
 

11. Prior to the issuance of the grading permit, the Applicant shall submit a Parking 
Management Plan (PMP) for review and approval by the City Planner and City 
Engineer. The PMP shall detail management strategies to ensure a balance 
between parking and drive-thru queuing on-site. The PMP, at a minimum, shall 
include traffic control measures that include the drive-thru. Strategies shall include, 
but are not limited to: 
 

a. Enforcement of on- and off-site parking management. 
b. Designated employee parking areas. 
c. Designated bicycle parking areas. 
d. Alternative drive-through operational management strategies to reduce 

overflow queuing, such as requiring drive-thru operators to direct vehicles, 
take orders ahead of the menu boards, and ensure no conflicts between 
cars parking and queuing for the drive-through.  

e. Designated parking spaces for restaurant curbside pickup or short-term 
parking.  

f. Specific truck delivery times, loading, and unloading. Truck delivery must 
occur outside the peak hours of Laurel Elementary School including but 
not limited to morning drop-off and afternoon pick-up times.  

 
12. The Applicant shall provide a comprehensive master sign program to the review 

and approval of the Planning Commission prior to the issuance of tenant 
improvements/building permits. Said program shall include details such as 
maximum sign area, letter sizes, location, number of signs, lighting techniques and 
associated details. Deviations from the signage criteria of the Brea City Code 
(BCC) may be considered within the sign program, subject to the review and 
approval of the Planning Commission.  
 

13. A final trash removal service plan shall be submitted for the review and approval 
of the City Planner prior to the first occupancy. All trash pickup and related activities 
shall be limited to Mondays to Saturdays between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 
p.m. Said plan shall limit trash removal vehicles and servicing of facilities in a 
manner to reduce associated noise and nuisance impact to the surrounding 
residents and during the off-peak hours (e.g. drop-off and pick-up times) of Laurel 
Elementary school located across Flower Avenue.   
 

14. All outdoor trash facilities shall be shielded from view within a decorative enclosure 
with walls a minimum six (6) feet in height and provided with metal gates. The 
design of enclosures shall be compatible with the project architecture and shall 
require a separate review and approval by the City Planner prior to the issuance 
of building permits.  
 

15. All roof mounted equipment and ground mounted shall be screened from public 
view. All screening designs shall be architecturally integrated with the building and 
shall be subject to the review and approval of the City Planner and Building and 
Safety Division.  

ATTACHMENT H



 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 
16. All uses shall comply with the provision of BCC Chapter 20.20 including, but not 

limited to vibration, glare, emission of dust, smoke and odors. 
 

17. Prior to issuance of building permits and prior to and during construction, the 
Applicant shall adhere to all measures described in the mitigation monitoring and 
reporting program listed in the Project’s Final Environmental Impact Report. The 
mitigation monitoring and reporting program shall be in effect throughout all 
construction related activities as indicated in the report.   
 

18. Prior to building final, the Applicant shall prepare and submit a written report 
demonstrating completion of the mitigation monitoring and reporting program for 
review and approval of the City Planner.  
 

19. The Applicant is responsible for paying all charges related to the processing of this 
Project within 30 days of the issuance of the final invoice or prior to the issuance 
of grading or building permits for this Project, whichever occurs first.  Failure to pay 
all charges shall result in delays in the issuance of required permits.  
 

20. Any permit is subject to expiration and revocation as provided in Chapter 
20.412.020, and said provisions are specifically made a part hereof without 
negating the applicability of any other provision of this title of any other ordinance. 
 

21. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the applicant shall indemnify, defend and 
hold the City, its elected officials, officers, contractors serving as City officers, 
agents, and employees (“Indemnitees”) free and harmless from: (i) any and all 
claims, liabilities and losses whatsoever occurring or resulting to any and all 
persons, firms, entities, or corporations furnishing or supplying work, services, 
materials, or supplies in connection with, or related to, the performance of work or 
the exercise of rights authorized by approval of General Plan Amendment No. 
2022-02, Zone Change No 2022-02, Plan Review No. 2022-02 and Conditional 
Use Permit No. 2022-03 and (ii) any and all claims, lawsuits, liabilities, and/or the 
granting or exercise of the rights authorized by said approval; and (iii) from any 
and all claims, liabilities and losses occurring or resulting to any person, firm, entity, 
corporation for property damage, personal injury, or death, arising out of or related 
to the approval of, or exercise of rights granted by, this permit. Applicant’s 
obligation to indemnify, defend and hold the Indemnitees free and harmless as 
required hereinabove shall include, but is not limited to, paying all fees and costs 
incurred by legal counsel of the Indemnitee’s choice in representing the 
Indemnitees in connection with any such claims, losses, lawsuits, or actions, and 
any award of damages, judgments, verdicts, court costs or attorney’s fees in any 
such lawsuit or action.  

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT H



 

Page 5 of 9 
 

Building and Safety Division – Community Development Department  
 

22. All designs shall comply with all Codes adopted at the time of permit submittal 
including CA Building, Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, Cal Green, Energy, Fire 
and City of Brea & CA State Ordinances. 
 

23. The Applicant shall submit a demolition, grading, building permit and Certificate of 
Occupancy submittal to the Building & Safety Division for review and approval. The 
Building & Safety Division reserves the right to provide additional requirements 
during plan check review consistent with the codes adopted at the time of permit 
submittal.  
 

24. Prior to the issuance of grading permit, the Geotechnical soils report must be 
updated to comply with California Building Code (CBC) 2022 or Codes adopted at 
the time of permit submittal.  
 

25. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, the permit plans shall provide a total 
of five accessible parking stalls, four standard accessible parking stalls and one 
van accessible parking stall as approved on the project plans. Requirements are 
subject to change in order to comply with all Codes adopted at the time of permit 
submittal.  
 

26. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, the permit plans shall provide a total 
of two electric vehicle (EV) accessible parking stalls, one shall be standard and 
one van accessible. Location of EV parking spaces shall be subject to the 
approved project plans. EV requirements are subject to change in order to comply 
with all Codes adopted at the time of permit submittal.  
 

27. Prior to the issuance of any building permit, the permit plans shall demonstrate the 
following:  

a. Accessible EV stalls must be connected to the site accessible route and 
accessible route must be provided.  

b. Accessible path of travel walkway must be maintained free from obstruction 
with a minimum 48-inch width.  

c. Accessible path of travel must be provided to the trash enclosure adjacent 
to the retail/medical building.  

 
28. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the plans shall show the relocation of all 

grease interceptor away from accessible parking stalls.  
 

29. Prior to the issuance of tenant improvements for the drive-thru and sit-down 
restaurant, the plan check submittal must show ADA seating within the patio areas.  
 

30. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the plan check submittal must add a note 
to plans stating to maintain unobstructed access to all accessible routes at the 
driveway crossings.  

ATTACHMENT H



 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 
 
Public Works Department  

 
31. Prior to the issuance of any building permits in the applicable development phase, 

the Applicant shall provide precise grading plans and applicable technical studies, 
for the review and approval of the City Engineer.  The precise grading plans and 
technical studies shall be prepared by a registered Civil Engineer, be in 
accordance with City of Brea Standard Plans and standards, and be to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  The precise grading plan submittal shall include 
the following items:   
 

a. Soils Report for the review and approval of the Building & Safety Division 
and the City Engineer;  

 
b. Sanitary Sewer Capacity Analysis for the review and approval of the City 

Engineer.  Said study shall meet all City requirements as outlined in the City 
Sewer Master Plan; 

 
c. Hydrology & Hydraulic Study for the review and approval of the City 

Engineer.  Said study shall meet all City and Orange County requirements;   
 

d. Final Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) for the review and approval 
of the City Engineer.  The Applicant shall submit the finalized and approved 
Preliminary WQMP at the time of first submittal, and prior to the issuance of 
any building permits.  The Applicant and any future successors, shall 
adhere to the approved Final WQMP during the life of the Project;   

 
e. Water Demand Analysis for the review and approval of the City Engineer;   

 
f. Construction Document Plans for the review and approval of the City 

Engineer.  The Construction Document Plans shall identify all proposed 
improvements included on the properties and that are required to facilitate 
the development and infrastructure improvements of the properties to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Said Construction Document Plans shall 
include a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan identifying the State issued 
WDID number and the contact information for the person that is to be 
reached in case of emergency;     

 
g. Solid Waste/Trash Collection Circulation Plan for the review and approval 

of the City Traffic Engineer;   
 

h. On-site Circulation Plan as requested for the review and approval of the City 
Traffic Engineer.    

 
32. The Applicant shall maintain the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan during 

ATTACHMENT H



 

Page 7 of 9 
 

construction in accordance with NPDES guidelines, which shall incorporate all best 
management practices to mitigate pollutant runoff during construction.   

 
33. The Applicant shall maintain all private drainage facilities in good working order at 

all times.   
 

34. The Applicant shall be responsible for the maintenance of all temporary and 
permanent Best Management Practices (BMP’s), ponds, and detention/retention 
structures located on public or private property.     

 
35. The Applicant shall be responsible to obtain the permission to perform any work 

on adjacent private properties.   
 

36. The Applicant shall be responsible for the maintenance of all temporary and 
permanent Best Management Practices (BMP’s), ponds, and detention/retention 
structures located on public or private property.     

 
37. All water and fire services shall be per the latest City of Brea Public Works 

Standards. All proposed domestic, irrigation, and fire services shall include 
backflow prevention to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and the Brea Fire 
Department.   

 
38. All proposed sewer laterals shall be connected to the on-site public sewer main 

located within the existing utility easement, shall be per City of Brea Public Works 
Standards, shall meet all City Building and Plumbing Code requirements, and be 
to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.      

 
39. The Applicant shall install water meters, vaults, and above ground backflow 

prevention devices for all domestic, irrigation, and fire services and systems.  
Easements shall be dedicated to the City for the maintenance, repair, and 
operation of all water meters and vaults.    

 
40. All proposed fire hydrant locations shall be subject to the review and approval of 

the City Engineer and Brea Fire Department.  Installation of fire hydrants shall be 
in accordance with City of Brea Public Works Standards and all applicable building 
codes.   

 
41. The proposed development shall only be served by underground distribution 

utilities.   
 

42. Prior to the issuance of any building permits in a development phase, the Applicant 
shall pay all applicable impact fees and connection fees as set forth in the City 
ordinances and in effect at the time of permit approval.       

 
43. All construction within the right-of-way of Imperial Highway will require separate 

Caltrans permit approval. 

ATTACHMENT H



 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 
44. A City of Brea Public Works Encroachment Permit application shall be obtained 

prior to any construction or construction staging in the public right-of-way or within 
existing public easement areas. 
 

45. Prior to the issuance of any occupancy release, the applicant shall install a 
proposed manhole on the existing public 8-inch sewer line located within the 
existing alley to the north of the proposed development.  Said manhole shall be 
located and constructed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.    

 
46. All existing public utilities located within the public right-of-way or within existing 

easements are to be protected in place, unless indicated otherwise by 
improvement plans approved by the City Engineer. 

 
47. All public improvements, and improvements within the public right-of-way and 

public easement areas, shall be designed and constructed per current City 
standards and all other jurisdictional requirements.   

 
48. No proposed trees; lighting structures, utility vaults or cabinets; structures with 

footing elements; building foundations, structural slabs, or building structural 
members; shall be located within existing or proposed public easement areas.   
 

49. Prior to the issuance of any occupancy release, the applicant shall close the 
existing alley between Orange Avenue and Flower Avenue, on private property, at 
the northerly property line of the proposed development.  The proposed alley 
closure shall be improved to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.   

 
50. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, the property owner shall enter into a 

Site Maintenance and Restoration Agreement with the City.  The agreement shall 
state that the property owner(s) shall be responsible to replace any improvements 
disturbed during the maintenance and/or replacement of the utility lines owned by 
the City.  Furthermore, the agreement shall stipulate that the City is not liable for 
loss of income due to closure of the drive-thru, or any other business operations, 
in the case of repair or maintenance to the sewer line within the existing on-site 
utility easement.      

 
Fire Department 

 
51. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit a Fire Master 

Plan (FMP) directly to the Fire Department for review and approval.  
 
Mitigation Compliance 
 

52. The Applicant shall comply with all required mitigation measures included in the 
mitigation monitoring and reporting program listed in the Project’s Final 
Environmental Impact Report, as follows:  

ATTACHMENT H



 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 
a. TO BE UPDATED 

 
 

ATTACHMENT H



From: John Koos
To: Hosozawa, Carrie
Cc: Madrigal-Gonzalez, Cecilia
Subject: Letter to Planning Commission on Gaslighter Square Project
Date: Wednesday, January 18, 2023 2:14:39 PM

Carrie - Please send this to the planning commission.  I know you have new members and do
not have all of their email addresses (or even names).

Dear Brea Planning Commission,

Regarding the Gaslighter Square project at 255 Imperial Highway, I respectfully ask you to
continue this project without receiving a staff presentation and without taking public
testimony.  This project is not ripe for a public hearing.  It is completely unorthodox and bad
practice to begin the public hearing process on a project that does not have a Final Draft
Environmental Impact Report available.  It forces an unnecessary bifurcation of the hearing
process because it automatically forces the commission and public to pause for weeks or
months and resume again.  It will be at least 8 weeks before the Draft EIR can be ready for a
public hearing because there is a mandatory 45 day review period followed by staff (and its
consultants) to prepare "responses to comments" and tidy up any analysis that needs to be
changed as a result of germane comments by outside agencies or people.

Often, projects take a long time to get to public hearing, especially when an EIR is involved. 
Applicants often get impatient and want things to move faster.  By going to public hearing
now versus when it should occur won't save any time, it only muddies the process, exposing
the city to accusations that staff is "bringing along" a planning commission when there is
known opposition.  This project is very similar to one at the same property that basically died
in litigation.  It should be handled with far more care than that project was, with its faulty (and
fatal) recommendation prepared by the city staff and city attorney's office.  

Delay this project's first hearing until it is ready for prime time.  Without a EIR in final draft
form, it is inappropriate to begin the public hearing process at this time.

Sincerely,

John Koos
Brea Resident

mailto:john@troncosokoos.com
mailto:carrieho@ci.brea.ca.us
mailto:ceciliamg@ci.brea.ca.us


Agenda Item 10.        
City of Brea

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Planning Commission

DATE: 01/24/2023

SUBJECT: PLANNING DIVISION UPDATES
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
Joanne Hwang, AICP, City Planner
Prepared by: Kathrine Kuo, Planning Technician

Attachments
A. Planning Division Updates 



 

PLN-20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

January 13, 2023 

City of Brea 
 

Major Project Summary 

 
 



            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

2 
 

CONTENTS 
• IN PROCESS/REVIEW 
• BREA MALL MIXED USE PROJECT 
• LAMBERT ROAD CONDOMINIUMS  
• BREA METRO OFFICE CONDOS 
• INDUSTRIAL BUILDING 2727 E IMPERIAL HIGHWAY 
• GASLIGHT SQUARE REDEVELOPMENT 
• AMAZON FACILITY 
• 415 W DATE STREET ADU 
• PET AQUAMATION BUSINESS 
• AT&T WIRELESS ROOFTOP FACILITY 

 
• APPROVED/ENTITLED 
• 201 N BERRY STREET 
• CENTRAL PARK VILLAGE 
• MERCURY LANE APARTMENTS 
• BREA PLACE 
• BREA IMPERIAL CENTER 
• MACALLANS EXPANSION AND NEW SPEAKEASY 
• LIVING HOPE CHURCH  
• CHA CHA’S EXPANSION 
• 6200 CARBON CANYON ROAD 
• WESTERN REALCO 
• CAMP TRANSFORMATION  
• BREA CAR WASH SIGN PROGRAM 
• MOUNTAIN MIKE’S ALCOHOL CUP 



            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

3 
 

• TRANSWESTERN IMPERIAL/BERRY PROJECT 
• ALDI GROCERY STORE 
• 7-ELEVEN ALCOHOL LICENSE  
• THE PHOENIX CLUB  
• BREA REGIONAL ANIMAL HOSPITAL 
• AERA ENERGY (SP, GPA, ZC, DA)  
• KENKOTSU RAMEN ALCOHOL CUP 
• STARBUCKS DRIVE-THRU  
• ALOHA VETERINARY HOSPITAL 
• UFC GYM 
• EQUESTRIAN CENTER AMENDMENT 
• BB. Q CHICKEN ALCOHOL CUP 
• 315 S FLOWER HISTORIC DESIGNATION 
• TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 16423 – BREA 265 
• MEDICAL TRAINING FACILITY 
• DE ORO LA PUERTA ALCOHOL CUP  
• 527 E ELM STREET ADU 
• RESIDENCE INN ALCOHOL CUP  
• GYM - PERSONAL TRAINING FACILITY  
 

 
 

• REPEALED/DENIED 
• BREA PLAZA 
• SHOOT SOCAL  

 



            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

4 
 

BREA MALL MIXED USE PROJECT  (MAP ID: 1) 

Project: • EIR, General Plan Amendment, Zone Change, Development Agreement, 
Precise Development Plan, Tentative Parcel Map, and Conditional Use 
Permits 

PROJECT MAP: 

 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Planning Commission Study Session (Project 
Preview) was held on September 27, 2022.  

• Planning Commission Public Hearing (Project 
Introduction) was held on October 25, 2022. 

• Planning Commission approved project on 
December 13, 2022.  

• City Council Public Hearing tentatively 
scheduled for February 21, 2023. 

Project No.: • EIR 20-01, GPA No. 20-01; ZC No. 20-01, DA No. 20-01, TPM 22-113, PD No. 
20-02, and CUP Nos. 20-06, 22-17, 22-18 and 22-19 ACCELA No. PLN 2021-
00008 

Project 
Location: 

• 100 Brea Mall; Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 319-101-37 
• Brea Mall; Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APNs): 319-100-26, -62, -63, -64, -71, -

73, -75 -76, -79, -89 and 319-103-22 (Note: GPA No. 2020-01 and ZC No. 
2020-01 apply to the entire Brea Mall site)  
 

Project 
Description: 

• The Applicant, Simon Property Group, is requesting the following entitlements: (1) 
General Plan Amendment No. 2020-01 to change the General Plan Land Use 
designation of the Project site and the Brea Mall from Regional Commercial to 
Mixed Use I; (2) Zone Change No. 2020-01, to change the zoning designation of 
the site from Major Shopping Center (C-C) with a Precise Development (P-D) 
overlay to Mixed Use I (MU-I); (3) Development Agreement No. 2020-01 to define 
the terms of development proposed by vesting the City’s approval while 
specifying public benefits and improvements; (4) Precise Development Plan No. 
2020-02 to demolish the former Sears building and surface parking lot and allow 
a new mixed-use development that includes retail, restaurants, for-rent 
residential apartments, a resort-type fitness center and an outdoor gathering 
space; (5) Tentative Parcel Map No. 2022-113 to subdivide a 15.5-acre within the 
74-acre Brea Mall site, for development of the proposed mixed-use project; and 
(6) Conditional Use Permit No. 2020-06 to allow a shared parking between the 
residential and commercial uses, Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-16 to establish 
the Brea Mall sign program, Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-17 to allow on-site 

In-Process/Review 



            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

5 
 

 

alcohol consumption of beer, wine and distilled spirts within dining 
establishments and Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-18 to allow a fitness center. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Kim Zuppiger, Contract Planner (KimZ@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Simon Properties  

Notes:  Next Steps:  
• The Final EIR was made available for public review on September 27, 2022 

and can be viewed at City Hall and the Brea Community Center and the City’s 
website: https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/166/Projects-in-Process 

• A comprehensive response to the requested information from the Planning 
Commission can be accessed from the following link: 
https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/DocumentCenter/View/13942/PC-QA-items-12-1-
22    

• Updated project information from the technical studies that has been 
incorporated in the Final EIR, and can be found in the following link: 
https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/DocumentCenter/View/13941/Combine-
Updated-Tech-Studies  

 
 
 
 
 

mailto:KimZ@cityofbrea.net
https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/166/Projects-in-Process
https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/DocumentCenter/View/13942/PC-QA-items-12-1-22
https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/DocumentCenter/View/13942/PC-QA-items-12-1-22
https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/DocumentCenter/View/13941/Combine-Updated-Tech-Studies
https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/DocumentCenter/View/13941/Combine-Updated-Tech-Studies


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

6 
 

 

 

LAMBERT ROAD CONDOS (MAP ID: 2) 

Project: • Tentative Parcel Map   PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• No tentative Planning Commission meeting at 
this time.    

Project No.: • TPM 2021-189; Accela No.: PLN-2021-00061 
Project 
Location: 

• Accessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 296-223-13 
• 700-800 W Lambert Road.  

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to convert two (2) existing 12-unit buildings (total 
24 units) into 24 industrial condominium units. No new construction is 
proposed; existing unit boundaries, floor plans and floor areas will not 
change. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • 801 Lambert LLC, A California Limited Liability Company (Mark Blumenthal)   

Notes:  • Application was submitted October 25, 2021. 
• Initial staff comments provided to applicant; pending resubmittal. 



            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

7 
 

 

BREA METRO OFFICE CONDOS (MAP ID: 3) 

Project: •  Tentative Parcel Map PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• No tentative Planning Commission meeting at 
this time.  

Project No.: • TPM No. 2021-198; Accela No: PLN-2021-00057 
Project 
Location: 

• Accessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 319-192-15 
• 330 E Lambert Rd 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is requesting to subdivide the property into approximately 33 
individual office condominiums. No change of use, demolition or on-site 
improvements. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • CGM Development LLC (Gordon Lau)   

Notes:  • Application was submitted November 22, 2021. 
• Process and completion of associated project applications. 

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

8 
 

 

INDUSTRIAL BUILDING (MAP ID: 4) 

Project: • Plan Review PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• No tentative Planning Commission meeting at 
this time.    

Project No.: • PR No. 2022-04; EIR Addendum; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00012 
Project 
Location: 

• 2727 E. Imperial Highway  
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 320-091-66  

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is requesting the demolition and rebuild of a new warehouse 
with related site improvements. The building would be a total of 120,550 SF. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Kim Zuppiger, Contract Planner (KimZ@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Duke Realty 

Notes:  Next Steps:  
• Application was submitted March 3, 2022 
• Staff comments provided to applicant; Application was resubmitted 

December 12, 2022. 
• Process and completion of associated project applications. 

mailto:KimZ@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

9 
 

 

 BREA GASLIGHT SQUARE REDEVELOPMENT (MAP ID: 5) 

Project: • Precise Development, Conditional Use Permit, General Plan Amendment, Zone 
Change, CUP No. 2022-13 (Amendment to CUP No. 1990-20)  

PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Planning Commission meeting 
scheduled for January 24, 2023.  

Project No.: • PD No. 22-01; CUP No. 22-03; GPA No. 22-02; ZC No. 22-02; CUP 22-13 (Amend CUP 
90-20); ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00011 

Project 
Location: 

• 255 E. Imperial Highway  
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 319-292-31, 319-292-33, 319-292-35, 319-292-36 

Project 
Description: 

• The Project proposes to retain two of the existing five buildings that are currently used for medical uses. 
The remaining three commercial buildings totaling 18,286 square feet would be demolished to facilitate 
the construction of a 2,000 square foot drive-through restaurant with an outdoor seating area and a 
6,000 square foot commercial building consisting of 2,400 square feet of restaurant and 3,600 square feet 
of medical or retail space. The drive-through restaurant building would be located on the southeast 
portion of the site and could accommodate 12 vehicles within the drive-through. The restaurant and 
retail/medical building would be located at the southwest portion of the site.  New landscape is proposed 
throughout the site featuring new trees and planters. The Project would also reconfigure the existing 
parking lot and proposes 92 parking spaces on-site and 19 parking spaces off-site. As proposed the new 
buildings architectural style is modern with a variety of exterior material including wood siding, concrete, 
smooth stucco, brick and aluminum. At this time, the Project is not proposing any specific tenants or 
businesses. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net)  

Applicant: • Dwight Manley 

Notes:  Next Steps:  
• Application was submitted March 3, 2022 
• Process and completion of associated project entitlement applications. 
• Notice of Preparation was posted on June 20, 2022 to July 20, 2022. 
• The Draft EIR and technical studies are currently being prepared.  
• Notice of Availability 

 

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

10 
 

  

 

  

 AMAZON FACILITY (MAP ID: 6) 

Project: • Plan Review  
PROJECT MAP: 
 
  

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• No tentative Planning Commission meeting at 
this time.    

Project No.: • PR No. 2022-09; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00042 
Project 
Location: 

• 275 W. Valencia 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 320-233-17 

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The Project proposes to demolish the existing 3-story, 637,503 square-foot, 
60-foot high office building (previously occupied by Bank of America) and 
construct a new 181,500 square-foot, 44-foot high warehouse building that 
will be used as Amazon’s parcel delivery facility. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Jessica Newton, Senior Planner (jessican@cityofbrea.net)  

Applicant: • Niraj Patel of Ware Malcomb 

Notes:  Next Steps:  
• Application was submitted May 31, 2022 
• Staff comments provided to applicant; Application was resubmitted January 

10, 2023 
• Process and completion of associated application. 

 
 

mailto:jessican@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

11 
 

 

 

 

415 WEST DATE STREET  (MAP ID: 7) 

Project: • Certificate of Compatibility   
PROJECT MAP: 
 

   
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• No tentative Planning Commission meeting at 
this time.    

Project No.: • CC No. 2022-02; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00049 
Project 
Location: 

• 415 W. Date Street  
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 284-213-36 

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to construct a 1,200 square foot two-story 
detached ADU on an approximately 7,864 square foot lot developed with an 
approximately 1,018 square foot single-family residence. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Kathrine Kuo, Planning Technician (kathrinek@cityofbrea.net)  

Applicant: • Karina Bernal 

Notes:  Next Steps:  
• Application was submitted June 29, 2022 
• Staff comments provided to applicant; pending resubmittal. 

 

mailto:kathrinek@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

12 
 

  

 

PET AQUAMATION BUSINESS (MAP ID: 8) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit  
PROJECT MAP: 
    

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• No tentative Planning Commission meeting at 
this time.    

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-15; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00053 
Project 
Location: 

• 580 W Lambert Road, Unit E 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 296-081-07 

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to establish a pet aquamation (cremation) facility 
with mobile after-life care veterinary services. No live animals are proposed 
on-site. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Dr. Annie Forslund (Home Pet Euthanasia of Southern California)  

Notes:  Next Steps:  
• Application was submitted July 19, 2022 

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

13 
 

 

 

AT&T WIRELESS ROOFTOP FACILITY (MAP ID: 9) 

Project: • Plan Review  PROJECT MAP: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• No tentative Planning Commission meeting at 
this time.    

Project No.: • PR No. 2022-12; ACCELA No: PLN-2021-00074 
Project 
Location: 

• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN):  296-241-10 
• 380 W Central Ave 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to install a new rooftop wireless communication 
facility on an existing commercial office building.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Kathrine Kuo (kathrinek@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC dba AT&T Wireless   

Notes:  • Application was submitted November 22, 2022. 
• Staff comments provided to applicant; pending resubmittal. 

 
 

mailto:kathrinek@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

14 
 

 

 

 

CENTRAL PARK VILLAGE (Map ID: 1)  

Project: • Precise Development Plan for residential units. RENDERING:  

 
CURRENT STATUS:   

• Project approved April 2, 2019 

Project No.: • PD 18-02 
Project 
Location: 

• 420 West Central Avenue  

Project 
Description: 

• The project approval includes 82 new townhomes ranging from 1 bedroom to 
5 bedrooms. 20 of the proposed new units will include affordable residential 
flats.  

 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Notes:  • Project is near final construction. 

Approved/Entitled  

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

15 
 

 

 

BREA PLACE (Map ID: 2)  

Project: • Development Agreement, Precise Development, Tentative Parcel Map, 
Conditional Use Permit for hotel and Conditional Use Permit for modified 
parking standards.  

RENDERING:  

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:   

• Planning Commission approved project on  
June 27, 2017. 

• The construction phase of the approved hotel is 
scheduled for completion by the end of 
December 2022. 

Project No.: • TPM No. 2016-178; PD No. 16-04; CUP No. 16-10 and CUP No. 16-11.  
Project 
Location: 

• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 319-331-14, -15, -11, -12, -13, -14, -03, -04, 
319-332-10, -01, -02,  

• Northeast corner of Birch Street and State College Boulevard.  
 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The project approved construction of new buildings on vacant portions of the 
site to build out mixed use campus of office, residential, hotel and support 
commercial uses. Building A features 462 apartments in a five-story building 
and Building B features 285 apartments in a three to five story building. The 
units include a mix of studio, one bedroom and two bedrooms for rent. The 
project features 13,000 square feet of commercial space within the Birch 
Street frontage and across the street a four-story 150 room hotel is approved. 
  

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez,  Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Notes:  • The apartment construction is completed as of August 2022. 
• The hotel is currently in construction and is set to be complete by November 

2022. 

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

16 
 

  

MERCURY LANE APARTMENTS (Map ID: 3)  

Project: • Planned Community Master Plan, Zone Change, Development Agreement, 
Environmental Impact Report 

RENDERING:  

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:   

• Planning Commission approved project on  
April 28, 2020 

• City Council approved the project on June 2, 2020  

Project No.: • PCMP No. 19-01, ZC No. 19-01, DA No 19-01, FEIR 19-01 
Project 
Location: 

• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 296-141-05  
• Southeast corner of Mercury Lane and Berry Street  

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The project is an approval to develop a 5-story building with 114 workforce 
residential units.  
  

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez,  Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Notes:  • The applicant has submitted building permit plans as of December 2021. 

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

17 
 

 

 

  

BREA IMPERIAL CENTER (Map ID: 4)  

Project: • Amendment to Conditional Use Permit 18-06, Precise Development 17-03 
for new restaurant building, Conditional Use Permit for Type 47 Alcohol, 
Conditional Use Permit for Sign Program, Tentative Parcel Map for Subdivide  

PROJECT MAP: 

CURRENT STATUS:   
• The Planning Commission approved the project 

on July 24, 2018. 

Project No.: • CUP 18-05, PD 17-03, CUP 18-07 (Sign Program), TPM 2017-01 
 

Project 
Location: 

• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 029-331-22, -28 
• 311-391 South State College & 1130-1160 Imperial Highway 

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The project includes the approval of the Precise Development and Conditional 
Use Permit with regards to façade improvements, demolition and 
reconstruction of a portion of the Brea Imperial Center and to consider 
parking modifications to the center with a new comprehensive sign program. 
In addition, a Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide the 4.1-acre site into two 
parcels.  

 
Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Notes:  • This project is in construction.   

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

201 NORTH BERRY STREET (MAP ID: 5)  

Project: • Precise Development  RENDERING: 

CURRENT STATUS:   
• Approved by Planning Commission on 

 April 28, 2020.  

Project No.: • PD 20-01 
Project 
Location: 

• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 296-23-114  
• 201 North Berry Street  

Project 
Description: 

• The approved project includes the demolition of the existing buildings and 
construct a new 109,125 square foot warehouse building.  

 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner  (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net)  

Notes:  • Construction is completed.  

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

19 
 

 

 

 

 

MACALLANS EXPANSION AND NEW SPEAKEASY (MAP ID: 6)  

Project: • Conditional Use Permit   PROJECT MAP: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CURRENT STATUS:  
• Approved by Planning Commission on 

December 8, 2020. 

Project No.: • CUP 20-14, ACCELA No. PLN 2020-00004 
Project 
Location: 

• 330 West Birch Street  
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 296-376-18 

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The proposed project will expand their existing patio area and expand into the 
adjacent space by 644 square feet.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (planner@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Douglas Vincent   

Notes:  • Construction is completed.  

mailto:planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

20 
 

 

 

LIVING HOPE CHURCH (Map ID: 7) 

Project: • Amendment to CUP PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by Planning Commission June 22, 
2021. 

Project No.: • Amendment to CUP 10-04; ACCELA No. PLN-2021-00025 
Project 
Location: 

• 1215 W Lambert Rd 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 296-391-32 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is requesting to amend the CUP 10-04 to enclose a 6,711 square 
foot parking area, of a 21,333 square foot church/religious institution to be 
used as an assembly area for services and allow modifications to the existing 
parking lot.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (Planner@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • James Thayer  

Notes:  • Construction is completed.  

mailto:Planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

21 
 

 

 

CHA CHA’S EXPANSION (MAP ID: 8) 

Project: • Amendment to CUP and Plan Review PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by Planning Commission on July 27, 
2021  

Project No.: • Amend CUP 98-17; PR 21-03, ACCELA No. PLN-2021-00019 
Project 
Location: 

• 110 W Birch St 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 296-376-16 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing an expansion of an existing restaurant into the 
tenant space previously occupied by “Black and White.” In addition, minor 
improvements to the patio area for an expansion.   

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (planner@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Don Myers 

Notes:  • Construction is completed.  

mailto:planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

22 
 

 

 

6200 CARBON CANYON RD. (MAP ID: 9) 

Project: • Zone Variance & Administrative Hillside Development Permit  PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by Planning Commission on July 27, 
2021 

• The project was appealed to the City Council 
and was approved on September 21, 2021.  

Project No.: • ZV 21-01; ADHP 21-01; ACCELA No. PLN-2021-00031 
Project 
Location: 

• 6200 Carbon Canyon Rd 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 312-011-24 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to construct a 2,000 SF, 20 foot tall detached 
accessory structure to serve as storage for tractor and other mechanical 
equipment. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (planner@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Andrew and Jolene Grinstead  

Notes:  • Currently under construction 

mailto:planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

23 
 

 

 

WESTERN REALCO (MAP ID: 10) 

Project: • Plan Review, Administrative Remedy PROJECT MAP: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CURRENT STATUS:  
• Approved by Planning Commission on August 

24, 2021.  

Project No.: • PR 21-06; AR 21-03; MND 21-02; ACCELA No. PLN-2021-000030 
Project 
Location: 

• Accessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 320-091-63 
• 2929 E Imperial Hwy 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing the demolition of the existing office building and 
constructing a new 131,500 square foot industrial building, with request to 
increase the permitted lot coverage in the M-1 Zone.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Western Realco, LLC (Jeremy Mape)  

Notes:  • Currently under construction 



            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

24 
 

 

 

TRANSWESTERN IMPERIAL & BERRY (MAP ID: 11) 

Project: • Precise Development, Mitigated Negative Declaration, Conditional Use 
Permit, Tentative Parcel Map  

PROJECT MAP: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CURRENT STATUS:  
• Approved by Planning Commission on 

September 28, 2021 

Project No.: • PD No. 21-01; MND No. 21-01, CUP 21-08, TPM 2021-140; ACCELA No. PLN-
2021-00007 

Project 
Location: 

• 285 N Berry Street and 711 W Imperial Hwy 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 296-101-08; 296-101-05; 296-101-03 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing the development of a new 126,797 square foot 
industrial building with associated parking and landscaping.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Transwestern Company (Sara Santomauro) 

Notes:  • Building permits have been submitted and construction is set to start soon.  



            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

25 
 

 

 

BREA CAR WASH SIGN PROGRAM (MAP ID: 12) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit  PROJECT MAP: 

 
 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by Planning Commission on October 
26, 2021. 

Project No.: • CUP 21-03; ACCELA No. PLN-2021-00044 
Project 
Location: 

• 300 S Brea Blvd  
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 284-233-22 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to adopt a uniformed sign program to 
accommodate signage for the new car wash.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net)   

Applicant: • Lee Lapri  

Notes:  • Construction is completed. 

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

26 
 

 

 

 

MOUNTAIN MIKE’S AMEND TO ALCOHOL CUP (MAP ID: 13) 

Project: • Amend to CUP 12-08 (CUP 2021-12 for tracking purposes)  PROJECT MAP: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  
 

• Approved by Planning Commission on October 
26, 2021.   

Project No.: • Amend to CUP 12-08 (CUP 2021-12) Accela No: PLN-2021-00049 
Project 
Location: 

• Accessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 320-331-05 
• 2435 E Imperial Hwy 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is requesting to Amend the existing CUP for alcohol to 
incorporate the outdoor dining area. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Raj Lehl    

Notes:   



            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

27 
 

 

 

 

CAMP TRANSFORMATION (MAP ID: 14) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit  PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  
 

• Approved by Planning Commission on November 
9, 2021.   

Project No.: • CUP No. 2021-09; Accela No: PLN-2021-00050 
Project 
Location: 

• Accessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 319-101-45 
• 910 E Birch St, Suite 250 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing a new fitness center within an existing vacant 
tenant space.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (Planner@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Joshua Fernandez  

Notes:   

mailto:Planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

28 
 

 

 

 

7-ELEVEN ALCOHOL LICENSE (MAP ID: 15) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit  PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  
 

• Approved by Planning Commission on February 
22, 2022.    

Project No.: • CUP No. 2021-16; Accela No: PLN-2021-00057 
Project 
Location: 

• Accessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 336-203-13 
• 3310 E Imperial Hwy 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is requesting a Type 20 – beer and wine alcohol license for 
off-site consumption.   

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net)  

Applicant: • 7-Eleven, Inc. (Michael Coffman)   

Notes:   

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

29 
 

 

 

ALDI GROCERY STORE (MAP ID: 16) 

Project: • Plan Review, Conditional Use Permit PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  
 

• Approved by Planning Commission on March 22, 
2022.    

Project No.: • PR 21-11; CUP 21-07; ACCELA No. PLN-2021-00047 
Project 
Location: 

• Accessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 320-091-63 
• 2395 E Imperial Hwy 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing a new grocery store (ALDI) at 2395 Imperial Hwy 
(Brea Union Plaza). The project would convert the existing vacant building 
and adjacent shop in addition to expanding the building to the west along 
the front sidewalk and parking stalls. The existing building size is approx. 
15,714 and will be adding 5,392 for a total of 21,106 square feet. In 
addition, the applicant is requesting a CUP for a Type 20 beer/wine alcohol 
license.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net)   

Applicant: • ALDI (Matthew Baca)   

Notes:   

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

30 
 

 

 

THE PHOENIX CLUB (MAP ID: 17) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit for banquet hall, parking modification, and on-site 
alcohol license. 

PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  
 

• Approved by Planning Commission on April 26, 
2022.    

Project No.: • CUP 21-04, -05, -06; ACCELA No. PLN-2021-00046 
Project 
Location: 

• 375 W Central Ave 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 304-041-10 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing a restaurant/bar with a banquet hall. In 
addition, the applicant will also occupy three tenant spaces for office and 
multi-purpose rooms for member only classes, meeting, etc. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net)   

Applicant: • The Phoenix Club (Linda Kriestant) 

Notes:  • The Phoenix Club is expected to move in March 2023. 

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

31 
 

 

 

BREA REGIONAL ANIMAL HOSPITAL (MAP ID: 18) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit  
PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  
 

• Approved by Planning Commission on June 28, 
2022.    

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-02; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00010 
Project 
Location: 

• 2500 E. Imperial Highway  
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 336-541-30  

 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to establish an animal hospital with no changes to 
the exterior of the building and no building expansion 

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (planner@acityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Richard Wright 

Notes:  • Currently under construction 

mailto:planner@acityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

32 
 

 

 

ALOHA VETERINARY HOSPITAL (MAP ID: 19) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit PROJECT MAP: 
  

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by Planning Commission on July 26, 
2022. 

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-11; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00035 
Project 
Location: 

• 407 W. Imperial Hwy, Suite F 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 296-142-08 

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to establish an animal hospital (Aloha Veterinary 
Hospital) within an existing commercial tenant space at Brea Gateway 
Center. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Aloha Veterinary Hospital (Ignacio Jimenez) 
 

Notes:   

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

33 
 

 

STARBUCKS DRIVE-THRU (MAP ID: 22) 

Project: • Amendment to Conditional Use Permit PROJECT MAP: 

 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by Planning Commission July 26, 2022  

Project No.: • CUP 2021-10; Accela No: PLN-2021-00051 
Project 
Location: 

• Accessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 319-381-05 
• 2 Pointe Drive  

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing a new Starbucks with a drive-thru & retail tenant 
space. The location was previously occupied by Souplantation. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Kim Zuppiger, Contract Planner (KimZ@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Dale Lyon  

Notes:  • Building Permit plans has been submitted and is under review. 

mailto:KimZ@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

34 
 

 

 

KENKOTSU RAMEN ALCOHOL CUP  (MAP ID: 20)  

Project: • Conditional Use Permit  
PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by Planning Commission on July 26, 
2022. 

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-10; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00034 
Project 
Location: 

• 2445 E. Imperial Highway, Unit K 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 320-331-05  

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing an on-sale beer and wine alcohol license at an 
existing restaurant (Kenkotsu Ramen). 
 

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (planner@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Kenkotsu Ramen (Chung Sen Chan) 
 

Notes:  N/A 
 

mailto:planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

35 
 

  

  

UFC GYM (MAP ID: 21) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit   
PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by the Planning Commission on July 
26, 2022. 

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-06; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00020 
Project 
Location: 

• 220 S. Brea Boulevard 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 319-291-36  

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to establish a UFC gym within an existing 27,903 
square foot two-story commercial building in Brea Downtown. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Bryan Montoya 

Notes:   
• Construction to start soon.  

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

36 
 

 

  

EQUESTRIAN CENTER AMENDMENT (MAP ID: 23) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-07 (Amendment to CUP No. 12-1977) PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by the Planning Commission on August 
23, 2022. 

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-07; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00021 
Project 
Location: 

• 4449 Carbon Canyon Road 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 308-011-15  

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to amend CUP 12-1977 to increase the amount 
of horses allowed for boarding purposes at an existing equestrian center (El 
Rodeo Stables) from 60 to 100 horses.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net)  

Applicant: • Bill Klovstad & Fran Klovstad 

Notes:   
 

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

37 
 

 

  

BB. Q CHICKEN ALCOHOL CUP (MAP ID: 24) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit PROJECT MAP: 
 

   
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by the Planning Commission on 
August 23, 2022. 

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-12; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00045 
Project 
Location: 

• 421 S. Associated Road 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 319-391-01 

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing an on-sale beer and wine alcohol license at a sit-
down restaurant (Bb. Q Chicken). 
 

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (planner@cityofbrea.net)   

Applicant: • Bb. Q Chicken Inc. 
 

Notes:   

mailto:planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

38 
 

 

 

315 SOUTH FLOWER AVENUE  (MAP ID: 25) 

Project: • Historic Resource Designation  
PROJECT MAP: 
 

    
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Approved by the Planning Commission on 
August 23, 2022. 

Project No.: • HRD No. 2022-01; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00052 
Project 
Location: 

• 315 South Flower Avenue 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 284-234-18 

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to add a residential structure (two-story single 
family residence and attached garage) to the Brea Historic Resources 
Register.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (planner@cityofbrea.net)  

Applicant: • Todd and Hawley Shoepe 

Notes:   

mailto:planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

39 
 

AERA ENERGY / Brea 265 TTM (MAP ID: 26) 

Project: • Tentative Tract Map PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Planning Commission approved the TTM for the project 
on September 27, 2022. 

Project No.: • ACCELA No. PLN 2020-00011; TTM 16423 

Project 
Location: 

• Accessor’s Parcel Map (APN): 322-031-24; 322-031-23; 322-031-31; 
322-031-04; 322-031-12; 322-031-01; 322-031-10; 322-031-15; 322-
031-14; 322-031-13; 322-031-13; 3200-070-02l; 322-072-02; 322-
031-21; 322-03-121; 322-031-19; 320-071-29; 320-073-07 

• North of Route 90 and East of State Route 57.  
• The 262-acre site, commonly known as Brea 265, is generally 

bounded by Lambert Road/Carbon Canyon Road to the north, 
Carbon Canyon Regional Park to the east, Birch Street and Rose 
Drive to the South, and residential uses to the west. 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is requesting Tentative Tract Map No. 16423 for the 
subdivision of the project site for residential, parks and open space 
uses. The TTM would implement the approved Brea 265 Specific 
Plan. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (Planner@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • AERA ENERGY 

Notes:  
 

 

mailto:Planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

40 
 

 

MEDICAL TRAINING FACILITY (MAP ID: 28)  

Project: • Conditional Use Permit  
PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Planning Commission approved project on 
September 27, 2022. 

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-08; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00024 
Project 
Location: 

• 910 E Birch Street, Unit 380  
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 319-101-46  

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The proposed project establishment of a medical training facility, and a tenant 
improvement of an existing 2,400 square foot commercial tenant space to 
facilitate such use, at 910 E. Birch Street, Unit 380. Aesthetic Immersion 
provides medical aesthetics training & education for the aesthetics industry. 
They offer training programs that teach the proper and effective use of 
various products and treatments. They conduct both in-person hands-on 
training as well as online virtual training programs.  
 

Project 
Planner: 

• Kim Zuppiger, Contract Planner (KimZ@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Aesthetic Immersion (Brian Robertson) 
 

Notes:   
 

mailto:KimZ@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

41 
 

 

 

 

DE ORO LA PUERTA ALCOHOL CUP  (MAP ID: 29)  

Project: • Conditional Use Permit  
PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Planning Commission approved project on 
September 27, 2022. 

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-09; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00024 
Project 
Location: 

• 171 S Kraemer Boulevard, Suite D-1, D-2, D-3 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 320-321-03  

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to increase the alcohol service area of an existing 
an on-sale beer and wine license for a site-down restaurant (De Oro La 
Puerta).  
 

Project 
Planner: 

• Cecilia Madrigal-Gonzalez, Associate Planner (ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Margarita Montelongo 
 

Notes:   
 

mailto:ceciliamg@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

42 
 

 

 

527 E ELM STREET ADU (MAP ID: 30) 

Project: • Certificate of Compatibility  PROJECT MAP: 
 

  
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Planning Commission approved project on 
October 25, 2022. 

Project No.: • CC No. 2022-01; ACCELA No. PLN 2022-00019 
Project 
Location: 

• 527 E. Elm Street  
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 284-213-36 

 
 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to construct a 1,496 square foot detached ADU on 
an approximately 20,084 square foot lot developed with an approximately 
3,000 square foot single-family residence. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (planner@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Frederick Talactac 

Notes:   

mailto:planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

43 
 

 

GYM- PERSONAL TRAINING FACILITY (MAP ID: 31) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit  PROJECT MAP: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Planning Commission approved project on 
December 13, 2022.   

Project No.: • CUP No. 2021-15; Accela No: PLN-2021-00056 
Project 
Location: 

• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 296-132-01 
• 650 N Berry St 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing to improve an existing 2 story office building into 
a training facility (gym) with ancillary office space.  

Project 
Planner: 

• Jessica Newton, Senior Planner (JessicaN@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • Adela Miller   

Notes:  • Application was submitted September 24, 2021. 
 

mailto:JessicaN@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

44 
 

 

 

 

 

RESIDENCE INN ALCOHOL CUP (MAP ID: 32) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Planning Commission approved project on December 
13, 2022. 

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-20; ACCELA No. PLN 2020-00067;  

Project 
Location: 

• 180 S State College Boulevard 
• Assessor’s Parcel Map (APN): 319-322-04 

 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing  an off-site sale of alcohol (beer and wine) 
for a new hotel (Residence Inn by Marriott) as an ancillary use. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Kathrine Kuo, Planning Technician (kathrinek@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • R.I. Heritage Inn of Brea, LLC 

Notes: • Application was submitted October 11, 2022 
 

 

mailto:kathrinek@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

45 
 

 

BREA PLAZA (MAP ID: 1) 

Project: • General Plan Amendment, Zone Change from C-G to MU-I, Conditional Use 
Permit 

 
PROJECT MAP: 

 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Recommended for Approval by the Planning 
Commission on January 25, 2022.  
 

• On May 3, 2022, the City Council voted to 
approve the project. 
 

• On July 19,2022, the project was rescinded by 
the City Council. 

Project No.: • GPA No. 2021-04-; ZC No. 2021-02, CUP No. 2021-17; CUP No. 2021-18, 
ACCELA No. PLN 2020-00034 

Project 
Location: 

• 1639 East Imperial Highway  
• Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): 319-102-25 

Project 
Description: 

• The proposed project will demolish 18,450 square feet of the Brea Plaza 5 
Cinemas, and 139 surface parking spaces, to construct a six-story, mixed-use 
building with up to 155 residential units, 13,800 square-feet of office space, 
and a new parking structure. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Planning Division (Planner@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • BOSC Realty Advisors 

Notes:  • On August 5, 2021, a Notice of Availability was circulated/published informing 
that a Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the proposed project. The 
45-day public review period began on August 5 and ended on September 20, 
2021. 

• On October 26, 2021, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the 
project. At this meeting the project was continued to November 9, 2021.  

 

REPEALED/DENIED 

mailto:Planner@cityofbrea.net


            LAST UPDATED: 1/13/2023 

 

 

 

46 
 

 

 

SHOOT SOCAL  (MAP ID: 2) 

Project: • Conditional Use Permit PROJECT MAP: 
 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  

• Planning Commission Public Hearing was held on October 
25, 2022. 

• Planning Commission denied project on December 13, 
2022. 
 

Project No.: • CUP No. 2022-19; ACCELA No. PLN 2020-00065;  

Project 
Location: 

• 524 E Imperial Highway 
• Assessor’s Parcel Map (APN): 284-211-04 

 

Project 
Description: 

• The applicant is proposing  to allow the retail sale of firearms and 
ammunition in conjunction with the retail sale of sporting goods. 

Project 
Planner: 

• Jason Killebrew, Community Development Director 
(jasonk@cityofbrea.net) 

Applicant: • David Anderson 

Notes: • Application was submitted September 30, 2022 
 

mailto:jasonk@cityofbrea.net

	Agenda
	6_4017
	       ATT_A. Draft Minutes - December 13, 2022
	7_4021
	       ATT_A. Quarterly Monitoring Report 
	8_4031
	       ATT_Memorandum
	MEMORANDUM

	       ATT_A. Chapter 20.408 _ Administrative Procedures  
	9_4040
	       ATT_Staff Report
	Planning Commission
	Staff Report        Meeting Date: 01.24.2023
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
	EIR Timeline:
	 June 20, 2022: The City issued a Notice of Preparation (NOP) informing the public that an EIR is being prepared for the Project and provided information on the planned scoping meeting. The public comment period concluded on July 20, 2022.
	PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENTS


	       ATT_A. Technical Background
	Adjacent Zoning

	       ATT_B. Vicinity Map
	       ATT_C. Planning Commission Resolution No. 88-56
	       ATT_D. Ordinance No. 1090
	       ATT_E. Project Plans
	ATTACH E - PROJECT PLANS
	Brea Gaslight Square_Entitlement Plans_Sheet C1.0_2022.12.13
	Sheets and Views
	C1.0 - Preliminary Site Plan


	2022.12.08_Brea Gaslight Square_Entitlement Plans
	Sheets and Views
	C1.1 Existing Site Plan
	C1.2 Site Utilization Map



	2022.09.19_Brea Gaslight Square_Entitlement Plans
	Sheets and Views
	C2.0 Existing Parking Plan


	ATTACH E - PROJECT PLANS
	Brea Gaslight Square_Entitlement Plans_Sheet C2.1_2022.12.13
	2022.12.08_Brea Gaslight Square_Entitlement Plans
	Sheets and Views
	C3.0 Preliminary Grading Plan
	C4.0 Preliminary Utility Plan
	C5.0 Truck Turn
	C5.1 Truck Turn
	C5.2 Circulation Plan
	L1.0 Preliminary Landscape Plan




	       ATT_F. Project Application
	Brea Gaslight - Uniform Application - Signed by Applicant
	2022.10.26_Brea Gaslight Square Project Description
	Christensen Gaslight Zoning Change Support Letter 8.22.22
	Curtis Gaslight Zoning Change Support Letter 9.6.22

	       ATT_G. Public Hearing Notice
	       ATT_H. Draft Conditions of Approval
	       ATT_I. Public Comments
	10_4032
	       ATT_A. Planning Division Updates

